
SYRACUSE CITY      
Syracuse City Council Regular Meeting Agenda  
February 12, 2019 – 6:00 p.m. 

City Council Chambers  
Municipal Building, 1979 W. 1900 S. 

 

 

1. Meeting called to order  
Invocation or thought 
Pledge of Allegiance 
Adopt agenda 

 

2. Public Comment: This is an opportunity to address the Council regarding your concerns or ideas.  Please limit your comments 
to three minutes. 

 

3. Presentation of Syracuse City and Syracuse Chamber of Commerce “Award for Excellence” for the month of February 2019. 
(10 min.) 
 

4. Presentation of the Utah Supervisory Fire Officer Designation to Deputy Chief Jo Hamblin. (5 min.) 
 

5. Approval of Minutes: (5 min.)
a. December 11, 2018 business meeting. 
b. December 11, 2018 work session. 
c. January 8, 2019 business meeting. 

 

6. Common consent: (5 min.) 
a. Proposed Resolution R19-03 appointing City Councilmembers to various committee positions and assignments.   
b. Proposed Ordinance 19-03 amending Chapter 2.45 of the Syracuse City Municipal Code pertaining to appointment 

procedures.  
 

7. Public hearing – Proposed Ordinance 19-02 amending an Impact Fee Facilities Plan and Impact Fee Analysis for Storm 
Water; providing for the calculation and collection of such fees; providing for appeal, accounting, and severability of the sale; 
and other related matters. (10 min.) 
 

8. Public hearing – Proposed Resolution R19-04 amending the Syracuse City Consolidated Fee Schedule by making 
adjustments throughout. (5 min.)  
 

9. Proposed Resolution R19-05 authorizing the extension of the City’s garbage hauling contract with Robinson Waste. (5  min.) 
 

10. Public Comment: This is an opportunity to address the Council regarding your concerns or ideas.  Please limit your comments 
to three minutes. 

 

11. Mayor/Council announcements. 
. 

12. Recess to convene in work session in large conference room of City Hall. 
 

13. Reconvene and consideration of adjourning into Closed Executive Session pursuant to the provisions of Section 52-4-205 of 
the Open and Public Meetings Law for the purpose of discussing the character, professional competence, or physical or 
mental health of an individual; pending or reasonably imminent litigation; or the purchase, exchange, or lease of real property 
(if necessary). 

 

14. Adjourn. 
 

~~~~~ 

In compliance with the Americans Disabilities Act, persons needing auxiliary communicative aids and services for this meeting should contact the City 
Offices at 801-825-1477 at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting. 

 
CERTIFICATE OF POSTING 

The undersigned, duly appointed City Recorder, does hereby certify that the above notice and agenda was posted within the Syracuse City limits on this 
7th day of February, 2019 at Syracuse City Hall on the City Hall Notice Board and at http://www.syracuseut.com/.  A copy was also provided to the Standard-
Examiner on February 7, 2019. 
  CASSIE Z. BROWN, MMC 
  SYRACUSE CITY RECORDER 
 
  

http://www.syracuseut.com/


  
 

Agenda Item #3 Presentation of the Syracuse City and Syracuse Chamber 

of Commerce “Award for Excellence” for the month of 

February 2019. 
 

Factual Summation  

• Any questions regarding this item can be directed at Mayor Gailey or the City Recorder.  

Please see the attached memos regarding the Award recipients for February 2019.   
 

 

Recommendation 

City Administration hereby recommends that the Mayor and City Council present the 

“Syracuse City & Syracuse Chamber of Commerce Award for Excellence” for the month of 

February 2019 to Preston Haney and London Barnes from Bluff Ridge Elementary.  

COUNCIL AGENDA 
February 12, 2019 



Page 1 of 2  

 

Mayor 
Michael Gailey 

 

City Council 
Andrea Anderson 
Corinne Bolduc 
Dave Maughan 
Doug Peterson 
Jordan Savage 

 
City Manager 
Brody Bovero 

Syracuse City 

Chamber of Commerce 

Award for Excellence 
February 2019 

 

 

Factual Summation 

• Any questions regarding this item may be directed at Noah Steele, City Economic Development 

Director 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

To: Mayor and City Council 

From: Community & Economic Development Department 

Date: February 12th, 2019 at 6pm 

Subject: Presentation of the Syracuse City Chamber of Commerce Award for Excellence 

Student Nominees: Preston Haney and London Barnes from Bluff Ridge Elementary 

 
 

 

Background 

The City wishes to work towards recognizing citizens who strive for excellence in either athletics, academics, 

arts or community service. To that end, in an effort to recognize students at Syracuse High, Clearfield High, as 

well as other Elementary and Junior High schools in our City and individuals residing in the City, Mayor Mike 

Gailey and City Manager Brody Bovero has asked staff to develop a recognition program to promote pride and 

unity within our community.  In conjunction with the Syracuse Chamber of Commerce, City staff would like to 

present the Syracuse City Chamber of Commerce Award for Excellence. 

 

“Syracuse City Chamber of Commerce Award for Excellence” 

In order to recognize outstanding students and athletes in Syracuse, the Community and Economic 

Development Department have developed the Syracuse City Chamber of Commerce Award for Excellence. 

This monthly award recognizes the outstanding performance of a male and female who excel in athletics, arts 

and/or academics. The individuals selected for this award will be identified by Syracuse City in partnership 

with representatives from the city recreation department, local Elementary, Junior High, and High Schools. 

 

 

Once selected, an individual will: 

 

• Receive a certificate and be recognized at the first City Council meeting of the month 

• Have their picture displayed in the City Hall foyer 

• Be featured in the City’s newsletter 

• Receive a gift certificate from local Syracuse Businesses 



Page 2 of 2  

Preston Haney 

Preston is one of the best role models Bluff Ridge Elementary has at school. He is not only an example in the 

classroom, but also in the community. In the class room Preston continually gives one hundred percent for every 

assignment or project that is given to him. His attitude towards his education is always positive and he always 

wants to better himself. Preston’s positivity and perseverance makes him a unique student. He expects the best of 

himself and continues to work hard until he reaches his goals. He never lets a setback get in his way, he has 

excellent problem-solving skills to overcome any challenges that comes his way. Preston has been a member and 

leader of the Bluff Ridge Elementary Hope Squad for the last two years. He is also a player for the Syracuse 

Storm Football team, and his leadership from the class room is present as a leader on the football team he plays 

for. As a leader of the Bluff Ridge Elementary Hope Squad Preston has created campaigns and opportunities for 

all students to participate in acts of kindness around the school, as well as supporting other students being kind to 

each other. In the community Preston is an active member of his church. Preston’s academic achievements include 

Imagine Math Think 30 Cub and placing 2nd in the 2018 Bluff Ridge STEM fair.  

 

 

London Barnes 

London is an amazing well-rounded student. She excels in academics, but she is also a wonderful leader at 

Bluff Ridge Elementary. London exhibits a positive outlook and attitude that sets a great example for other 

students. She is an enthusiastic learner, and her enthusiasm spreads to others in the school. She is responsible 

and reflective. London is unique because she is “The whole package” she is bright, intelligent, kind, caring, 

thoughtful, proactive and helpful. London uses every opportunity to seek new challenges to improve her 

learning. She strives to reach her full potential. London is very involved in ballet. She goes to the Clytie 

Adams ballet school three times a week. She is also a member or the Student Council. She has been a member 

of the Hope Squad. London has helped with our school recycling program. She is very involved with her 

church. She participated in the Martin Luther King Jr. Speech contest. She auditioned for a special part in the 

Nutcracker. London has achieved the 6th grade 40 book goal. She also earned the “Think 30” TTM math club 

award. She has won the school spelling bee. She won a special award for the Martin Luther King Jr. Speech 

contest. She maintains excellent grades.     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Recommendation 

The Community & Economic Development Department hereby recommends that the Mayor and City Council provide 

feedback regarding the items presented during the Work Session. Further, the CED Department hereby requests Mayor 

and City Council support of the proposed Syracuse City Chamber of Commerce Award for Excellence. 



  
 

Agenda Item #4 Presentation of the Utah Supervisory Fire Officer 

Designation to Deputy Chief Jo Hamblin. 
 

Factual Summation  

• Any questions regarding this item can be directed at Fire Chief Aaron Byington.   

• Deputy Chief Hamblin has been awarded the Utah Supervisory Fire Officer Designation 

as outlined by the International Association of Fire Chiefs and adopted by the Utah 

Commission on Fire Officer Designation.   

• Deputy Chief Hamblin has combined hundreds of hours of training, education and 

experience to meet the requirements for this designation.  His hard work and commitment 

to this process shows his dedication to not only the Utah State Fire Service but to 

Syracuse City and our department as well.   

• Please join me in congratulating Deputy Chief Hamblin for attaining this designation. 

 

COUNCIL AGENDA 
February 12, 2019 



  
 

Agenda Item #5 Approval of Minutes. 

 
Factual Summation  

• Please see the draft minutes of the following meeting(s): 

a. Work Session of December 11, 2018. 

b. Regular Meeting of December 11, 2018. 

c. Regular Meeting of January 8, 2019. 

d. Work Session of January 8, 2019. 

 

• Any question regarding this agenda item may be directed at Cassie Brown, City 

Recorder. 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
February 12, 2019 



1 

 

Minutes of the Syracuse City Council Regular Meeting, December 11, 2018.   1 
   2 

Minutes of the Regular meeting of the Syracuse City Council held on December 11, 2018 at 6:00 p.m., in the 3 
Council Chambers, 1979 West 1900 South, Syracuse City, Davis County, Utah. 4 
 5 

Present:  Councilmembers: Corinne N. Bolduc   6 
 Dave Maughan  7 
 Doug Peterson 8 
 Jordan Savage 9 

             10 
  Mayor Mike Gailey 11 
  City Manager Brody Bovero 12 
  City Recorder Cassie Z. Brown 13 
 14 
City Employees Present: 15 
  City Attorney Paul Roberts 16 

Finance Director Steve Marshall 17 
  Public Works Director Robert Whiteley 18 
  Police Chief Garret Atkin  19 
  Fire Chief Aaron Byington 20 
  Community and Economic Development Director Noah Steele   21 
  Deputy Fire Chief Jo Hamblin 22 
   23 

1.  Meeting Called to Order/Adopt Agenda 24 

Mayor Gailey called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. as a regularly scheduled meeting, with notice of time, place, 25 

and agenda provided 24 hours in advance to the newspaper and each Councilmember. Councilmember Peterson provided an 26 

invocation and Councilmember Savage led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.    27 

 COUNCILMEMBER MAUGHAN MOVED TO ADOPT THE AGENDA. COUNCILMEMBER SAVAGE 28 

SECONDED THE MOTION; ALL VOTED IN FAVOR.  29 

 30 

2. Public comment. 31 

  There were no public comments.  32 

 33 

3. Presentation of Syracuse City and Syracuse Chamber of Commerce “Award 34 

for Excellence” for the month of December 2018. 35 

The City wishes to recognize citizens who strive for excellence in athletics, academics, arts and/or community 36 

service. To that end, in an effort to recognize students and individuals residing in the City, the Community and Economic 37 

Development, in conjunction with the Syracuse Chamber of Commerce, present the recipients for the “Syracuse City & 38 

Chamber of Commerce Award for Excellence”.  This monthly award recognizes the outstanding performance of a male and 39 

DRAFT 



City Council Regular Meeting 

December 11, 2018 

 

 

 

 

2 

 

 

female who excel in athletics, academics, arts, and/or community service.  The monthly award recipients will each receive a 1 

certificate and be recognized at a City Council meeting; have their photograph placed at City Hall and the Community 2 

Center; be written about in the City Newsletter, City’s Facebook and Twitter Feed, and the City’s website.   3 

Chamber of Commerce representative Judy Berrett noted both youth receiving the award for December 2018 were 4 

nominated by the staff of Syracuse Arts Academy.   5 

Kemuel Cullimore: 6 

Kemuel is a very intelligent student and is a great leader. He is serving as the Student Body President and 7 

has been a student body officer since 7th grade. This year as president he has been responsible for running 8 

ASB meetings leading his peers, speaking in assemblies, and making decisions. Kemuel has participated in 9 

multiple community service acts over the last 3 years including working at the Layton and Ogden food 10 

banks. He is enjoyed and liked by his fellow students as a leader and his teachers for his knowledge and 11 

attitude in the classroom. Learning and doing his best are important to him. Kemuel is kind and 12 

compassionate and you will find him in class helping those who struggle to succeed. He is always willing 13 

to have a stimulating intellectual conversation with his classmates. This is a big contribution, since 14 

conversing over material learned is necessary for retention. Kemuel is also always positive, willing to help 15 

others, well mannered, and gracious to all. 16 

 17 

  Chloe Ann Mormino:  18 

Chloe is an especially hard-working student tackling problems head on with a clear head and a mature 19 

attitude. Chloe is an ambassador at the school and part of student leadership. She has been involved with 20 

multiple community service opportunities as a student in leadership. She contributes to the school by 21 

helping others with understanding information and guidance. Chloe is also always up beat and spirited to 22 

have in the classroom. She works with other students as a peer tutor supporting students who are struggling 23 

academically. Chloe is a very accomplished student, who is always eager to learn. She sets an awesome 24 

example of high academic and personal standards for all to see. 25 

 26 



City Council Regular Meeting 

December 11, 2018 

 

 

 

 

3 

 

 

4. Recognition: Syracuse City Fire Fighters involved in Wildland Fire 1 

Program 2 

A staff memo from Fire Chief Byington explained the City would like to recognize the firefighters of the Syracuse 3 

City Fire Department for their hard work and dedication to the wildland program this past season. Our wildland program 4 

relies on many factors for its current and continued success. This includes our firefighters who are willing to deploy for up to 5 

(14) days at a time or longer; our firefighters who stay behind and work extra shifts to cover for those who are deployed; our 6 

administrative staff who compiles the proper paperwork for submission to the State and Federal Governments; and our 7 

elected officials and City administration who support our efforts in carrying out our department mission. Finally, and most 8 

importantly, we would like to recognize the families of our firefighters, who offer continual support to their loved ones as 9 

they spend many nights away from home. The success of the wildland program is truly a team effort. 10 

Chief Byington reviewed his memo and recognized Captain Bybee and Engineer Holman who were present this 11 

evening. He added that when these Firefighters are deployed to Wildland Fires, the professionals who stay behind in 12 

Syracuse carry a heavier load and they should be recognized as well.  13 

 14 

5.  Approval of minutes 15 

The following minutes were reviewed by the City Council: Special Meeting and Work Session of October 23, 2018 16 

and the Regular Meeting of November 13, 2018. 17 

  COUNCILMEMBER MAUGHAN MADE A MOTION TO APPROVE THE MINUTES LISTED ON THE 18 

AGENDA AS PRESENTED. COUNCILMEMBER PETERSON  SECONDED THE MOTION; ALL VOTED AYE. 19 

 20 

6a. Common consent: Proposed Ordinance 18-25 amending Section 21 

10.30.040 of the Syracuse City Municipal Code pertaining to animal 22 

keeping regulations. 23 

A staff memo from the Community and Economic Development (CED) Department explained that during the public 24 

comment period on September 11, 2018, a citizen requested that the City Council review the Dog Kennel Ordinance. City 25 

council decided to look at it more closely in the work meeting. The memo offered a comparison between the Davis County 26 



City Council Regular Meeting 

December 11, 2018 

 

 

 

 

4 

 

 

kennel regulations and Syracuse City regulations; Davis County requires a kennel license if an individual have four dogs 1 

while Syracuse City requires a kennel license for three dogs. In an effort to be congruent to the County, it is proposed that the 2 

City match the County’s regulation of four dogs for a kennel, but also matching the County requirement of maximum of four 3 

dogs or cats in any combination. The City Council reviewed the issue on September 25 and decided to look at amending the 4 

ordinance to be more consistent with the county's requirements. The Planning Commission voted unanimously to recommend 5 

approval of the attached ordinance amendments on November 16, 2018. 6 

COUNCILMEMBER MAUGHAN MOVED TO ADOPT ORDINANCE 18-25 AMENDING SECTION 10.30.040 7 

OF THE SYRACUSE CITY MUNICIPAL CODE PERTAINING TO ANIMAL KEEPING REGULATIONS. 8 

COUNCILMEMBER SAVAGE SECONDED THE MOTION; ALL VOTED IN FAVOR.  9 

 10 

6b. Common consent: Proposed Ordinance 18-26 amending Section 11 

11.20.085 of the Syracuse City Code pertaining to permitted parking 12 

zones near Syracuse High School. 13 

A staff memo from the City Attorney explained that based upon the City Council guidance provided during the 14 

November 27 meeting, the proposed ordinance has been modified from its prior version in the following ways: 15 

- Only three permits per residence may be used simultaneously; and 16 

- A person who offers their permit for sale or transactional use may have their permits revoked by the City 17 

Manager. 18 

COUNCILMEMBER MAUGHAN MOVED TO ADOPT ORDINANCE 18-26, AMENDING SECTION 11.20.085 19 

OF THE SYRACUSE CITY CODE PERTAINING TO PERMITTED PARKING ZONES NEAR SYRACUSE HIGH 20 

SCHOOL. COUNCILMEMBER SAVAGE SECONDED THE MOTION; ALL VOTED IN FAVOR.  21 

 22 

6c. Common consent: Proposed Ordinance 18-27 amending Section 23 

11.10.105 of the Syracuse City Code pertaining to traffic control device 24 

placement. 25 



City Council Regular Meeting 

December 11, 2018 

 

 

 

 

5 

 

 

A staff memo from the City Attorney explained City Administration is proposing a new section that gives policy 1 

guidance to Public Works on when to perform a traffic control device review.  The proposed ordinance mandates reviews 2 

under three circumstances: 3 

(1) After capital projects are complete 4 

(2) When development has changed traffic patterns (due to an increase in drivers using the roads, the 5 

introduction of new public roads that may alleviate congestion in a specific area, etc.) 6 

(3) Upon public request, along with payment of a fee 7 

After completing a review, the Traffic Engineer may make changes in conformity with the MUTCD.  This is already 8 

within his power, as provided in section 11.10.090. 9 

 As traffic engineer, Robert is empowered to study any intersection or stretch of road that he believes to be worthy of 10 

attention, even if none of the three triggering events in this ordinance takes place.  This ordinance signals when the Council 11 

expects him to undertake a study of traffic control devices. 12 

 If this ordinance is adopted, then the Consolidated Fee Schedule should be updated to include an appropriate fee, the 13 

amount of which would be considered by the Council at that time. 14 

COUNCILMEMBER MAUGHAN MOVED TO ADOPT ORDINANCE 18-27, AMENDING SECTION 11.10.105 15 

OF THE SYRACUSE CITY CODE PERTAINING TO TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICE PLACEMENT. 16 

COUNCILMEMBER SAVAGE SECONDED THE MOTION; ALL VOTED IN FAVOR.  17 

  18 

7. Public hearing – Proposed Resolution R18-38 amending the Syracuse 19 

City Consolidated Fee Schedule by making adjustments throughout. 20 

A staff memo from the Administrative Services Director referenced the following list of proposed changes to the 21 

consolidated fee schedule: 22 

• Effective 12/11/2018: 23 

o Increase final inspection fees from ~$79.19 per lot to $350.00 per lot. 24 

o Increase Storm water permit fees from $50 per application to $50 per lot. 25 



City Council Regular Meeting 

December 11, 2018 

 

 

 

 

6 

 

 

o Add a $300.00 per application fee for a Traffic Evaluation Request. Can be reimbursable if the 1 

area is deemed deficient. 2 

Inspection fees for new developments are currently charged at $15/lot and a lineal foot measurement of 3 

infrastructure.  The past three high growth years have amounted to an average of $79.19/lot that was collected for inspection 4 

fees. This is the lowest rate in comparison to other benchmark cities. 5 

 6 
Increasing the inspection fee to an amount comparable to other cities would simplify the fee calculations by 7 

eliminating the ‘per lineal foot’ final offsite inspection fees as well as cover the cost of a full-time inspector. This would also 8 

ensure that new development is paying for the inspection costs of new development. Here is an example: 9 

• $350/lot * 300 lots/year = $105,000 10 

• $350/lot * 200 lots/year = $70,000 11 



City Council Regular Meeting 

December 11, 2018 

 

 

 

 

7 

 

 

To maintain high efficiency, the inspector would pick up locations of City infrastructure with GPS equipment and 1 

work under the direction of the City Engineer. This would improve mapping by keeping it current and accurate for our Blue 2 

Stakes and for future developments and capital projects.  3 

The estimated cost would include: 4 

• $65,000 Salary + Benefits (annual) 5 

• $40,000 Vehicle (approx. 12-year life) 6 

• $30,000 GPS Equipment (approx. 8-year life) 7 

Storm Water Activity Permit Fees 8 

The Storm Water Activity Permit fee is $50/development. With approximately 30 developments/year, it amounts to 9 

approximately $1,500/year. Storm water inspections take one full week a month (40 * 12 = 480 hours/year), which is an 10 

equivalent of $3.13/hr. If the Storm Water Activity Permit fee were changed to $50/lot, it would have no effect on single lot 11 

developments. However, there would be an increase on multiple lot subdivisions. For example, a 10-lot subdivision would 12 

pay $450 more for a permit. Assuming 300 lots/year and using the same inspection hours, the inspection would amount to 13 

$31.25/hour ($15k/year / 480 hours). 14 

Traffic Evaluation Request Fees 15 

Traffic control is evaluated during capital projects, new developments, and upon public request. When public 16 

requests a traffic evaluation, such as requests for a stop sign, speed control, crosswalks, and similar it initiates a greater 17 

demand upon staff’s time. Therefore, a fee is proposed to limit inquiries to those who believe the situation is worth spending 18 

the time to evaluate. $300 covers four hours of time, which would cover the costs of a basic evaluation, including: traffic data 19 

collection, review industry standards, inter-department coordination, and a final determination with a written technical 20 

memorandum. If the request goes beyond the basic scope, additional costs will be incurred at the established hourly rate for 21 

public works staffing costs. Reimbursement may be provided if the requested area is found to be deficient based upon 22 

industry standards and engineering judgement. 23 

Mayor Gailey opened the public hearing at 7:17 p.m. There were no persons appearing to be heard and the public  24 

hearing was closed.  25 



City Council Regular Meeting 

December 11, 2018 

 

 

 

 

8 

 

 

Councilmember Bolduc stated she is supportive of a fee increase that will enable the City to cover the costs of 1 

providing a service.  2 

COUNCILMEMBER MAUGHAN MOVED TO ADOPT RESOLUTION R18-38 AMENDING THE SYRACUSE 3 

CITY CONSOLIDATED FEE SCHEDULE BY MAKING ADJUSTMENTS THROUGHOUT. COUNCILMEMBER 4 

PETERSON SECONDED THE MOTION; ALL VOTED IN FAVOR.  5 

 6 

8. Public hearing – Proposed Resolution R18-37 adjusting the Syracuse 7 

City budget for the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2019. 8 

A staff memo from the Administrative Services Director summarized the following proposed changes to 9 

operational budgets: 10 

o $65,000 - increase in RAP Tax expense for pavilion at centennial park. 11 

o $40,000 – increase for inspection fees with change to consolidated fee schedule.  This would increase 12 

the fee from approximately $79 per lot to $350 per lot.  A net increase of $270 per lot times 150 lots 13 

for remainder of FY2019 ~ $40,000.  See further analysis below. 14 

The memo then addressed inspection fees; inspection fees for new developments are currently charged at $15/lot 15 

and a lineal foot measurement of infrastructure.  The past three high growth years have amounted to an average of $79.19/lot 16 

that was collected for inspection fees. This is the lowest rate in comparison to other benchmark cities. 17 



City Council Regular Meeting 

December 11, 2018 

 

 

 

 

9 

 

 

 1 

Increasing the inspection fee to an amount comparable to other cities would simplify the fee calculations by 2 

eliminating the ‘per lineal foot’ final offsite inspection fees as well as cover the cost of a full-time inspector. This would also 3 

ensure that new development is paying for the inspection costs of new development.  4 

To maintain high efficiency, the inspector would pick up locations of our city infrastructure with GPS equipment 5 

and work under the direction of the City Engineer. This would improve mapping by keeping it current and accurate for our 6 

Blue Stakes and for future developments and capital projects. 7 

The estimated cost would include: 8 

o $65,000 Salary + Benefits (annual) 9 

o $40,000 Vehicle (approx. 12-year life) 10 

o $30,000 GPS Equipment (approx. 8-year life) 11 

Administrative Services Director Marshall summarized the staff memo.  12 



City Council Regular Meeting 

December 11, 2018 

 

 

 

 

10 

 

 

Mayor Gailey opened the public hearing at 7:17 p.m. There were no persons appearing to be heard and the public  1 

hearing was closed.  2 

COUNCILMEMBER BOLDUC MOVED TO ADOPT RESOLUTION R18-37 ADJUSTING THE SYRACUSE 3 

CITY BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2019. COUNCILMEMBER SAVAGE SECONDED THE 4 

MOTION; ALL VOTED IN FAVOR.  5 

 6 

9. Proposed Ordinance 18-24 amending the Syracuse City General Plan 7 

Map for property located at 2600 West 3200 South, Residential (R-1) to 8 

Residential Planned Community (RPC). 9 

COUNCILMEMBER MAUGHAN MOVED TO REMOVE THIS ITEM FROM THE AGENDA. 10 

COUNCILMEMBER BOLDUC SECONDED THE MOTION; ALL VOTED IN FAVOR.  11 

 12 

10. Final Plat Approval, Still Water Phases 5 and 6, located at 13 

approximately 2000 West Parkview Drive.  14 

A staff memo from the Community and Economic Development (CED) Department provided the following 15 

information about the application:  16 

Location:   2000 West Parkview Drive 17 

Current Zoning:  RPC 18 

General Plan:   RPC 19 

Total Subdivision Area:   20 

Phase 5:  19.22 Acres    21 

Phase 6:  14.94 Acres 22 

 Number of Lots: 23 

Phase 5:  77    24 

Phase 6:  90 25 



City Council Regular Meeting 

December 11, 2018 

 

 

 

 

11 

 

 

The applicant has requested approval of two final subdivision plats as part of the Still Water development being 1 

built by Woodside Homes. Phase 5 will complete the central section of the development between 2000 West and the Davis 2 

County Canal. Phase 6 will be the first new phase west of 2000 West. During the regular meeting on December 4, 2018 the 3 

Planning Commission unanimously recommended conditional approval including the following condition: all staff comments 4 

shall be addressed before the plat is recorded with Davis County. 5 

All planning and fire comments have been addressed for phase 5 and there are two engineering comments. The City 6 

Engineer has expressed that he is comfortable with a conditional approval regarding these comments. 7 

All planning and fire comments have been addressed for phase 6 and there are 11 engineering comments. The City 8 

Engineer has expressed that he is comfortable with a conditional approval regarding these comments. 9 

The memo concluded that because there are outstanding staff comments on both plats, staff recommends they be 10 

conditionally approved. 11 

Mr. Steele reviewed the staff memo.  12 

COUNCILMEMBER PETERSON MOVED TO GRANT FINAL PLAT APPROVAL, STILL WATER PHASES 5 13 

AND 6, LOCATED AT APPROXIMATELY 2000 WEST PARKVIEW DRIVE, SUBJECT TO THE CONDITION THAT 14 

ALL STAFF COMMENTS INCLUDED IN THE STAFF MEMO BEING ADDRESSED BEFORE RECORDATION OF 15 

THE FINAL PLAT. COUNCILMEMBER BOLDUC SECONDED THE MOTION; ALL VOTED IN FAVOR 16 

 17 

11. Subdivision Plat Conditional Approval, Ninigret North 3 Subdivision, 18 

located at approximately 1585 W. 300 S.  19 

A staff memo from the Community and Economic Development (CED) Department provided the following 20 

information about the application: 21 

Location:   1585 W. 300 S. 22 

Current Zoning:  Business Park 23 

General Plan:   Business Park 24 

Total Subdivision Area:  3.64 Acres 25 

The applicant has requested approval of a two-lot subdivision which is intended to accommodate 26 



City Council Regular Meeting 

December 11, 2018 

 

 

 

 

12 

 

 

a mortuary on lot 1. Lot 2 will remain vacant until it is developed. During the regular meeting on December 4, 2018 the 1 

Planning Commission unanimously recommended conditional approval of this subdivision plat with the following condition: 2 

all staff comments shall be addressed before the plat is recorded with Davis County. All fire and planning review comments 3 

have been addressed. There are three remaining engineering comments and the City Engineer has expressed that he is 4 

comfortable recommending conditional approval of the plat. 5 

The memo concluded that because there are outstanding staff comments on the plat, staff recommends it be 6 

conditionally approved. 7 

Mr. Steele reviewed his staff memo.  8 

COUNCILMEMBER BOLDUC MOVED TO GRANT SUBDIVISION PLAT CONDITIONAL APPROVAL, 9 

NINIGRET NORTH 3 SUBDIVISION, LOCATED AT APPROXIMATELY 1585 W. 300 S., SUBJECT TO THE 10 

CONDITION THAT ALL STAFF COMMENTS INCLUDED IN THE STAFF MEMO BEING ADDRESSED BEFORE 11 

RECORDATION OF THE FINAL PLAT. COUNCILMEMBER PETERSON SECONDED THE MOTION; ALL VOTED 12 

IN FAVOR.  13 

 14 

12. Proposed Resolution R18-39 adopting a Strategic Operation Plan for 15 

Syracuse City. 16 

 A staff memo from the City Manager referenced the draft Strategic Operational Plan, which was included in the 17 

Council packet. The memo summarized the document as follows: 18 

• Mission Statement-> Vision Statements-> Strategic Plan-> Daily Programs/Tasks: 19 

o The Strategic Operational Plan is a document used to give form to the Vision Statements.  It also 20 

gives direction for the creation of day-to-day programs, tasks, and tactics by staff.   21 

• The Strategic Operational Plan IS:  22 

o A management document that outlines the primary efforts that will be key to fulfilling the 23 

Council’s vision for the City’s operations. 24 

o A basis for developing the programs and practices, along with the budgetary resources needed, to 25 

fulfill the vision and mission of the City, from an operational standpoint. 26 



City Council Regular Meeting 

December 11, 2018 

 

 

 

 

13 

 

 

• The Strategic Plan IS NOT:  1 

o A detailed manual of specific projects, tasks, and programs that the City will do. 2 

o A strategic land use planning/economic development plan. 3 

o A capital project plan. 4 

On November 30, 2018 the Council and staff held a retreat and discussed the contents of the Strategic Operational 5 

Plan.  The edits suggested by the Council in the meeting are incorporated into the draft document. The memo concluded the 6 

action before the Council is to decide whether to adopt the Strategic Operational Plan and direct the Administration to pursue 7 

the goals outlined therein. 8 

City Manager Bovero reviewed his staff memo and provided an explanation of the content of the Strategic Plan 9 

document for the benefit of the public in attendance.  10 

COUNCILMEMBER MAUGHAN MOVED TO ADOPT RESOLUTION R18-39 ADOPTING A STRATEGIC 11 

PLAN FOR SYRACUSE CITY. COUNCILMEMBER SAVAGE SECONDED THE MOTION; ALL VOTED IN FAVOR.  12 

 13 

13. Proposed Resolution R18-40 authorizing Mayor Gailey to submit 14 

letter of support for Davis County Local Option “3rd Quarter” Sales Tax. 15 

A staff memo from the City Manager referenced a draft letter of support for the “3rd Quarter” local option sales tax, 16 

which was included in the Council packet. If the Council authorizes this letter, an anticipated schedule for its implementation 17 

would be as follows (assuming continued support at the county level): 18 

• Mayors of each municipality provide signed letters of support to the County Commission by the end of 19 

2018. 20 

• At the first COG meeting of the year (January 16th), the adoption of the 3rd quarter cent would be on the 21 

agenda for discussion and recommendation to the Commission. 22 

• The Commission would move to enact the tax during the 1st quarter of 2019. 23 

• During the 2019 legislative session, amendments to Section 59-12-2217 would be passed (and effective 24 

July 1, 2019). These amendments would allow maintenance and reconstruction projects to be eligible. 25 

• The Commission would notify the Utah Tax Commission by April 1st that the tax has been enacted. 26 



City Council Regular Meeting 

December 11, 2018 

 

 

 

 

14 

 

 

• After adoption by the Commission and likely during the second quarter of 2019, a sub-committee of the 1 

COG would prepare the process required by statute for the distribution of funds. This process would be 2 

adopted by July 1, 2019. 3 

• Funds would begin to be collected starting July 1, 2019 for distribution as soon as a process is adopted, 4 

projects submitted and approved, and distribution could start in 2020. 5 

The memo concluded the action before the Council is to vote on whether to authorize Mayor Gailey to submit the 6 

attached letter of support for the “3rd Quarter” local option sales tax in Davis County. 7 

Mr. Bovero reviewed the staff memo.  8 

The Council debated the concept of the 3rd Quarter sales tax issue and ultimately concluded they feel this is an issue 9 

for the County Commission to deal with independent of municipal government input. They determined they would not 10 

authorize Mayor Gailey to send a letter of support on the City’s behalf. 11 

COUNCILMEMBER MAUGHAN MOVED TO DENY RESOLUTION R18-40 AUTHORIZING MAYOR 12 

GAILEY TO SUBMIT A LETTER OF SUPPORT FOR DAVIS COUNTY LOCAL OPTION “3RD QUARTER” SALES 13 

TAX. COUNCILMEMBER SAVAGE SECONDED THE MOTION; ALL VOTED IN FAVOR.  14 

 15 

14. Authorize Administration to execute Interlocal Agreement with Davis County 16 

Library for the temporary use of City facilities. 17 

A staff memo from the City Manager explained the following outlines the main points of the agreement: 18 

• The library will have exclusive use of staging areas on the north side of the library, as well as the vacant lot 19 

to the east of City Hall. 20 

• This contract will only be effective during the construction of the library expansion, or 18 months at most. 21 

• Upon completion of the project, the library will restore the parking lot areas used for staging to its pre-22 

construction condition or better. 23 

• Upon completion of the project, the library will construct the missing segment of sidewalk along the east 24 

side of the vacant lot (South Staging Area). 25 

City Manager Bovero reviewed his staff memo. 26 



City Council Regular Meeting 

December 11, 2018 

 

 

 

 

15 

 

 

High level discussion among the Council and staff regarding the purpose of the temporary easement and use of the 1 

staging area ensued. Councilmember Maughan expressed his concern about the language in the agreement indicating that the 2 

County will have exclusive rights to the staging area and easement, and he asked that the word ‘exclusive’ be removed. City 3 

Attorney Roberts stated the County sought for exclusive rights to the area in order to protect them against any liability 4 

associated with public access of an active construction site. Councilmember Maughan stated that he is concerned that the 5 

City may need the space and will not be able to access it during the term of this agreement. Mr. Bovero stated that he is not 6 

concerned that the City will be restricted in the use of the parking area; additionally, the County will resurface the parking lot 7 

to address grading issues and this will result in an increase in parking spaces in the lot, which will benefit the Community 8 

Center and Chloe’s Park. Additionally, in an emergency, the City will have the ability to access the property regardless of the 9 

language included in the agreement. The Council considered Councilmember Maughan’s concerns as well as the response 10 

from City Administration and ultimately concluded to approve with the word ‘exclusive’ included, but with the additional 11 

clause that the City will have access to the easement and staging areas in the event of an emergency.  12 

COUNCILMEMBER SAVAGE MOVED TO AUTHORIZE ADMINISTRATION TO EXECUTE INTERLOCAL 13 

AGREEMENT WITH DAVIS COUNTY LIBRARY FOR THE TEMPORARY USE OF CITY FACILITIES, WITH THE 14 

ADDITION OF A CLAUSE SPECIFYING THAT THE CITY WILL HAVE ACCESS TO THE EASEMENT OR 15 

STAGING AREAS IN THE EVENT OF AN EMERGENCY. COUNCILMEMBER PETERSON SECONDED THE 16 

MOTION; ALL VOTED IN FAVOR.  17 

 18 

15. Presentations by applicants for appointment to vacant 19 

Councilmember seat (in alphabetical order). 20 

City Attorney Roberts used the aid of a PowerPoint presentation to review the process the Council will follow in 21 

order to select a new Councilmember this evening.  22 

Lisa Bingham:  23 

Ms. Bingham summarized her experience as a child who grew up in Syracuse City; she idolized those in elected 24 

positions, and she was eventually elected to a similar role as a high school student. She came to realize the work that is done 25 

behind the scenes to make an elected body successful. In her 20’s she was asked to chair the Syracuse Heritage Days parade, 26 



City Council Regular Meeting 

December 11, 2018 

 

 

 

 

16 

 

 

which is a thankless and payless job. She then moved on to several additional thankless, payless jobs in school parent/teacher 1 

associations, as a homemaker and mother, and as a volunteer. She learned that volunteerism is what makes a communicate 2 

operate successful and she did not want to be compensated for the service she was providing. Volunteers in a community 3 

become vested and earn ownership in their City. She reported on work she did as a member and chair of the Community 4 

Council of Clearfield High School; this included budgeting funding allocations from the State Lands Trust and purchasing 5 

items needed at the school. She learned that communication is imperative and that those represented by a body should have a 6 

voice in what is happening. Through volunteerism and participation in decision making bodies, she has learned that it is 7 

important to know your community by understanding the demographics, diversity, and things that make it special. It is also 8 

necessary to start a task with a beginning and end in mind and to understand the funding needed to make the task successful 9 

and possible to maintain in the long term. She reported she has been a State and County delegate for many years, and she 10 

knows that in order to make a difference she must connect herself to the people and the ‘worker bees’ on the local level. She 11 

also mentioned the several positions she has held in several political groups and discussed what she has learned by working 12 

on various projects and special events through those assignments; she knows how to ‘make things go’ and bring a project to 13 

fruition. She has been in church leadership positions and has served as a homemaker and mother for nearly all of her adult 14 

life and that experience has informed every decision that she has made. She and her husband are small business owners of an 15 

automotive shop in Clinton; she would have loved to locate her business in Syracuse, but the use was not allowed by the 16 

City’s master plan at the time. One of the things she has learned through business ownership is that things can always be 17 

done better, and it is not necessary to do something the way it has always been done. She concluded this experience has been 18 

humbling and she hopes that the Council can see the value she has to offer to the community; practical application is the basis 19 

for all she has done in her life and she hopes the Council sees that as valuable.  20 

Mark Colvin: 21 

Mr. Colvin stated that when he saw the posting for the vacant position on the Council, he evaluated his skills to 22 

determine what he may have to offer to the community. He considered what the Council may need and believes that his 23 

professional experience as an accountant would benefit the City. The hardest thing for residents to understand about the city 24 

they live in relates to budgeting and finance. He discussed his experience in sales and the manner in which his previous 25 

employment opportunities evolved to a career in accounting and indicated that he is currently employed in the Comptroller’s 26 



City Council Regular Meeting 

December 11, 2018 

 

 

 

 

17 

 

 

Office in Ogden City. He has learned so much about fiscal responsibility and what can be done to make a city’s budget more 1 

transparent with its residents. He saw this position as an opportunity, and he believes he can help to address the several 2 

challenges relating to growth and the funding implications that come with growth. He stated he also truly enjoys helping 3 

people and that has brought his joy throughout his life. He concluded that he is also very punctual, and he concluded by 4 

thanking the Council for their time, attention, and consideration this evening.  5 

Brett Cragun:  6 

Mr. Cragun withdrew his application in advance of the meeting.  7 

Jennifer Eagle 8 

Ms. Eagle withdrew his application in advance of the meeting.  9 

David Hall:  10 

Mr. Hall stated that he and his family have lived in Syracuse for 16 years; he and his wife have four children, two of 11 

which attend Syracuse High School, one at Syracuse Junior High, and the fourth at Syracuse Arts Academy where his wife is 12 

a teacher. He stated that he has been very involved in the community for some time, beginning as a financial advisor to the 13 

Syracuse Arts Academy Administration and Executive Board, and he has also become very deeply involved in the local 14 

lacrosse club in the community and as a Director and State Commissioner for the high school association in the State. He has 15 

also served as a precinct chair for his local political party and he has enjoyed learning more about political processes and the 16 

caucus system; the ability to represent the needs of the community is very meaningful to him. He reported on his career with 17 

Zion’s Bank and now with a new employer and stated that he has enjoyed the opportunity to identify opportunities for 18 

improvement for the many organizations his employers represent. He stated he can apply that skill to a position on the City 19 

Council as well. He considers himself a problem solver and a pragmatic thinker and that has led him to his ability to make 20 

well thought out decisions. He concluded by referring the Council to his resume and application materials for additional 21 

information about his background and thanked the Council for their attention. He also voiced his support for Ms. Bingham 22 

and stated he enjoyed listening to her comments and learning more about her experience.  23 

Danny Hammon: 24 

Mr. Hammon referenced his application materials, which include copies of his performance evaluations from his 25 

employer, Roy City. He stated he wanted the Council to have an idea of his character, work ethic, and the type of employee 26 



City Council Regular Meeting 

December 11, 2018 

 

 

 

 

18 

 

 

he has been. He also provided a 360-survey, which includes feedback from all employees he interacts with, from the bottom 1 

to the top. The survey discusses competency, public image, work ethic, concern for community, leadership, carrying out the 2 

organization’s mission statement, and commitment to making the organization better. When reviewing this survey, he felt 3 

that the criteria he was evaluated on were very applicable to the position of City Councilmember. He was concerned about 4 

how he would be rated by everyone who participated in his evaluation and when he saw the results, he was humbled to see 5 

that his scores were very high. This caused him to reflect on his leadership abilities and the other things that he can bring to 6 

the position of City Councilmember. He noted he served as a Syracuse City Planning Commission for two years and then as a 7 

City Councilmember from 2004 to 2007; this was a very interesting time in the City’s history and when he looked back on 8 

that experience there are many sources of pride, but also some things that he would like to do over and possibly make a 9 

different decision to impact the future of the community. He then noted that he coaches youth sports and that can be fun and 10 

frustrating, but sports are a great teaching tool. A person or team never loses – they either win or learn and he has applied that 11 

philosophy to his everyday life and this has helped him to build character. He has had a desire in recent years to reengage 12 

with local government; he enjoyed his time as a Councilmember, but during the last election cycle he let some negative 13 

things that have occurred in the past keep him from declaring his candidacy. When he saw this vacancy advertised, he saw it 14 

as another opportunity to contribute and apply the things that he has learned to a position that can benefit the community. The 15 

greatest lessons he has learned in life come the times that he has lost, the mistakes he has made, and from missed 16 

opportunities. He has grown and evolved from those experiences and he wants to apply that knowledge to this position. He 17 

thanked the Council for their consideration this evening.  18 

Michelle Hicks: 19 

Ms. Hicks stated that she has always been acutely aware of her community and she loves living in Syracuse. She 20 

gained a love for community at a very young age when her mother enrolled her in the Big Brothers, Big Sisters program; she 21 

was assigned a Big Sister who mentored her until she was 18 years old and the two still keep in touch today. They 22 

participated in community service activities regularly and she believes this set her up for success. She participated in several 23 

clubs and groups throughout her high school years, all of which were geared towards community service and gaining 24 

vocational skills. At the age of 19 she began volunteering for a rape and domestic violence recovery center and this was a 25 

great learning experience for her. She also had a strong desire to work in government and she started in the Salt Lake County 26 



City Council Regular Meeting 

December 11, 2018 

 

 

 

 

19 

 

 

jail and learned many of hard things, but she had a desire to move to an area where she has a greater opportunity to make a 1 

difference. She moved to the health department and was instrumental in managing the emergency operations center and 2 

public outreach efforts. She now works in the Salt Lake County Mayor’s Office, which is in a transitional period as the 3 

current Mayor was recently elected to Congress. She has always wanted to help, learn, and listen and she is very skilled in 4 

working with people from all walks of life. She concluded it is an honor to stand before the Council this evening and be 5 

considered for this position.  6 

Don Ormsby: 7 

Mr. Ormsby referred to his application materials and resume and stated he will keep his comments very brief; he 8 

chose to apply for this position because of his fondness for Syracuse and his desire to serve his community. The City has 9 

great potential for continued responsible development and high quality of life. He can offer many positive things based on his 10 

past experience and his love for the City; he can listen, analyze, and be decisive on important issues. His experiences as a 11 

City Councilmember, Planning Commissioner, Board of Adjustment Member, and member of a Special Counsel Task Force 12 

relating to hazardous materials at Hill Air Force Base will allow him to not just join the Council, but to hit the ground 13 

running.  14 

Brian Schultz:  15 

Mr. Shultz stated that his greatest weakness is that he has only lived in Syracuse for 18 months; he moved to Weber 16 

County in 1991 and gained employment as a Police Officer in South Ogden City in 1994. He moved to Syracuse because he 17 

and his wife wanted a good location to raise their children and be close enough to both their employers so as not to have too 18 

long a commute. The community was very welcoming and friendly, and he has made many friends. He was elected to the 19 

Community Council for Bluff Ridge Elementary shortly after moving to the community and he has enjoyed that position. He 20 

discussed several other community assignments he has had through his career and stated these assignments have given him 21 

great experience that he can bring to the position of City Councilmember and benefit the community. He has watched the 22 

work the City Council does and commends them for the many hours and the extensive effort they dedicate to their position. 23 

The pay a Councilmember earns is not adequate when considering the time they dedicated and he considers the position to be 24 

one of public service rather than employment. He stated that he wants to be part of the Council and participate in that public 25 

service; he loves this community and will be vested in the City for the long term regardless of whether he is chosen tonight. 26 



City Council Regular Meeting 

December 11, 2018 

 

 

 

 

20 

 

 

He plans to live in the City for the rest of his life and looks forward to being part of a high-quality group.  1 

Seth Teague: 2 

Mr. Teague stated he is interested in becoming a part of the City Council and serving the citizens because he loves 3 

this City; he moved here approximately 2.5 years ago after living in Layton City for seven years. He was raised in California 4 

and received his bachelor’s degree in political science; he later attended graduate school at the University of Utah where he 5 

studied public policy and demographic study. He is also familiar with business in the private sector after managing a 6 

restaurant for a time and working for his father, who is a general contractor. He learned a strong work ethic as well as the 7 

importance of quality interaction with the city in which he was doing business. He has respect for necessary regulations and 8 

processes. He then noted that following graduate school he accepted an employment position with Salt Lake County where 9 

he worked alongside Ms. Hicks and Syracuse City’s former Community and Economic Development (CED) Director 10 

Brigham Mellor; his assignment with the County was to evaluate contracts and projects that would expand public services 11 

offerings to the community. He eventually moved to policy analysis of the finances of the public works division of the 12 

County and worked to discover oversight in the manner in which garbage collection volume was measured that resulted in a 13 

$4.5 million shortfall. This reinforced his belief in the need for strong public policy and the importance of tough decisions 14 

that must be made by public bodies; he believes he can contribute to the City Council from that standpoint as he has a skill 15 

set that includes logic, responsiveness, thorough analysis, and bringing stakeholders together. He stated that his current 16 

employment is with Salt Lake County Behavioral Health, which is the largest Division in the County with a $113 million 17 

annual budget. He manages grants for the Division and oversees transparency and reporting to the State of Utah to ensure that 18 

the County is using tax dollars wisely. He stated he will apply that experience to the position of City Councilmember if 19 

selected for this position. He concluded by thanking the Council for their time and attention this evening.  20 

Grant Thorson: 21 

Mr. Thorson stated most of the members of the current City Council are familiar with him through is serve on the 22 

City’s Planning Commission for several years and on the City’s Board of Adjustments. Prior to living in Syracuse, he lived in 23 

Idaho where he served on the Planning and Zoning Commission for Bingham County; he loves being involved in his 24 

community and in the decision-making process. He is intrigued to see how consensus can be built and compromises made 25 

through that process. He feels that one’s love for their community is revealed in their efforts to get involved. He then reported 26 



City Council Regular Meeting 

December 11, 2018 

 

 

 

 

21 

 

 

he is an engineer by profession and has worked on many projects at different levels of government from local to federal; this 1 

has required his involvement in planning, budgeting, quality control, and inspection. Other parts of his career include 2 

construction and working in a group home with mentally ill patients. He moved his family to Syracuse several years ago and 3 

he chose those City to ensure a quality future for his children; he plans to be very involved in ensuring that quality. He stated 4 

that because the Council knows them, they know of his position on many issues and the type of person he is; he is fairly 5 

conservative, but also pragmatic in decision making. He is very aware of his own opinions, but always considers code and 6 

ordinance when making decisions. He then concluded by relaying a few pieces of advice from his father by which he lives his 7 

life: the first relates to moving forward and making your way in life rather than hanging back and waiting for things to come 8 

to him. The second was to be his own man. He has applied those pieces of advice to his personal and professional life and has 9 

a strong belief that slow and steady often win the game and that long-term goals are what truly matter. He has had success 10 

relying upon his understanding of processes while trying to be strict when necessary or flexible when necessary. He 11 

concluded by thanking the Council for their consideration and stated he hopes to have the opportunity to work with them as 12 

the chosen Councilmember.  13 

Ralph Vaughan: 14 

Mr. Vaughan stated that he lives in the Canterbury Park area of the City; he has driven ever street in the City, has his 15 

own personal copy of the General Plan, and has read the entire City budget for Fiscal Year (FY) 2019. He also has 37 years 16 

of service on the municipal government level, as well as several years on the County and State levels dealing with municipal 17 

issues, and he believes strongly that there are three components that must be present to ensure a successful city. First is s 18 

professional staff that can effectively administer the day to day operations of the City; he personally knows all major 19 

Department Heads in the City and they all know him. He does not personally know the other 84 full-time City employees, but 20 

he knows they are excellent. He believes he has attended more City Council meetings than all other candidates combined and 21 

oftentimes he was the only person in the room other than staff. Syracuse is a capital asset corporation with approximately 22 

$139 million in capital assets; it is governed by a six-member board of directors that are responsible to 9,167 customers who 23 

are parcel holders. Those parcel holders share in a $2.4 billion market value asset, which is an increase of nearly $1 billion in 24 

the last eight years and this is evidence that Syracuse is growing and doing so successfully. The revenues for the corporation 25 

were $36 million with expenditures of $22 million, which translates to a $14 million profit. If that $14 million were spent the 26 



City Council Regular Meeting 

December 11, 2018 

 

 

 

 

22 

 

 

way individual people may desire, it would be easy to spend the entire amount on several large projects very quickly; 1 

however, the City’s Administrative Services Director will not allow that to happen because he is good at his job of 2 

controlling the City’s budget. City sales tax revenues have increased by $300,000 in revenue over that same eight-year term, 3 

but there were shortfalls in other budgets in the City. Developers in the community have added capital assets worth $4.4 4 

million through projects they have completed and the City’s Redevelopment Agency (RDA) has made decisions that will 5 

lead to capital improvements and economic improvements. One of the interesting things that he has found out about is that 6 

there are only two local businesses that are in the top 10 employers: Smith’s and Wal-Mart. He then concluded that he is 7 

hopeful he will be selected to fill the vacancy on the Council and that he will serve as admirably as former Councilmember 8 

Andrea Anderson did.  9 

 10 

16. Selection of new Councilmember – roll call vote. 11 

 Councilmember Peterson stated that the things he is looking for in the individual to be selected to fill the vacancy 12 

include the following: someone that is able to ‘hit the ground running’, someone with budget knowledge or planning 13 

experience, someone with a unique perspective on Syracuse, and someone that would fit in with the current Council and may 14 

have the same ideals or goals for the City that former Councilmember Anderson had.  15 

 Councilmember Bolduc stated she is humbled by the quality of the candidate pool and their willingness to serve and 16 

expose themselves through this process.  17 

 The City Recorder distributed paper ballots to each Councilmember and instructed each Councilmember to vote for 18 

up to three candidates in order to narrow the field of candidates to four.  19 

 City Recorder Brown and City Attorney Roberts tallied the votes as follows:  20 

• Councilmember Peterson voted for Ms. Bingham, Mr. Teague, and Mr. Hammon; 21 

• Councilmember Savage voted for Ms. Bingham, Mr. Teague, and Mr. Vaughan; 22 

• Councilmember Bolduc voted for Ms. Bingham, Mr. Hall, and Mr. Schultz; 23 

• Councilmember Maughan voted for Ms. Bingham, Mr. Colvin, and Mr. Thorsen. 24 

 Ms. Brown declared the candidates advancing to the next round are Ms. Bingham and Mr. Teague, but a runoff vote 25 

is necessary to break the tie between Mr. Hammon, Mr. Vaughan, Mr. Hall, Mr. Schultz, Mr. Colvin, and Mr. Thorsen. She 26 



City Council Regular Meeting 

December 11, 2018 

 

 

 

 

23 

 

 

instructed the Councilmembers to use an additional ballot to vote for up to two of the candidates involved in the tie.  1 

 Ms. Brown and Mr. Roberts tallied the runoff votes as follows: 2 

• Councilmember Peterson voted for Mr. Hammon and Mr. Vaughan; 3 

• Councilmember Savage voted for Mr. Hammon and Mr. Thorsen; 4 

• Councilmember Bolduc voted for Mr. Hall, and Mr. Schultz; 5 

• Councilmember Maughan voted for Mr. Colvin, and Mr. Thorsen. 6 

Ms. Brown declared the candidates advancing to the next round with Ms. Bingham and Mr. Teague are Mr. Thorsen 7 

and Mr. Hammon.  8 

Mayor Gailey invited the Council to proceed with the interview process for each of the four remaining candidates in 9 

reverse alphabetical order.  10 

Grant Thorsen: 11 

Councilmember Peterson stated he places a lot of stock in an individual’s previous experience in seeking election to 12 

office. He added that the appointment the Council will make tonight is for just a one-year period and he asked if Mr. Thorsen 13 

would plan to seek election to the position after the one-year period. Mr. Thorsen answered yes; this is a long-term 14 

commitment for him. He ran for County Commission when he lived in Idaho and was unsuccessful, but he has a strong desire 15 

to be involved in his community at this level.  16 

Councilmember Maughan referenced Mr. Thorsen’s involvement with the Planning Commission and the fact that 17 

sometimes the Commission and the City Council have differing views. He asked Mr. Thorsen to express his view of the 18 

different roles of the two bodies. .Mr. Thorsen stated the Council has more leeway than the Planning Commission and they 19 

also have greater accountability to the citizens of the community. For this reason, he is not often surprised by decisions made 20 

by the Council that may differ from a recommendation made by the Commission. The Commission does examine the City 21 

Code and rely upon that to make their decisions and he is confident in the recommendations that are provided to the Council. 22 

However, there are different circumstances present when the Council receives input from the community regarding a given 23 

issue and that can be one reason for the manner in which a final decision is influenced.  24 

Councilmember Bolduc asked Mr. Thorsen his opinion about appropriate residential development for the City. Mr. 25 

Thorsen stated that he is confident in the City’s current General Plan, which does not allow high density development. The 26 



City Council Regular Meeting 

December 11, 2018 

 

 

 

 

24 

 

 

City is in the position to update or amend the General Plan and through the process of considering those updates, it may 1 

become clear that high density is appropriate for some areas of the City. He would be open to considering that option based 2 

upon the desires of the community, but until such changes are made, he will rely upon the current General Plan. He added 3 

that development is market driven and there are many factors that influence the market, but it has always been his opinion 4 

that the public should have a voice in the process and should be entitled to what they want.  5 

Councilmember Savage asked ‘what needs fixing in Syracuse’ and he also inquired to Mr. Thorsen’s priorities if he 6 

were chosen to fill the Council vacancy. Mr. Thorsen stated that he feels there may not necessarily be things that need to be 7 

fixed, but it will be important for the City to continue to keep up with growth and respond to the demands on the level of 8 

service associated with growth. The City has a good plan going forward and his priority would be to stick to that plan. An 9 

additional priority would be to respond to input from residents and developers alike in order to provide needed service. The 10 

public does not always know all pertinent data that is used to inform a decision and it may be appropriate to be more 11 

transparent in order for the public to trust the City and its leaders. 12 

Councilmember Peterson asked Mr. Thorsen to speak to his philosophy about parks. Mr. Thorsen stated the City has 13 

laid out a great baseline relative to the amount of park space needed in the community, but the struggle will be to update and 14 

add amenities to existing parks. Some parks are simply large open spaces and improvements are needed to make that space 15 

more usable as the public desires. He relayed an experience he had when coaching soccer at a field near the City’s Fire 16 

Station; his van got stuck in the mud as the parking area there is not paved. It is necessary to complete parks and improve 17 

park space to ensure they can be used appropriately. 18 

Seth Teague: 19 

Councilmember Peterson acknowledged Mr. Teague’s candidacy for office in the 2017 Municipal Election and 20 

asked if he would seek election again in the coming municipal election. He also asked Mr. Teague to speak to his philosophy 21 

about parks. Mr. Teague stated that he would not be present this evening if he were not interested in being an asset to the 22 

community in the long term; he is very interested in being a member of the City Council past the one-year appointment 23 

period being considered tonight. He added that it would be a detriment for someone to accept this position without some 24 

long-term goals in mind. He then addressed parks; he is a consumer of parks and outdoor recreation opportunities and shortly 25 

after moving to the City he discovered that he had to go to other communities in order to participate in certain programs or to 26 



City Council Regular Meeting 

December 11, 2018 

 

 

 

 

25 

 

 

find a suitable park in which his kids could recreate. He stated that it is a challenge to improve parks as desired by the 1 

residents, but he would make those needed improvements a priority.  2 

Councilmember Maughan referenced the fact that Mr. Teague has lived in Syracuse for just 2.5 years and he asked 3 

how he would be able to connect well with the feel of Syracuse given his limited residency. Mr. Teague stated that it is hard 4 

to quantify or define the feel of Syracuse; as he was campaigning for office in 2017 he spoke with many residents and there is 5 

a great deal of diversity relative their desires for the community. There is an older population that wants Syracuse to remain a 6 

bedroom community that is not disturbed by growth trends, but there is also a demographic that wants this to be a vibrant 7 

community with arts, recreation, and growth opportunities. The City has a great growth opportunity on the horizon associated 8 

with the extension of the West Davis Corridor through northern Davis County and the manner in which the City capitalizes 9 

on that opportunity will shape its future dramatically. He stated he feels he has the ability to enhance that decision-making 10 

process due to his past experience. He stated it is not a detriment for him to have lived in the City for just 2.5 years. 11 

Councilmember Maughan stated that regardless of the decision made regarding the future of the community, there will be 12 

individuals who are upset and he asked Mr. Teague how he would respond to negative feedback and displeasure. Mr. Teague 13 

stated that there is a definite challenge when making decisions that will impact multiple different groups with differing 14 

opinions. It is necessary to use logic and reason after performing deep analysis to proceed with a decision, but of utmost 15 

importance is transparency in that process to ensure public trust.  16 

Councilmember Bolduc inquired as to Mr. Teague’s opinion regarding property rights for both occupied and 17 

undeveloped properties. Mr. Teague stated that there is a significant amount of undeveloped property in Syracuse and this 18 

means there is much opportunity for growth; sometimes, in order to facilitate responsible growth, property owners may feel 19 

that their rights are being impinged upon. It is his philosophy that it is necessary to be respectful and responsive to citizens 20 

and property owners alike, but also be willing to make tough decisions that benefit the greater good. 21 

Councilmember Savage followed up on Councilmember Bolduc’s question and asked who should have the final say 22 

in the event that a property owner desires something different for their property than what the City has called for in the 23 

General Plan. He also asked Mr. Teague to respond to the same questions he asked Mr. Thorsen: ‘what needs fixing in 24 

Syracuse’ and what his priorities would be if chosen to fill the vacancy on the Council. Mr. Teague responded to the first 25 

question indicating that he would rely upon laws and ordinances to make the final decision. He then stated that in response to 26 



City Council Regular Meeting 

December 11, 2018 

 

 

 

 

26 

 

 

question two, he is not sure there are things that necessarily ‘need fixing’, but that enhancing might be the better word; over 1 

time, services and infrastructure deteriorate and the City must work diligently to keep pace with growth to ensure that growth 2 

is sustainable into the City’s future. It is not an option to leverage the future of the City on the back of new growth so the City 3 

must be strategic in determining how to manage and plan for the future. In response to the third question he indicated his 4 

initial priority would be to spend time with City Administration to get to know them and gain a clear understanding of the 5 

services they provide. He would also like to familiarize himself with planning process and the work being done by the City’s 6 

Planning Commission in order to understand the landscape and environment of that area of the City. He would also like to 7 

become familiar with the City’s economic development and recruitment efforts to inform ideas for making the City more 8 

attractive to businesses that will provide the sustainable base that the community needs.  9 

Danny Hammon: 10 

Councilmember Peterson asked Mr. Hammon if he would seek election to the City Council or if he would be 11 

satisfied serving the remainder of the current term. Mr. Hammon stated that he has put a lot of thought into that issue and has 12 

decided that he feels strongly that he needs to get back into local government; he is committed to serving and regardless of 13 

whether he is selected tonight to fill the vacancy, he will seek election to the City Council in the 2019 municipal election. 14 

Councilmember Peterson asked Mr. Hammon how he feels about the thoughts and ideas of newer residents given that he is a 15 

lifelong resident of Syracuse. Mr. Hammon stated that the City will fail if it tries to manage growth on its own without 16 

examining what has been successful in other communities; he works for Roy City and ten years ago the Council there made 17 

the decision that they wanted to remain a bedroom community. Open spaces filled up with houses rather than uses that 18 

generate higher tax revenues and the city is now a larger bedroom community with a struggling tax base and many challenges 19 

related to service provision and meeting future needs. The goal should be to have the foresight to recognize the needs of the 20 

City in the future and create a plan that will facilitate responsible growth to fund services and needs of the City at build out. 21 

There are many communities in the area that have done a phenomenal job of striking a healthy balance between responsible 22 

residential and commercial growth and those cities are successful. If the Council chooses to pander to one group of residents 23 

over another, problems will arise. His approach would be to focus on balance relative to responsible long-term growth.  24 

Councilmember Bolduc stated that when Mr. Hammon served as a City Councilmember previously, there were 25 

some difficult issues that the Council and City Administration dealt with; she asked Mr. Hammon to discuss some of the 26 



City Council Regular Meeting 

December 11, 2018 

 

 

 

 

27 

 

 

ramifications of working in a hostile environment. Mr. Hammon stated that when he was elected to the City Council, he had 1 

support from residents on ‘both sides of the aisle’, but as issues arose, he was not always able to please both sides. He stated 2 

that he learned some valuable lessons from that experience, the biggest being that there is more than one right way to do 3 

things. He stated that at the time he felt his way was the right way and he did not deviate from that philosophy, but in the end 4 

he realized that issues could have been handled differently and the outcome may have been more favorable for all involved. 5 

He now understands that if any one member of a governing body digs in their heels to get their way, they will lose their 6 

inability to help and guide the community that they care about. He stated that he got involved in City government because he 7 

loves Syracuse and he still has a that love, but he would conduct himself in a much different manner than he did in the past; 8 

he would have a goal of creating unity within the community and bringing people on all sides of an issue together.  9 

Councilmember Savage asked Mr. Hammon for an example of something that he would do differently than when he 10 

previously served as a Councilmember. Mr. Hammon stated that during his term as a Councilmember, the biggest issue dealt 11 

with the division of power between the Council and the Mayor positions on the governing body. There were some 12 

opportunities for compromises that he did not take and he would change that now if he could; he lost his ability to be 13 

effective and to be a positive influence in the City. No matter how many good things he did, people remember the negative 14 

things and that is quite often what happens for most elected officials and that is a lesson he has learned. He will work to 15 

minimize negative things within the City. 16 

Councilmember Maughan stated that Mr. Hammon has taken a sworn oath to Roy City for his employment there; if 17 

chosen to fill this vacancy, he would take a sworn oath to Syracuse and he asked how he would honor both. Mr. Hammon 18 

stated it would be very easy to honor both as there is no conflict between the two positions. What he does in Roy City to 19 

protect life, health, and safety of residents does not negatively impact what he would be doing in Syracuse; additionally, his 20 

job allows him a great deal of flexibility to attend meetings and represent the City outside of City Council meetings and he 21 

would make sure that his commitments to Syracuse are honored. Councilmember Maughan asked which city would take 22 

priority if there were to be a conflict between the two. Mr. Hammon stated that he cannot see how the two could ever 23 

conflict.  24 

Lisa Bingham: 25 

Councilmember Peterson asked Ms. Bingham if she plans to seek election to a City Council position if chosen to fill 26 



City Council Regular Meeting 

December 11, 2018 

 

 

 

 

28 

 

 

this vacancy. Ms. Bingham answered yes; it would be foolish to invest a year in this position is the successful candidate did 1 

not have plans to continue. She stated she would use the knowledge gained over the next year to influence a four-year term 2 

on the City Council. Councilmember Peterson then asked Ms. Bingham how she feels when she hears the desires of short-3 

term residents given that she is a life long resident of the City. Ms. Bingham sated that her children are the future of the City 4 

and she thinks of them in order to gain perspective on the desires for the community; she intends to keep her children as close 5 

to her as possible because this is their home and they love it and she can see how it may be necessary to provide options for 6 

the next generation in order for them to make their home in Syracuse. Also, it is necessary to provide adequate amenities and 7 

services for the future generations based upon growth. It is not necessary to dismiss what has happened in the City in the past 8 

several years and decades, but, rather, the lessons can be learned from the past to make improvements.  9 

Councilmember Bolduc stated a wise person recently told her that true leaders make tough decisions and deal with 10 

the heat while others will wait until a crisis to make a decision and then say they had no choice but to make it. She asked Ms. 11 

Bingham how she would deal with the ‘heat’. Ms. Bingham stated she has recognized there is a lot of ‘heat’ associated with 12 

many of the decisions the Council is charged with making; 10-years ago she would not have had thick enough skin to deal 13 

with that heat, but now she is in a different season of her life where she is able to take responsibility for her actions and stand 14 

in her convictions even if that means that people are upset with her or may not like her. She stated that foresight in decision 15 

making is necessary and the Council must be able to stand by their decisions with the conviction that they were made for the 16 

greater good.  17 

Councilmember Savage asked Ms. Bingham ‘what needs fixing’ in Syracuse and what her priorities would be if she 18 

were chosen to fill the Council vacancy. Ms. Bingham stated that she would hate to look at the City and say it is broken 19 

because she does not think it is; the City has had some tremendous leadership over the years and many great things have 20 

taken place. However, there are needs associated with growth, one of which is adequate park space. She supports a regional 21 

park project in order to give City residents access to field space for practice and game play rather than being forced to travel 22 

to other communities. Her own children had to travel to Clinton, West Point, and Clearfield to participate in team sports and 23 

she remembered thinking it was odd that she was paying a fee to Syracuse City, but there was not adequate space in the City 24 

to accommodate teams. She referenced Barnes Park in Kaysville City as a park that draws people from many different 25 

communities across the State to participate in league and tournament sporting events and she would love for Syracuse to have 26 



City Council Regular Meeting 

December 11, 2018 

 

 

 

 

29 

 

 

something like that to draw people into the City. She then addressed Councilmember Savage’s second question and noted 1 

that her first priority would be to listen to each Councilmember to learn what they feel are the pressing needs of the City. 2 

Someone recently asked if she has been involved in many City Council meetings and the truthful answer to that is no because 3 

she has had other priorities in her life, but she is in a position to be dedicated to this position and she would rely upon her 4 

peers and City staff to learn the pressing needs of the City.  5 

Councilmember Maughan stated that he feels the Council has been able to accomplish quite a bit in the past three 6 

years and that is largely due to the fact that several Councilmembers have gotten involved in things outside of just attending 7 

twice monthly City Council meetings. He asked Ms. Bingham if she is in a position to do the same. Ms. Bingham answered 8 

yes; she has time to dedicate herself to this position and that includes participating in events outside of City Council 9 

meetings. She also has the time to thoroughly study issues and visit project sites in advance of meetings to be familiar with 10 

the matters that she asked to consider.  11 

Mayor Gailey closed the interview portion of the meeting. 12 

Councilmember Maughan stated that there is just one of the candidates that all four Councilmembers voted for in the 13 

first round of voting and after interviewing those four candidates, he still supports that candidate. He added that candidate 14 

also lives in the area of the City where former Councilmember Andrea Anderson lived and she could represent that area. He 15 

added that he also sees many of the same qualities in Ms. Bingham that made Councilmember Anderson a good 16 

Councilmember.  17 

COUNCILMEMBER MAUGHAN MOVED TO APPOINT LISA BINGHAM TO THE SYRACUSE CITY 18 

COUNCIL TO FILL THE VACANCY CREATED BY THE RESIGNATION OF COUNCILMEMBER ANDREA 19 

ANDERSON. COUNCILMEMBER PETERSON SECONDED THE MOTION.  20 

Councilmember Peterson commended Councilmember Maughan for stepping forward to make the motion, but 21 

briefly commented on the qualities of each candidate that was considered this evening. He noted that he could have supported 22 

any of the four final candidates that were interviewed in the final round, but he agreed that Ms. Bingham shares many of the 23 

characteristics that made Councilmember Anderson a quality Councilmember. Councilmember Maughan agreed and stated 24 

that his move to quickly make a motion should not be considered a reflection on any of the other three final candidates; each 25 

of them have amazing qualities and could have served as a good Councilmember. He simply did not want the Council to 26 



City Council Regular Meeting 

December 11, 2018 

 

 

 

 

30 

 

 

engage in lengthy debate about individual people. 1 

Mayor Gailey stated there has been a motion and second to appoint Lisa Bingham to the Syracuse City Council and 2 

he called for a vote; ALL VOTED ‘AYE’.  3 

Mayor Gailey then relayed a historical wartime story about the fact that may battles ensued over land and historical 4 

figures believed that there would always be land available over which to fight; however, that is not the case and growth is 5 

eating up raw land and soon there will be no large parcels of land available for development. He referred back to his story 6 

and stated that one soldier made the statement that all he and his troop had was one another and they needed to decide 7 

whether they were willing to fight for each other’s honor. Honor is so valuable to him and one of the things that he loves 8 

about this community is the quality of its residents. He stated that former Councilmember Anderson was loved by her peers 9 

and she brought something to the Council that will be deeply missed; however, he feels that Ms. Bingham can fill that role 10 

and be a valuable member of the Council. He thanked the other candidates who were considered tonight and encouraged 11 

them to stay involved in the community.  12 

 13 

17. Oath of Office administered to new Councilmember. 14 

 City Recorder Brown administered the Oath of Office to Lisa W. Bingham. Councilmember Bingham then took her 15 

seat among her fellow Councilmembers.  16 

 17 

18. Public comments. 18 

 Seth Teague congratulated Councilmember Bingham and wished her good luck in her first year. He also thanked the 19 

Council for this process.  20 

 Police Chief Atkin provided an update regarding the amount of money raised last night in the annual Guns and 21 

Hoses basketball game; approximately $10,000 was generated and that will be added to the amount that was raised in 22 

advance of the event for a total of just under $25,000. He stated it took a lot of time and effort, but he is pleased with the 23 

success of the event.    24 

 25 

19. Mayor/Council announcements and discussion of future agenda 26 



City Council Regular Meeting 

December 11, 2018 

 

 

 

 

31 

 

 

items. 1 

The Council and Mayor provided announcements about upcoming community events and other opportunities for 2 

public involvement. They also discussed items the Council would like included on future meeting agendas.  3 

 4 

20. Consideration of adjourning into Closed Executive Session pursuant 5 

to the provisions of Section 52-4-205 of the Open and Public Meetings 6 

Law for the purpose of discussing the character, professional 7 

competence, or physical or mental health of an individual; pending or 8 

reasonably imminent litigation; or the purchase, exchange, or lease of 9 

real property (if necessary). 10 

City Manager Bovero reported that Administration has determined that the Closed Session is not necessary this 11 

evening.  12 

 13 

 14 

 At 9:43 p.m. COUNCILMEMBER MAUGHAN MADE A MOTION TO ADJOURN.  COUNCILMEMBER 15 

SAVAGE SECONDED THE MOTION; ALL VOTED IN FAVOR.  16 

 17 

_____________________________________  ___________________________________ 18 

Mike Gailey      Cassie Z. Brown, MMC 19 
Mayor                                  City Recorder 20 
 21 
Date approved: ________________________ 22 



1 

Minutes of the Syracuse City Council Work Session Meeting, December 11, 2018 1 
   2 

Minutes of the Work Session meeting of the Syracuse City Council held on December 11, 2018 at 6:05 p.m., in the 3 
Council Work Session Room, 1979 West 1900 South, Syracuse City, Davis County, Utah. 4 
 5 

Present:  Councilmembers: Corinne N. Bolduc 6 
 Dave Maughan  7 
 Doug Peterson 8 

     Jordan Savage 9 
             10 
  Mayor Mike Gailey 11 

City Manager Brody Bovero 12 
  City Recorder Cassie Z. Brown 13 
 14 
City Employees Present: 15 
  Administrative Services Director Steve Marshall 16 
  City Attorney Paul Roberts 17 
  Public Works Director Robert Whiteley 18 
  Police Chief Garret Atkin 19 
  Fire Chief Aaron Byington 20 
  Parks and Recreation Director Kresta Robinson 21 
  Community and Economic Development Director Noah Steele 22 
  Deputy Fire Chief Jo Hamblin 23 
            24 
The purpose of the Work Session was to review business meeting agenda item 10, Final Plat Approval, Still Water 25 

Phases 5 and 6, located at approximately 2000 West Parkview Drive; review business meeting agenda item 11, Subdivision 26 

Plat Conditional Approval, Ninigret North 3 Subdivision, located at approximately 1585 W. 300 S.; and review business 27 

meeting agenda item 13, discussion of Davis County “3rd Quarter” Sales Tax.  28 

 29 

Review agenda item 10, Final Plat Approval, Still Water 30 

Phases 5 and 6, located at approximately 2000 West 31 

Parkview Drive. 32 

A staff memo from the Community and Economic Development (CED) Department provided the following 33 

information about the application:  34 

Location:   2000 West Parkview Drive 35 

Current Zoning:  RPC 36 

General Plan:   RPC 37 

Total Subdivision Area:   38 

Phase 5:  19.22 Acres    39 

DRAFT 



City Council Work Session 

December 11, 2018 

 

 2 

 

 

Phase 6:  14.94 Acres 1 

 Number of Lots: 2 

Phase 5:  77    3 

Phase 6:  90 4 

The applicant has requested approval of two final subdivision plats as part of the Still Water development being 5 

built by Woodside Homes. Phase 5 will complete the central section of the development between 2000 West and the Davis 6 

County Canal. Phase 6 will be the first new phase west of 2000 West. During the regular meeting on December 4, 2018 the 7 

Planning Commission unanimously recommended conditional approval including the following condition: all staff comments 8 

shall be addressed before the plat is recorded with Davis County. 9 

All planning and fire comments have been addressed for phase 5 and there are two engineering comments. The City 10 

Engineer has expressed that he is comfortable with a conditional approval regarding these comments. 11 

All planning and fire comments have been addressed for phase 6 and there are 11 engineering comments. The City 12 

Engineer has expressed that he is comfortable with a conditional approval regarding these comments. 13 

The memo concluded that because there are outstanding staff comments on both plats, staff recommends they be 14 

conditionally approved. 15 

Mr. Steele reviewed the staff memo.  16 

  17 

Review agenda item 11, Subdivision Plat Conditional 18 

Approval, Ninigret North 3 Subdivision, located at 19 

approximately 1585 W. 300 S. 20 

A staff memo from the Community and Economic Development (CED) Department provided the following 21 

information about the application: 22 

Location:   1585 W. 300 S. 23 

Current Zoning:  Business Park 24 

General Plan:   Business Park 25 

Total Subdivision Area:  3.64 Acres 26 

The applicant has requested approval of a two-lot subdivision which is intended to accommodate 27 



City Council Work Session 

December 11, 2018 

 

 3 

 

 

a mortuary on lot one. Lot two will remain vacant until it is developed. During the regular meeting on December 4, 2018 the 1 

Planning Commission unanimously recommended conditional approval of this subdivision plat with the following condition: 2 

all staff comments shall be addressed before the plat is recorded with Davis County. All fire and planning review comments 3 

have been addressed. There are three remaining engineering comments and the City Engineer has expressed that he is 4 

comfortable recommending conditional approval of the plat. 5 

The memo concluded that because there are outstanding staff comments on the plat, staff recommends it be 6 

conditionally approved. 7 

Mr. Steele reviewed his staff memo and facilitated discussion among the Council regarding the timing of the project 8 

and the process for considering the plans for the future development of lot two, which will remain vacant at this time. There 9 

was also high-level discussion regarding the permitted and conditional uses allowed in the City’s Business Park zoning 10 

designation.  11 

 12 

Review agenda item 13, discussion of Davis County “3rd 13 

Quarter” Sales Tax. 14 

A staff memo from the City Manager explained there is a discussion in Davis County regarding the possibility of 15 

enacting the “3rd Quarter” local option sales tax, which can only be used for road or transit enhancement projects.  If there is 16 

support for this local option in the County, an anticipated schedule for its implementation would be as follows: 17 

o Mayors of each municipality provide signed letters of support to the County Commission by the end of 18 

2018. 19 

o At the first COG meeting of the year (January 16th), the adoption of the 3rd quarter cent would be on the 20 

agenda for discussion and recommendation to the Commission. 21 

o The Commission would move to enact the tax during the 1st quarter of 2019. 22 

o During the 2019 legislative session, amendments to Section 59-12-2217 would be passed (and effective 23 

July 1, 2019). 24 

o The Commission would notify the Utah Tax Commission by April 1st that the tax has been enacted. 25 



City Council Work Session 

December 11, 2018 

 

 4 

 

 

o After adoption by the Commission and likely during the second quarter of 2019, a sub-committee of the 1 

COG would prepare the process required by statute for the distribution of funds. This process would be 2 

adopted by July 1, 2019. 3 

o Funds would begin to be collected starting July 1, 2019 for distribution as soon as a process is adopted, 4 

projects submitted and approved, and distribution could start in 2020. 5 

The attached info sheets provide some detail on the enactment and administration of the tax.  In addition, there has 6 

been some discussion at the state level to modify the 3rd Quarter tax legislation to also add maintenance and reconstruction 7 

projects as eligible uses of the revenue. In July of 2018, City Attorney Paul Roberts provided a memo to the City Council 8 

regarding this local option sales tax, and the various options available to the City. The purpose of this discussion item is 9 

twofold: 10 

1. To update the Council from last July on the discussions taking place at the county and state level regarding 11 

this local option sales tax. 12 

2. Discuss the merits of authorizing the Mayor to send a letter of support for the local option, or not. 13 

Mayor Gailey reviewed the staff memo and introduced the concept of a 3rd Quarter sales tax collection. City 14 

Manager Bovero then reviewed a document prepared by the Wasatch Front Regional Council (WFRC) detailing the purpose 15 

of the local option sales tax and the manner in which it would be imposed if approved by the Davis County Commission. The 16 

eligible uses of the local option funds are defined in State Code, but are strictly limited to transportation projects that provide 17 

new capacity, mitigate congestion, preserve corridors, or cover debt service or bond issuance costs. There is movement 18 

throughout the County to determine whether local municipalities are supportive of the concept of implementing the tax.  19 

Council Commissioner Stevenson expressed to the Council the Commission’s position on the 3rd Quarter Sales Tax; 20 

he will support the implementation of the tax regardless of whether all municipalities in the County support it, but the 21 

Commission felt it important to communicate the matter to cities and give governing bodies an opportunity to provide input.  22 

WFRC Executive Director Andrew Gruber expounded on the information provided in the WFRC document and he 23 

and the Council then engaged in high level discussion regarding the eligible uses for the local option funds, with an emphasis 24 

on the process followed by the Davis County Council of Governments (COG) to determine how the revenues would be 25 

distributed throughout the County. The Council expressed concern about representation on the COG and whether a decision 26 

to not support the 3rd quarter sales tax would impact Syracuse City’s ability to receive funds. They also communicated that 27 



City Council Work Session 

December 11, 2018 

 

 5 

 

 

they feel the decision to implement the tax is up to the County and they do not need support from cities. Commissioner 1 

Stevenson acknowledged that is correct, but they felt it important to communicate the issue to cities in the County rather than 2 

blindside them by implementing a tax without having first sought buy-in. Mr. Gruber added that cities will have input on how 3 

the tax revenues will be spent throughout the County and the Commission felt it important to reach out to cities for that 4 

purpose. The Council ultimately concluded to not take an action expressing an opinion on the 3rd Quarter sales tax issue and 5 

acknowledged that the County can proceed with taking action to implement the tax. Councilmember Maughan stated that his 6 

only concern is that the COG may take actions that would limit funds in Syracuse because the Council did not support the tax 7 

and Commissioner Stevenson stated that will not happen and it is likely that the COG will not know which cities did or did 8 

not support the tax.  9 

 10 

The meeting recessed at 6:51 p.m. and reconvened at 9:53 p.m. 11 

  12 

Review of certified annexation petition submitted by 13 

C.W. Land for property located at approximately 2600 14 

W.3000 S.  15 

A staff memo from the Community and Economic Development (CED) Department explained the city has received 16 

a request to annex 9.51 acres from developers C.W. Land. The property is located approximately 2600 W 3000 S (Gentile 17 

St.) west of the public works offices. The land is owned by the LDS church. The annexation is limited to a portion of a larger 18 

parcel. A representative from the church has signed the petition. The property is being actively farmed and is also partly left 19 

undeveloped. There is no public road access to the property. Utilities would come from the north from Syracuse Meadows 20 

subdivision or from the east from Still Water subdivision. It is anticipated that the property would be developed in 21 

conjunction with the Clark family property to the north also known as 'Shoreline'. The annexation petition was accepted by 22 

the City Council on October 9, 2018 after which the application certification process began. The certification process 23 

involves notifying the affected stakeholders including the sewer district, school district, Davis County, and the mosquito 24 

abatement district. The process also includes a comment waiting period. Once the period is over, the City Council is clear to 25 



City Council Work Session 

December 11, 2018 

 

 6 

 

 

approve the annexation via ordinance should it choose to do so, after receiving a recommendation by the Planning 1 

Commission. 2 

The memo referenced the City's adopted annexation policy plan. The plan lays out nine criteria for annexation. If the 3 

proposed annexation is developed as proposed, in a cohesive master planned development, the criteria for development 4 

would be satisfied. As a standalone property, the development potential is premature but together with the surrounding 5 

properties, both north and south, should provide the needed transportation and utility infrastructure to support development 6 

and provide needed housing options to our residents. With this motion, the Planning Commission needs to provide a 7 

recommendation for the zoning that will be applied to the property upon annexation. The General Plan map is R-1 and 8 

therefore is recommended that this property be assigned the R-1 zone upon annexation. The Planning Commission voted on 9 

November 6 to recommend approval of this item with a R-1 zoning. After the City Council reviews this item in a work 10 

session, the item will go to a voting meeting where the annexation could be approved by ordinance. 11 

 CED Director Steele reviewed the staff memo and reviewed the annexation plat to orient the Council to the location 12 

of the subject property. There was high level discussion about the process of assigning a zoning designation to the property 13 

upon annexation with City Attorney Roberts expressing the option to first annex and later assign the zone along with a 14 

development agreement for the project.  15 

 Petitioner Greg Day communicated to the City the reason he feels the annexation of this property will benefit the 16 

City in the long term; the project will facilitate improved transportation to Gentile Street as well as trail connectivity in the 17 

area of the subject property.  18 

 The Council authorized staff to proceed with advertising an action item to approve the annexation in a future 19 

business meeting. 20 

 21 

 22 

The meeting adjourned at 10:03 p.m. 23 

 24 
 25 
______________________________   __________________________________ 26 
Mike Gailey      Cassie Z. Brown, MMC 27 
Mayor                                  City Recorder 28 
 29 
Date approved: ________________ 30 



1 

 

Minutes of the Syracuse City Council Regular Meeting, January 8, 2019.   1 
   2 

Minutes of the Regular meeting of the Syracuse City Council held on January 8, 2019 at 6:13 p.m., in the Council 3 
Chambers, 1979 West 1900 South, Syracuse City, Davis County, Utah. 4 
 5 

Present:  Councilmembers:  Lisa W. Bingham  6 
 Corinne N. Bolduc   7 
 Dave Maughan (participated via electronic means) 8 
 Doug Peterson 9 
 Jordan Savage (participated via electronic means 10 

             11 
  Mayor Mike Gailey 12 
  City Manager Brody Bovero 13 
  City Recorder Cassie Z. Brown 14 
 15 
City Employees Present: 16 
  City Attorney Paul Roberts 17 

Finance Director Steve Marshall 18 
  Public Works Director Robert Whiteley 19 
  Police Chief Garret Atkin  20 
  Fire Chief Aaron Byington 21 
  Community and Economic Development Director Noah Steele   22 
   23 

1.  Meeting Called to Order/Adopt Agenda 24 

Mayor Gailey called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. as a regularly scheduled meeting, with notice of time, place, 25 

and agenda provided 24 hours in advance to the newspaper and each Councilmember. Councilmember Peterson provided an 26 

invocation and Councilmember Bingham led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.    27 

Mayor Gailey reported that it is necessary to adjust the agenda tonight to remove Colleen Lynch’s name from 28 

consideration for appointment to the Arts Council at her request.  29 

 COUNCILMEMBER PETERSON MOVED TO ADOPT THE AGENDA AS AMENDED. COUNCILMEMBER 30 

BOLDUC SECONDED THE MOTION; ALL VOTED IN FAVOR.  31 

 32 

2. Public comment. 33 

 There were no public comments.   34 

 35 

3. Presentation of Syracuse City and Syracuse Chamber of Commerce “Award 36 

for Excellence” for the month of January 2019. 37 

The City wishes to recognize citizens who strive for excellence in athletics, academics, arts and/or community service. 38 

To that end, in an effort to recognize students and individuals residing in the City, the Community and Economic Development, 39 

DRAFT 



City Council Regular Meeting 

January 8, 2019 

 

 

 

 

2 

 

 

in conjunction with the Syracuse Chamber of Commerce, present the recipients for the “Syracuse City & Chamber of 1 

Commerce Award for Excellence”.  This monthly award recognizes the outstanding performance of a male and female who 2 

excel in athletics, academics, arts, and/or community service.  The monthly award recipients will each receive a certificate and 3 

be recognized at a City Council meeting; have their photograph placed at City Hall and the Community Center; be written 4 

about in the City Newsletter, City’s Facebook and Twitter Feed, and the City’s website.   5 

Chamber of Commerce representative Keith Kennington noted both youth receiving the award for January 2019 were 6 

nominated by the staff of Syracuse Junior High.   7 

Lainee Hamblin: 8 

Lainee is a staff favorite and is a top student with 3.714 GPA with great character. She is helpful and cares 9 

about others. She supports students with special needs and helps others with their homework. Lainee is on 10 

the volleyball team and plays competition basketball, choir, and piano. She is a peer tutor and a positive 11 

influence to all. 12 

 13 

  Jared Hunter:  14 

Jared is a top student and athlete. He is a "Gentle Giant" and seeks out those who need friends and spends 15 

time with them. He goes the extra mile to do well in all areas of his life and does his homework without 16 

parental reminders. Jared is on the basketball team and a member of the Jazz band. He participates in church 17 

youth leadership and service. He currently has all "A's" on his grades. 18 

 19 

4. Recognition of former Councilmember Andrea Anderson. 20 

 Mayor Gailey stated it may be hard to believe that six different individuals elected to serve on the City’s Governing 21 

Body, along with the senior staff of the City, are able to get along with one another and even grow to love one another. However, 22 

that has been his experience while serving as a Councilmember and now as Mayor. He noted former Councilmember Anderson 23 

served as a member of the Governing Body for three years and she has been a tremendous asset and will be greatly missed.  24 



City Council Regular Meeting 

January 8, 2019 

 

 

 

 

3 

 

 

 City Manager Bovero stated that it has been the tradition of the City to recognize the service of former 1 

Councilmembers by presenting them with a token of the City’s appreciation; he presented Ms. Anderson with a clock to display 2 

at her home and thanked her for being independent minded and thoughtful about what is best for the residents of the community. 3 

He stated that he can speak for City staff and say that each of them enjoyed working with her and they are sad to see her leave 4 

her position. He wished her the best in the future and thanked her for her effort and commitment to Syracuse City.  5 

 Councilmember Bolduc then stated Eleanor Roosevelt once said, “great minds discuss ideas, average minds discuss 6 

events, and small minds discuss people.” As she has reflected on that quote during her time on the Council, she has come to 7 

understand that people may talk about people or events because taking about ideas can put people in a vulnerable position. 8 

Ideally, a group is willing to listen to and evaluate all proposed ideas in order to reach a consensus with respect for one another; 9 

Ms. Anderson personified this ideal and because of that, she was very effective and trusted. She stated she is pleased to call 10 

Ms. Anderson her friend and she will be truly missed. She then presented Ms. Anderson with the key to Syracuse City and 11 

thanked her on behalf of the entire City Council.  12 

 Ms. Anderson stated it was a privilege and an honor to serve as a Councilmember; she feels very grateful for the 13 

friendships she has made and the opportunity she had to serve such great citizens.  14 

 15 

5.  Victim Advocate Report 16 

 Syracuse City/Clinton City Victim Advocate Alex Smith used the aid of a PowerPoint presentation to provide the 17 

Council with a report of her activities since her last report in March of 2018. She served 109 victims from April 1 to December 18 

31, 2018 – 79 were female and 30 were male. She provided a chart illustrating crime victim types and a comparison of the 19 

crimes in Syracuse and Clinton Cities with crimes in Clearfield City. She then expounded on some of the services she has 20 

provided int eh last year, which can be categorized in the following categories: information and referral; emotional support and 21 

safety services; criminal/civil justice system assistance; and other services. She also discussed the work that has been done 22 

since March of 2018 to continue to build the Victim Services program and she presented educational material that has been 23 

created to be provided to victims so they are aware of options available to them. She has attended several events to advertise 24 



City Council Regular Meeting 

January 8, 2019 

 

 

 

 

4 

 

 

the Victims Service program, including Heritage Days events in Syracuse and Clinton, a Lady Lion’s Club event, and the 1 

Syracuse Nigh Out Against Crime event. She concluded with providing a success story of a survivor who was assisted by the 2 

Victims Service program; the survivor is a 35-year-old Hispanic female who was living with her offender and his parents; she 3 

was an unemployed stay-at-home mother who initially suffered financial abuse. This led to a 13-year history of violence in the 4 

abusive relationship, including domestic violence assaults from 2014 to 2018, culminating with aggravated assault that resulted 5 

in hospitalization for brain swelling and bleeding and multiple head traumas. Brain surgery was required, and the victim was 6 

in the hospital over one month; she lost her children to the State during this time. This was the ‘final straw’ for the victim and 7 

she ultimately secured a protective order against her offender and moved to transitional housing; her case is still in progress in 8 

the court system, but the offender is facing aggravated assault charges, which is a second-degree felony. The victim is now 9 

employed and receiving supportive resources and case management. She also regained custody of her children and they are 10 

safe. She provided the following quote from the victim: “My advocate has been so helpful, without them I would not be where 11 

I am today. Because of them I was able to get into safe harbors transitional housing and because of that I was able to get my 12 

kids back from foster care. My advocate continues to help me with any questions I have and is always making sure to do the 13 

best she can to help me in any way.” 14 

 Ms. Smith concluded by thanking the Council for their support of the program and she emphasized the program’s 15 

value. The Council indicated they have heard great things about the program, and they thanked her for the service she provides.  16 

 City Attorney Roberts also communicated his support for the service provided by Ms. Smith, which has a positive 17 

impact on the legal system in Syracuse and Clinton cities.  18 

 19 

6. Approval of minutes. 20 

The following minutes were reviewed by the City Council: Work Session and Special Meeting of November 27, 2018. 21 

  COUNCILMEMBER PETERSON MADE A MOTION TO APPROVE THE MINUTES LISTED ON THE 22 

AGENDA AS PRESENTED. COUNCILMEMBER BOLDUC SECONDED THE MOTION; ALL VOTED AYE. 23 

 24 



City Council Regular Meeting 

January 8, 2019 

 

 

 

 

5 

 

 

7a. Common consent: Proposed Resolution R19-02 appointing Colleen 1 

and Russell Lynch to the Syracuse Arts Council. 2 

An administrative staff memo explained Arts Council leadership has requested that Colleen and Russell Lynch be 3 

appointed to the Arts Council Board. Syracuse City Code Title Three provides a process for appointing members of the Arts 4 

Council as follows: 5 

3.09.020(B) Terms of Office.  The terms of office for the five (5) Board members, who are not a member 6 

of the Recreation Department, shall be for five (5) years. These members’ terms shall be 7 

staggered so that no more than one (1) member’s term expires at the same time. The terms 8 

of office for at-large and ex-officio members shall be five (5) years from the date of 9 

appointment. The term of office for the Recreation Department staff designated as a 10 

member of the Board shall be as determined by the Department Director. Appointments to 11 

the Board shall be made no later than the first City Council meeting in July of each year.  12 

In circumstances where appointments are not made prior to the first City Council meeting 13 

in July of each year, said appointments shall be made as soon as reasonably possible 14 

thereafter.   15 

COUNCILMEMBER BOLDUC MOVED TO ADOPT RESOLUTION R19-02 AS AMENDED TO REMOVE 16 

COLLEEN LYNCH’S NAME FROM THE RESOLUTION. COUNCILMEMBER BINGHAM SECONDED THE MOTION; 17 

ALL VOTED IN FAVOR.  18 

 19 

8. Public hearing – Proposed Ordinance 2019-01 declaring the annexation of 9.51 20 

acres of property located at approximately 2600 West 3000 South and establishing 21 

zoning for the property. 22 

A staff memo from the Community and Economic Development (CED) Department explained the City has received 23 

a request to annex 9.51 acres from developers C.W. Land. The property is located approximately 2600 West 3000 South 24 



City Council Regular Meeting 

January 8, 2019 

 

 

 

 

6 

 

 

(Gentile St.) west of the public works offices. The land is owned by the LDS church. The annexation is limited to a portion of 1 

a larger 94-acre parcel. A representative from the church has signed the petition. The property is being actively farmed and is 2 

also partly left undeveloped. There is no public road access to the property. Utilities would come from the north from Syracuse 3 

Meadows subdivision or from the east from Still Water subdivision. It is anticipated that the property would be developed in 4 

conjunction with the Clark family property to the north also known as 'Shoreline'. 5 

The annexation petition was accepted by the City Council on October 9th after which the application certification 6 

process began. The certification process involves notifying the affected stakeholders including the sewer district, school district, 7 

Davis County, and the mosquito abatement district. The process also includes a comment waiting period. Once the period is 8 

over, the City Council is clear to approve the annexation via ordinance should it choose to do so, after receiving a 9 

recommendation by the Planning Commission. 10 

The memo referenced the City's adopted annexation policy plan. The plan lays out nine criteria for annexation. If the 11 

proposed annexation is developed as proposed, in a cohesive master planned development, the criteria for development would 12 

be satisfied. As a standalone property, the development potential is premature but together with the surrounding properties, 13 

both north and south, should provide the needed transportation and utility infrastructure to support development and provide 14 

needed housing options to our residents. 15 

The Planning Commission provided a recommendation for the zoning that will be applied to the property upon 16 

annexation. The General Plan map is R-1 and therefore is recommended that this property be assigned the R-1 zone upon 17 

annexation. 18 

The Planning Commission voted on November 6 to recommend approval of this item with a R-1 zoning. The City 19 

Council reviewed this item in a work session held on December 11, 2018. If annexed, it is anticipated that the applicant will 20 

apply for a zone change to RPC along with the land to the north, forming a larger master planned community of approximately 21 

115 acres. 22 

CED Director Steele reviewed the staff memo.  23 



City Council Regular Meeting 

January 8, 2019 

 

 

 

 

7 

 

 

Mayor Gailey opened the public hearing at 6:45. There were no persons appearing to be heard and the public  hearing 1 

was closed.  2 

COUNCILMEMBER BOLDUC MOVED TO ADOPT ORDINANCE 2019-01 DECLARING THE ANNEXATION 3 

OF 9.51 ACRES OF PROPERTY LOCATED AT APPROXIMATELY 2600 WEST 3000 SOUTH AND ESTABLISHING 4 

ZONING FOR THE PROPERTY. COUNCILMEMBER PETERSON SECONDED THE MOTION; ALL VOTED IN 5 

FAVOR.  6 

 7 

9. Proposed Resolution R19-01 adopting updates to the Fiscal Year (FY) 8 

2018-2019 wage scale. 9 

 A staff memo from the Administrative Services Department stated City Administration proposes to add a Public 10 

Works Inspector position at with levels one, two, and three, which resembles the structure for maintenance workers already 11 

established in the Department. The benchmark data was provided to the Council. The position will not be filled until the Council 12 

approves the funding in a budget opening later this year.  In the meantime, the inspection fees are currently being collected in 13 

order to begin funding the vehicle and equipment for the position.  It is anticipated that the position will be filled in the spring 14 

(March/April) so the new employee can be functioning during the upcoming construction season.  The memo concluded no 15 

other changes have been proposed with this wage scale update.  16 

 Mr. Marshall reviewed his staff memo.  17 

COUNCILMEMBER PETERSON MOVED TO ADOPT RESOLUTION R19-01 ADOPTIONG UPDATES TO THE 18 

FISCAL YEAR (FY) 2018-2019 WAGE SCALE. COUNCILMEMBER BINGHAM SECONDED THE MOTION; ALL 19 

VOTED IN FAVOR.  20 

 21 

10. Proposed Ordinance 18-24 amending the Syracuse City General Plan 22 

Map for property located at 2600 West 3200 South, Residential (R-1) to 23 

Residential Planned Community (RPC). 24 



City Council Regular Meeting 

January 8, 2019 

 

 

 

 

8 

 

 

A staff memo from the Community and Economic Development (CED) Department explained  1 

CED Steele reviewed the staff memo.  2 

Councilmember Bingham inquired as to the phasing of the project, to which Mr. Steele responded by reporting that 3 

phasing and buildout will be market driven and he does not yet have that level of detail. Applicant Greg Day added that he is 4 

hopeful the project will be fully complete within three to five years and he believes that timeframe will be supported by the 5 

market.  6 

Councilmember Savage referenced the concept plan and noted that he would like to see a mix of lot sizes as it appears 7 

that the majority of the project includes smaller lot sizes to achieve a higher density. Mr. Steele stated that the RPC ordinance 8 

includes three density categories and the concept plan is in compliance with the ordinance; he deferred to Mr. Day to 9 

communicate whether he is willing to consider adjustments to lot sizes to provide a mix of lot sizes. Councilmember Savage 10 

stated that his concern is creating a very dense community that has the potential to become a ‘slum’ in the future. Mr. Day 11 

stated that his plan includes several lots that can be classified as medium density, but as he moves forward to the design of the 12 

preliminary plat, it will be possible to make adjustments to provide a more suitable mix of lot sizes.  13 

Councilmember Bolduc thanked Mr. Day for his responsiveness to the Council’s concerns and indicated she feels the 14 

plan will facilitate a high-quality development.  15 

Councilmember Maughan asked if the action tonight is to approve the development plan. City Attorney Roberts 16 

answered no; the action tonight is to amend the General Plan and approve the concept plan for the project. He emphasized the 17 

project will not be vested and this is an opportunity for the Council to provide the applicant with their feedback or direction for 18 

adjusting the concept plan. Councilmember Maughan supported Councilmember Savage’s request for a mix of lot sizes, but 19 

noted that his biggest concern is that the concept plan was being amended as late as this afternoon and the Council received an 20 

updated copy of that plan for consideration this evening. The plan was not made available to the public and he does not want 21 

to give the perception that this project is being considered contrary to adopted processes. He stated that going forward, he does 22 

not want to see plans amended the day of a vote. Councilmember Peterson agreed, but noted that the concept plan is not as 23 

critical at this time; he would be concerned if this were the preliminary plan for the project. Mr. Steele stated he agrees with 24 



City Council Regular Meeting 

January 8, 2019 

 

 

 

 

9 

 

 

the Council and he typically does not support plan adjustments at such a late hour, but the adjustments made were minor to 1 

include a stub road and there were no adjustments to the lot sizes or layout. Mr. Roberts added that the Council has the authority 2 

to deny the concept plan at this time, or give conditional approval to communicate to the applicant the adjustments that need 3 

to be made in order for the project to proceed.  4 

Councilmember Bingham stated that she supports the request to provide a mix of lot sizes in the development and she 5 

recommended an equal share in the mix of lot sizes 5,600 to 6,999 square feet and lot sizes over 7,000 square feet. Mr. Steele 6 

provided the following development summary: 7 

• 7,000 + square foot lots:   7.9 percent; 8 

• 5,600 to 6,999 square foot lots:  43.4 percent; and 9 

• 3,500 to 5,599 square foot lots:  48.7 percent.  10 

Councilmember Bingham stated that she would like for more lots that are 7,000 square feet or greater.  11 

 COUNCILMEMBER MAUGHAN MOVED TO TABLE THE CONCEPT PLAN UNTIL REQUESTED 12 

ADJUSTMETNS CAN BE MADE.  13 

 Councilmember Savage stated that he would vote against the concept plan at this time. Councilmember Peterson stated 14 

he would prefer to give conditional approval for the concept plan in order to streamline the process while allowing the applicant 15 

to adjust the plan as requested by the Council. Mr. Roberts stated that if the applicant were to come back to the Council with a 16 

preliminary plan that does not include the Council’s suggestions, it would be appropriate to deny preliminary plat approval at 17 

that time.  18 

 Councilmember Peterson stated that it seems reasonable to him to locate the larger lots – 7,000 square feet or larger – 19 

on the perimeter of the project where they will border existing residential development. Mr. Steele stated that the medium 20 

density lots are located adjacent to the existing residential development, which includes some lots that are one acre in size so 21 

he deferred to the applicant to address Councilmember Peterson’s concern. He added that the layout of the plan does comply 22 

with City ordinance in that the smallest lots are located closest to arterial roads.  23 



City Council Regular Meeting 

January 8, 2019 

 

 

 

 

10 

 

 

 Councilmember Savage stated that if the lots located along the equestrian trail were increased to the category of over 1 

7,000 square feet, he would be comfortable with the plan. Mr. Day stated that he is willing to work to accommodate that 2 

feedback into his plan and asked that the Council grant conditional approval of the concept plan tonight so that he can move to 3 

the next step of designing the preliminary plan for the project. Councilmember Bolduc thanked Mr. Day for his willingness to 4 

consider the Council’s feedback. Councilmember Bingham added that she is willing to provide conditional approval with the 5 

understanding that Mr. Day is amenable to the Council’s request and will incorporate their feedback into his preliminary plan.  6 

 Councilmember Maughan reiterated he has made a motion to table the concept plan and he stands by that motion.  7 

 High level discussion centered on the procedural options available to the City relative to action on the concept plan, 8 

with Councilmembers Bolduc and Peterson indicating they are comfortable granting conditional approval of the concept plan 9 

for reasons stated by Councilmember Bingham.  10 

 Mayor Gailey asked if there is a second to Councilmember Maughan’s motion; hearing none, he declared the motion 11 

as dead for lack of a second.  12 

COUNCILMEMBER PETERSON MOVED TO ADOPT ORDINANCE 18-24 AMENDING THE SYRACUSE 13 

CITY GENERAL PLAN MAP FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT 2600 WEST 3200 SOUTH, RESIDENTIAL (R-1) TO 14 

RESIDENTIAL PLANNED COMMUNITY (RPC); AND TO GRANT CONDITIONAL APPROVAL OF THE CONCEPT 15 

PLAN BASED UPON THE FEEDBACK PROVIDED BY THE COUNCIL RELATIVE TO THE MIXTURE OF LOT SIZES 16 

IN THE PLAN AND TO REQUEST THAT LOT SIZES ALONG THE EQUESTRIAN TRAIL BE 7,000 + SQUARE FEET 17 

IN SIZE. COUNCILMEMBER BINGHAM SECONDED THE MOTION. 18 

Councilmember Maughan stated he appreciates the applicant’s willingness to consider Council feedback, but he will 19 

be voting in opposition based upon procedural issues. Councilmember Savage stated he will also be voting in opposition 20 

because of his desire to see the adjustments as requested before taking action.  21 

Mayor Gailey stated there has been a motion and second to adopt the ordinance and grant conditional approval of the 22 

concept plan and he called for a vote; VOTING ‘AYE’ – COUNCILMEMBERS BINGHAM, BOLDUC, AND PETERSON. 23 

VOTING ‘NAY’ – COUNCILMEMBERS MAUGHAN AND SAVAGE.  24 



City Council Regular Meeting 

January 8, 2019 

 

 

 

 

11 

 

 

 1 

11. Public comments. 2 

 There were no public comments.  3 

Mayor Gailey introduced Russell Lynch, who was appointed to the Arts Council earlier in the meeting, and he gave 4 

Mr. Lynch a few minutes to provide the Council with information about himself. Mr. Lynch stated he is very interested in 5 

serving on the Arts Council and feels he has a wealth of experience in arts related activities that can benefit the group. 6 

Councilmember Maughan stated that Mr. Lynch will be a positive addition to the group.  7 

   8 

12. Mayor/Council announcements and discussion of future agenda items. 9 

The Council and Mayor provided announcements about upcoming community events and other opportunities for 10 

public involvement.  11 

 12 

13. Recess to convene in work session in large conference room of City 13 

Hall. 14 

 Mayor Gailey recessed the business meeting at 7:19 p.m. to allow the Council to convene in a work session in the 15 

large conference room of City Hall.  16 

 The meeting reconvened at 8:43 p.m. 17 

 18 

14. Reconvene and consideration of adjourning into Closed Executive 19 

Session pursuant to the provisions of Section 52-4-205 of the Open and 20 

Public Meetings Law for the purpose of discussing the character, 21 

professional competence, or physical or mental health of an individual; 22 

pending or reasonably imminent litigation; or the purchase, exchange, or 23 

lease of real property (if necessary). 24 



City Council Regular Meeting 

January 8, 2019 

 

 

 

 

12 

 

 

COUNCILMEMBER PETERSON MADE A MOTION TO CONVENE IN A CLOSED EXECUTIVE SESSION 1 

PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 52-4-205 OF THE OPEN AND PUBLIC MEETINGS LAW FOR THE 2 

PURPOSE OF DISCUSSING THE PURCHASE, EXCHANGE, OR LEASE OR REAL PROPERTY AND PENDING OR 3 

REASONABLY IMMINENT LITIGATION. COUNCILMEMBER BOLDUC SECONDED THE MOTION; ALL VOTED 4 

IN FAVOR.  5 

The closed session began at 8:45 p.m. 6 

The meeting reconvened at 9:16 p.m. 7 

 8 

 9 

 At 9:16 p.m. COUNCILMEMBER BINGHAM MADE A MOTION TO ADJOURN.  COUNCILMEMBER 10 

PETERSON SECONDED THE MOTION; ALL VOTED IN FAVOR.  11 

 12 

_____________________________________  ___________________________________ 13 

Mike Gailey      Cassie Z. Brown, MMC 14 
Mayor                                  City Recorder 15 
 16 
Date approved: ________________________ 17 



1 

Minutes of the Syracuse City Council Work Session Meeting, January 8, 2019 1 
   2 

Minutes of the Work Session meeting of the Syracuse City Council held on January 8, 2019 at 7:29 p.m., in the 3 
Council Work Session Room, 1979 West 1900 South, Syracuse City, Davis County, Utah. 4 
 5 

Present:  Councilmembers:  Lisa W. Bingham  6 
 Corinne N. Bolduc 7 
 Dave Maughan (participated via electronic means) 8 
 Doug Peterson 9 

     Jordan Savage (participated via electronic means) 10 
             11 
  Mayor Mike Gailey 12 

City Manager Brody Bovero 13 
  City Recorder Cassie Z. Brown 14 
 15 
City Employees Present: 16 
  Administrative Services Director Steve Marshall 17 
  City Attorney Paul Roberts 18 
  Public Works Director Robert Whiteley 19 
  Fire Chief Aaron Byington 20 
  Parks and Recreation Director Kresta Robinson 21 
  Community and Economic Development Director Noah Steele 22 
              23 
The purpose of the Work Session was to review and discuss Section 10.60 of the Syracuse City Code relating to the 24 

Residential R-1 Cluster zoning designation; discuss proposed Ordinance 18-22 amending Chapter 10.75 of the Syracuse City 25 

Municipal Code pertaining to the Planned Residential Development (PRD) Zone; and discuss proposed amendments to 26 

Syracuse City process for filling a vacancy on the City Council. 27 

 28 

Review and discussion of Section 10.60 of the Syracuse 29 

City Code relating to the Residential R-1 Cluster zoning 30 

designation. 31 

A staff memo from the Community and Economic Development (CED) Department referenced the City’s current 32 

City Code Section 10.60 relating to the R-1 Cluster zoning designation. Mr. Steele facilitated a review of the Code section 33 

with a focus on requests from developers to consider adjustments to the density allowed in the zone. There was a review of 34 

the developments in the City that currently carry the R-1 Cluster zoning designation and the Council indicated that bonus 35 

density should not be automatically granted, and he would prefer that an applicant seek formal approval when they desire this 36 

zoning designation. Mr. Steele stated that is currently the process an applicant must follow; R-1 Cluster zoning must be 37 

approved through approval of a major conditional permit and the difference between R-1 Cluster zoning and Planned 38 

DRAFT 



City Council Work Session 

January 8, 2019 

 

 2 

 

 

Residential Development (PRD) zoning is that a development agreement is required for PRD and not for R-1 Cluster. 1 

Councilmember Maughan stated that means that the threats made by developers that they will proceed with R-1 Cluster 2 

zoning if they are not able to secure PRD zoning is moot because approval of R-1 Cluster zoning must be granted by the 3 

Council. City Attorney Roberts stated that is correct, but noted that a property that already has the R-1 designation must be 4 

granted cluster zoning if an applicant can meet all requirements for the conditional use permit; the Council has less discretion 5 

in considering a conditional use permit than in considering a development agreement for PRD zoning. Councilmember 6 

Maughan stated he would prefer to create an independent R-1 Cluster zone rather than allowing the zone to be automatic 7 

approval if certain conditions can be met. Councilmember Savage agreed; he supported the idea of creating a new zone rather 8 

than allowing clustering to be automatic approval if certain conditions are met. 9 

 Additional high-level philosophical discussion centered on regulations appropriate for the R-1 Cluster zone as an 10 

independent zone and the Council supported the suggestions made by Councilmember Maughan and Savage. Mayor Gailey 11 

directed staff to begin work to facilitate the request to adjust the City’s zoning ordinance to create a new zone that 12 

encompasses the development standards of the R-1 Cluster zone.  13 

 14 

Continued discussion of proposed Ordinance 18-22 15 

amending Chapter 10.75 of the Syracuse City Municipal 16 

Code pertaining to the Planned Residential Development 17 

(PRD) Zone. 18 

A staff memo from the Community and Economic Development (CED) Department explained the City has received 19 

an application from developer Mike Bastian to amend the text of Syracuse City Code Section 10.75 - Planned Residential 20 

Development. The Planning Commission (PC) has completed a very detailed review of the ordinance. This issue was 21 

discussed over several meetings and the major points of discussion involve: 22 

1. Allowing increased density from 6 to 12 and 16 units per acre if certain qualifiers are met 23 

2. Increasing attached units from 4 to 6 24 

3. Allowing an in lieu of fee to 'buy out' of required common space landscaping 25 

4. Adjusting the maximum building height 26 



City Council Work Session 

January 8, 2019 

 

 3 

 

 

5. Increasing the architectural standards 1 

6. Removing the minimum acreage requirement 2 

7. Allowing private driveways longer than 150 feet 3 

8. Adjusting the garage and visitor parking requirements 4 

9. Changing the approval process to require a concept plan up front with the general plan request. 5 

The PC was not able to reach a consensus on all nine items; in order to forward a more detailed recommendation, 6 

the PC has broken their recommendation down by item: 7 

1. The PC voted (4-3) against the recommended density increases and to include limits of 6,8, and 10 units 8 

per acre instead.  9 

2. The PC voted (4-3) against an increase in the allowed number of attached units.  10 

3. The PC voted (4-3) against allowing a fee in lieu of open space. 11 

4. The PC voted (5-2) to allow three stories and building heights of 40 feet. 12 

5. The PC voted (7-0) to increase architectural standards.  13 

6. The PC voted (4-3) in favor of eliminating the minimum acreage requirements.  14 

7. The PC voted (4-3) against allowing driveways over 150 feet, but in favor of deferring to the fire code.   15 

8. The PC voted (4-3) in favor of required additional off-street parking but in opposition of reducing the 16 

garage requirements.  17 

9. The PC voted (4-3) in opposition to the change in the approval process for PRD developments. 18 

The memo concluded the PC also recommended a 10th item for consideration to eliminate accessory structures from 19 

being allowed on lots with attached units. The vote for this item was unanimous (7-0).  20 

Mr. Steele reviewed his staff memo and facilitated discussion among the City Council regarding the 21 

recommendations submitted by the Planning Commission; there was a continued focus on density of a PRD project and the 22 

minimum acreage requirement for a PRD project. He then reviewed a presentation including illustrations of areas of the City 23 

and other cities that would accommodate PRD projects with a stepped acreage and density allowance; this concept was 24 

informed by future transportation projects in Syracuse. As the Council reviewed the conceptual renderings in Mr. Steele’s 25 

presentation, they engaged in philosophical discussion and debate about the appropriate locations for PRD zoning based upon 26 



City Council Work Session 

January 8, 2019 

 

 4 

 

 

density; the concern was emphasized that mixed-use may be more appropriate for certain areas than the PRD zoning 1 

designation. Discussion then shifted to the types of amenities that should be included in the PRD zone or a mixed-use zone.  2 

Mayor Gailey provided brief input from developers in attendance at the meeting relative to their desires for optional 3 

zoning designations in the City that could facilitate quality development that may include higher residential densities or a mix 4 

of commercial/office/residential uses.  5 

Mayor Gailey then facilitated discussion among the Council regarding the specific components of the PRD ordinance 6 

that must be amended in order for the Council to consider adoption of an ordinance amending the zone; there was a focus on 7 

the minimum acreage requirement for a PRD zone, with Councilmember Maughan indicating he prefers eight acres for 8 

detached homes, but would consider five acres as the minimum acreage for attached housing. Councilmember Peterson stated 9 

that five acres is a large property size and that minimum acreage requirement may be too high. Mayor Gailey asked for the 10 

Council to give Mr. Steele direction regarding the minimum acreage; philosophical discussion continued, and the Council 11 

concluded that minimum acreage is not as important as the location of the subject property and that the Council must be 12 

allowed to consider property size based upon the land use for abutting land uses. Mr. Steele stated the Council will have 13 

discretion to require a certain acreage when considering a PRD application for any given property in the City; this discretion 14 

and ultimate decision could be based upon abutting land uses. The Council also stated there should be a connection between 15 

building height maximums and total project density and this consideration should also be based upon abutting land uses and 16 

existing development to ensure that a proposed development is harmonious with its surroundings.  17 

  18 

Proposed amendment to Syracuse City process for 19 

filling a vacancy on the City Council. 20 

A staff memo from the City Attorney explained Councilman Maughan has proposed to amend Section 2.45.040, 21 

related to appointments in the case of vacancies in elected offices.  Specifically, he has requested whether to increase the vote 22 

threshold to get through the first round of voting to 2 votes, rather than 1. 23 

As this is a city-created procedure, we are free to amend the process in any way that we wish without running afoul 24 

of state code.  We have utilized the procedure on two occasions.  Prior to its adoption, we did not have a formal appointment 25 

procedure, leading to some confusion among candidates and elected officials as to the best way to proceed. 26 



City Council Work Session 

January 8, 2019 

 

 5 

 

 

The process includes two rounds of voting – one to thin the pack to at least 33% of the initial number of candidates, 1 

and a second to make the final selection.  Ordinance currently indicates that a candidate who receives zero votes has no 2 

chance of advancing, even if the number of candidates advancing is less than 33%.  A proposed amendment increasing the 3 

threshold to two votes would eliminate all single-vote getters. 4 

In the world of hypotheticals, this could open up a possibility that a single candidate would be selected by only two 5 

councilmembers.  This would be the case if all others received a single vote.  If the other two councilmembers and mayor did 6 

not support that candidate, then the motion to appoint might fail – leaving us in an untenable situation where only one 7 

candidate advanced but was not appointed.  If the Council is fine supporting this unlikely outcome, then there is nothing to 8 

say that the process is flawed.  Another option would be to increase the threshold to two votes only if two or more candidates 9 

received more than one vote. 10 

One clause Administration recommends adding, regardless of the Council’s decision on the above paragraph is that 11 

the increased threshold does not eliminate everyone if no one received more than one vote.  Otherwise, the entire field could 12 

be eliminated. 13 

Councilmember Maughan discussed his proposal and stated he accepts Mr. Roberts’ recommendation that the 14 

language be crated to ensure the increased vote threshold does not eliminate everyone is no one receives more than one vote.  15 

After brief philosophical discussion of the process of selecting a candidate to fill a Council vacancy, the Council 16 

concluded they support the recommended adjustments and directed staff to place an action item on the consent agenda for the 17 

next meeting agenda to allow final action.  18 

  19 

The meeting adjourned at 8:45 p.m. 20 

 21 
 22 
______________________________   __________________________________ 23 
Mike Gailey      Cassie Z. Brown, MMC 24 
Mayor                                  City Recorder 25 
 26 
Date approved: ________________ 27 



  
 

Agenda Item #6a Proposed Resolution R19-03 appointing 

Councilmembers to various committee positions and 

assignments. 

 
Factual Summation  

At the beginning of each calendar year, the City Council reviews the list of appointments 

and assignments and makes changes according to recent election results or other determining 

factors.  The Council reviewed the resolution during their January 22 work session meeting and 

directed staff to prepare an updated document to reflect the position assignments discussed 

during that meeting. 

  

Staff Proposal 

 Adopt Resolution R19-03 appointing Councilmembers to various committee positions 

and assignments.  

 

COUNCIL AGENDA 
February 12, 2019 



RESOLUTION R19-03 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE SYRACUSE CITY COUNCIL 

APPOINTING CITY COUNCILMEMBERS TO VARIOUS 

COMMITTEE POSITIONS AND ASSIGNMENTS. 

 
WHEREAS Syracuse City Councilmembers are desirous of being appointed to 

and serving on various community committees and boards; and 

 

WHEREAS there are also internal City positions, such as Mayor Pro-Tem, that 

Councilmembers are desirous of being appointed to; and 

 

WHEREAS the Syracuse City Council discussed committee appointments and 

assignments during their Work Session Meeting of January 22, 2019 and determined 

appropriate appointments and assignments for each Councilmember and members of the 

Administration. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

SYRACUSE CITY, UTAH, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1.  Appointment.   

 

a. Councilmember Bingham is hereby appointed to serve as the 

City’s representative on the Clearfield High School Community 

Council. 

b. Councilmember Bingham is hereby appointed to serve as the 

liaison to the Youth Council. 

c. Councilmember Bingham is hereby appointed to serve as the 

City’s representative on the Bluff Ridge Elementary 

Community Council. 

d. Councilmember Bingham is hereby appointed to serve as the 

Youth Court Liaison. 

e. Councilmember Bingham is hereby appointed to serve as the 

City’s representative on the Legacy Junior High Community 

Council. 

f. Councilmember Bingham is hereby appointed to serve as the 

liaison to Syracuse Chamber of Commerce.  

g. Councilmember Bingham is hereby appointed to serve as an 

Employee Appeals Board alternate member. 

h. Councilmember Bingham is hereby appointed to serve as voting 

member of the Utah League of Cities and Towns (ULCT) 

Legislative Policy Committee.  

i. Councilmember Bolduc is hereby appointed to serve as an 

Employee Appeals Board member. 

j. Councilmember Bolduc is hereby appointed to serve as the 

Mayor Pro-Tem. 

k. Councilmember Bolduc is hereby appointed to serve as the 

liaison to the Miss Syracuse Pageant. 



l. Councilmember Bolduc is hereby appointed to serve as the 

City’s representative on the Buffalo Point Community Council. 

m. Councilmember Bolduc is hereby appointed to serve as the 

liaison to the Planning Commission.  

n. Councilmember Bolduc is hereby appointed to serve as voting 

member of the Utah League of Cities and Towns (ULCT) 

Legislative Policy Committee.  

o. Councilmember Bolduc is hereby appointed to serve as liaison 

to the Parks Advisory Committee. 

p. Councilmember Maughan is hereby appointed to serve as the 

liaison to the Arts Council. 

q. Councilmember Maughan is hereby appointed to serve as the 

City’s representative to both Syracuse Arts Academy campuses. 

(elementary and junior high). 

r. Councilmember Maughan is hereby appointed to serve as an 

Employee Appeals Board alternate member. 

s. Councilmember Maughan is hereby appointed to serve as a 

liaison to the Davis Chamber of Commerce.  

t. Councilmember Maughan is hereby appointed to serve as the 

City’s representative on the Syracuse High School Community 

Council. 

u. Councilmember Maughan is hereby appointed to serve as 

voting member of the Utah League of Cities and Towns 

(ULCT) Legislative Policy Committee.  

v. Councilmember Peterson is hereby appointed to serve as the 

second Mayor Pro-Tem. 

w. Councilmember Peterson is hereby appointed to serve as the 

City’s representative on the Syracuse Junior High School 

Community Council. 

x. Councilmember Peterson is hereby appointed to serve as an 

Employee Appeals Board member. 

y. Councilmember Peterson is hereby appointed to serve as the 

City’s representative on the Cook Elementary Community 

Council. 

z. Councilmember Peterson is hereby appointed to serve as liaison 

to the Parks Advisory Committee. 

aa. Councilmember Peterson is hereby appointed to serve as the 

Museum Board Advisor. 

bb. Councilmember Savage is hereby appointed to serve as the third 

Mayor Pro-Tem. 

cc. Councilmember Savage is hereby appointed to serve as the 

City’s representative on the Syracuse Elementary Community 

Council. 

dd. Councilmember Savage is hereby appointed to serve as the 

liaison to the Emergency Preparedness Committee. 

ee. City Manager Bovero is hereby appointed to serve as non-

voting member of the Utah League of Cities and Towns 

(ULCT) Legislative Policy Committee.  



ff. City Attorney Roberts is hereby appointed to serve as non-

voting member of the Utah League of Cities and Towns 

(ULCT) Legislative Policy Committee.  

gg. Public Works Director Whiteley is hereby appointed to serve as 

the City’s representative on the Layton Canal Board. 

hh. Public Works Director Whiteley has been elected to the Davis 

and Weber Canal Board. 

 

Section 2.  Severability.  If any section, part or provision of this Resolution is 

held invalid or unenforceable, such invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect any 

other portion of this Resolution, and all sections, parts and provisions of this Resolution 

shall be severable. 

Section 3.  Effective Date.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately 

upon its passage. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF SYRACUSE 

CITY, STATE OF UTAH, THIS 12th DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2019. 

SYRACUSE CITY 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ By:______________________________ 

Cassie Z. Brown, City Recorder       Michael L. Gailey, Mayor 

  

 



 
Agenda Item #6b Amendment to Appointment Procedures 

in Section 2.45.040 
 

 

Based upon comments received from the Council during the work session on January 8, 

the accompanying ordinance does the following, as it relates to council appointments of vacant 

positions: 

1. Those receiving zero votes in the first round do not advance to the next, no matter 

what 

2. If two or more candidates receive two or more votes in the first round, then they 

advance, while those who only received one vote do not. 

3. If only one candidate received greater than one vote, then a run-off occurs among the 

single-vote-getters that reduces the overall number of candidates to at most 33% of 

the original pool. 

 

The other provisions of the section remain unchanged. 

 

It appeared that there was unanimous support for the ordinance with the proposed 

changes; as such we have placed the item on the Consent Agenda.  If there is need for further 

discussion or revisions, then a single councilmember may move the item onto the regular agenda 

for discussion. 

Questions on this item may be directed to Councilman Maughan, Paul Roberts, or Cassie 

Brown. 

CITY COUNCIL 

BUSINESS MEETING 
February 12, 2019 



ORDINANCE NO. 19-03 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 2.45 OF THE SYRACUSE CITY 

MUNICIPAL CODE PERTAINING TO APPOINTMENT PROCEDURES. 
 

 WHEREAS, the City Council is authorized, pursuant to state law, to establish ordinances 

for the health, welfare, comfort and safety of is residents and those visiting the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council are authorized to make appointments in various 

provisions in state or city code, due to absences; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Council in 2016 established procedures for the orderly appointment of 

those individuals; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Council finds that the attached amendments will advance the 

community’s interests in transparent and orderly appointments to fill vacant elective offices. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF  

SYRACUSE CITY, STATE OF UTAH, AS FOLLOWS:  

 

Section 1. Amendments.  The attached Chapter 2.45 is hereby amended, as provided 

in Exhibit A. 

 

Section 2.  Severability.  If any section, part or provision of this Ordinance is held 

invalid or unenforceable, such invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect any other portion of 

this Ordinance, and all sections, parts and provisions of this Ordinance shall be severable.  

 

Section 3.  Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately after 

publication or posting.  

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF SYRACUSE CITY,  

STATE OF UTAH, THIS 12 DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2019.  
 

SYRACUSE CITY 

ATTEST: 

 

              

Cassie Z. Brown, City Recorder    Mayor Mike Gailey 

 

 

 

 



Voting by the City Council: 

 

     “AYE”  “NAY” 

 

Councilmember Bingham      __          

Councilmember Bolduc        __           

Councilmember Maughan      __          

Councilmember Peterson      __          

Councilmember Savage       __               

 

 

Exhibit A 

 

 

2.45.040 Appointments to vacant elected positions. 

(A) In cases of vacancies in an elected office of the City, the City shall follow the procedures provided in Utah State Code. 

The provisions of this section are meant to provide additional detail to the process, and not to override or conflict with 

state law. 

(B) Notice shall be provided to the public of the vacancy at least two weeks prior to the meeting at which the Council will 

consider candidates to fill a vacated position. The notice shall provide: 

(1) The date, time, and place of the meeting where the vacancy will be filled; 

(2) The person to whom a person interested in being appointed to fill the vacancy may submit the interested person’s 

name for consideration; and 

(3) The deadline for submitting an interested person’s name. 

(C) In addition to the individual’s name, an individual who is interested in filling the vacancy shall be requested to provide 

written answers to questions which shall be prepared by the City Recorder, in consultation with the Mayor and Council. 

(D) Filling of vacancies to elected offices shall take place during a regular or special Council meeting, open to the public. 

The following procedures shall govern the interview process: 

(1) Introductions. Candidates shall each be allotted five minutes to introduce themselves to the Council and to 

provide answers to questions which have been prepared beforehand and submitted to the candidate prior to the 

meeting. Time limits shall be strictly enforced during this phase of the interview. After all candidates have been 

given the opportunity to address the Council, the Council may discuss any or all of the candidates. 



(2) Ballots. The voting members of the Council each shall be provided with three ballots, with the name of the voting 

Council Member included on the ballot. Ballots shall be cast by the Council Members by writing the name of a 

candidate on the ballot. Council Members may only cast one ballot for each candidate, but may refrain from casting 

additional ballots if that Council Member wishes to support fewer than three candidates. The ballots shall be 

collected by the City Recorder, tallied, and announced publicly, including the names of Council Members who cast 

votes for the candidate. 

(3) Elimination of Candidates.  

(i) A candidate who received zero votes in the first round of ballots may not advance to the next round of voting. 

(ii) If two or more candidates each received two votes during the first round of ballots, then A candidates who 

receivesd zero fewer than two votes isare eliminated from consideration.    

(iii) If one or fewer candidates received two votes each, then the The number of candidates shall be reduced to at 

least 33 percent of the original pool of candidates who submitted their names for consideration. In the event multiple 

individuals have equal votes, such that the remaining candidate pool has not dropped below 33 percent, a run-off 

vote will take place using the same procedure as subsection (D)(2) of this section, except that Council Members will 

only have one ballot each. In cases of a tie vote during the elimination vote, the Mayor shall be entitled to cast the 

deciding vote. 

(4) Additional Questions. Candidates who remain eligible for consideration after ballot elimination shall be asked to 

answer additional questions from the Mayor and Council. These questions need not be standardized among all 

candidates. Each remaining candidate shall have an opportunity to answer the Council’s questions. This phase of the 

interview should not exceed 10 minutes per candidate. At the conclusion of the questioning phase, the Mayor shall 

request discussion from the Council. 

(5) Election by Motion. At the conclusion of discussion, any voting Council Member may move to appoint one of 

the remaining candidates to the vacant office. This motion must be supported by a majority of the council. In cases 

of a tie, the Mayor participates in the vote. 

(6) Appointment and Swearing In. Upon the affirmative vote of the Council, the selected individual is considered 

appointed, and shall be sworn in during the meeting. The newly appointed Council Member is immediately eligible 

to take part in any remaining Council business on that meeting’s agenda 

 



  
 

Agenda Item #7  Public Hearing – Proposed Ordinance 19-02 

amending an Impact Fee Facilities Plan and an 

Impact Fee Analysis for storm water; providing for 

the calculation and collection of such fees; providing 

for appeal, accounting, and severability of the same; 

and other related matters.  

  
Factual Summation  
 

Any questions about this agenda item may be directed at Admin. Services Director Stephen 

Marshall, or Public Works Director Robert Whiteley. 

 

Please review the following attachments: 

a. Ordinance 19-02 amending and enacting the Storm Water impact fee. 

b. Exhibit A – Storm Water impact fee facilities plan. 

c. Exhibit B – Storm Water impact fee analysis.    
 

 

Background 
 

We are currently in the process of evaluating and updating our impact fee plans for Syracuse 

City.    
 

The City has recently made updates to the storm drain master plans. This document replaces the 

2007 storm drain master plan. The Impact Fee Facility Plan (IFFP) was created and is used to 

perform an Impact Fee Analysis (IFA). The IFFP and IFA should not be older than 

approximately ten years and are required by State Code (11-36a) to impose or update impact 

fees.  
 

The draft IFFP and IFA were presented to city council at the work session on January 22, 2019 

for review and discussion. 
 

 

 

 

 

Here is a comparative of our current storm impact fee compared to the proposed fee.  The biggest 

change is that we will charge a universal rate for all developments as opposed to a different rate 

COUNCIL AGENDA 
February 12, 2019 



based upon the zoning since all development detains and discharges the same rate regardless of 

what zone it is in, it is not necessary to differentiate between zones when collecting impact fees.  

 

Current Fee 

 

Sewer - Storm (ENR Construction Index) Existing Impact Fee

R1 $4,748.00 per acre or 0.109 sf NA NA

R2 $5,053.00 per acre or 0.116 sf NA NA

R3 $5,532.00 per acre or 0.127 sf NA NA

R4 $6,316.00 per acre or 0.145 sf NA NA

PRD $6,011.00 per acre or 0.138 sf NA NA

GC $11,369.00 per acre or 0.261 sf NA NA

C2 $10,716.00 per acre or 0.246 sf NA NA

I1 $11,369.00 per acre or 0.261 sf NA NA

A1 $3,006.00 per acre or 0.069 sf NA NA

PO $11,369.00 per acre or 0.261 sf NA NA  
 

Proposed Fee 
 

Storm Impact Fee = $7,488.65 per acre or 0.172 per square foot.   

 

This fee will change each year since A credit is made for the new capital projects that will 

benefit existing development.  See the Storm Water IFA Plan for further details. 

 

 

Comparative to Other Cities 

 

 

 
 

According to Utah Code 11-36a-301: 



 (1) Before imposing an impact fee, each local political subdivision or private 

entity shall, except as provided in Subsection (3), prepare an impact fee facilities plan to 

determine the public facilities required to serve development resulting from new 

development activity. 

 

According to Utah Code 11-36a-303: 

(1) Subject to the notice requirements of Section 11-36a-504, each local political 

subdivision or private entity intending to impose an impact fee shall prepare a 

written analysis of each impact fee. 

 

 11-36a-401.   Impact fee enactment. 

            (1) (a) A local political subdivision or private entity wishing to impose impact  

  fees shall pass an impact fee enactment in accordance with Section 11-

36a-402. 

            (b) An impact fee imposed by an impact fee enactment may not exceed the  

  highest fee justified by the impact fee analysis. 

            (2) An impact fee enactment may not take effect until 90 days after the day on  

  which the impact fee enactment is approved. 

 

The impact fee enactment is attached as Ordinance 19-02 and is accompanied by, 

Exhibit A – impact fee facilities plan, and Exhibit B – impact fee analysis.  

 

This ordinance can both be approved tonight along with the resolution for the 

consolidated fee schedule; there is a 90-day protest period before the ordinances and 

fee schedule can take effect.   The effective date will be May 13, 2019. 

 

 

Recommendation 

Adopt ordinance 19-02 impact fee enactment for the storm water IFFP and IFA. 

 

 

 

http://www.le.utah.gov/code/TITLE11/htm/11_36a050400.htm
http://le.utah.gov/code/TITLE11/htm/11_36a040200.htm
http://le.utah.gov/code/TITLE11/htm/11_36a040200.htm


Ordinance No. 19-02  

ORDINANCE AMENDING AN IMPACT FEE FACILITIES PLAN AND AN IMPACT FEE ANALYSIS FOR STORM 

WATER; PROVIDING FOR THE CALCULATION AND COLLECTION OF SUCH FEES; PROVIDING FOR 

APPEAL, ACCOUNTING AND SEVERABILITY OF THE SAME, AND OTHER RELATED MATTERS 

WHEREAS, In February 2013, Syracuse City, Utah (the “City”) posted notice as to its intention to prepare 

impact fee facilities plans (“Impact Fee Facilities Plans”) and impact fee analysis (“Impact Fee Analysis”) for Storm 

Water and invited all interested parties to participate in the impact fee preparation process, consistent with UCA 

Section 11-36a-501; 

WHEREAS, the City is a municipality in the State of Utah, authorized and organized under the provisions of 

Utah law and is authorized pursuant to the Impact Fees Act, Utah Code Ann. 11-36a-101 et seq. to adopt impact 

fees; and 

WHEREAS, on January 27, 2019, the City posted notice of a public hearing in the local paper, the Standard 

Examiner, Utah’s Public Notice Website and at the City’s administrative building to consider the assumptions and 

conclusions of the Impact Fee Facilities Plans and the Impact Fee Analysis; 

  WHEREAS, the Syracuse City Council (the “Council”) met in regular session on February 12, 2019, to 

convene a public hearing and to consider adopting the Impact Fee Facilities Plans and Impact Fee Analysis, 

imposing updated Storm Water impact fees, providing for the calculation and collection of such fees, and providing 

for an appeal process, accounting and reporting method and other related matters; and 

 WHEREAS, in August 2018 the Impact Fee Facilities Plan Consultant certified its work under UCA section 

11-36a-306(1); 

WHEREAS, on February 12, 2019 considering the input of the public and stakeholders and relying on the 

professional advice and certification of the Impact Fee Facilities Plan Consultants, the City adopted the findings, 

conclusions, and recommendations of the impact fee facilities plans prepared by Zion’s Bank Public Finance 

(“Consultant”), a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated by this reference; and  

WHEREAS, in December 2018, the Impact Fee Analysis Consultant certified its work under UCA Section 

11-36a-306(2); 

WHEREAS, based on the input of the public and stakeholders and relying on the professional advice and 

certification of Consultant, a copy of which is attached as Exhibit B and incorporated by this reference; and 

WHEREAS, on January 27, 2019, a copy of the Impact Fee Analysis and Impact Fee Facilities Plans and 

the proposed Impact Fee Ordinance, along with a summary of the analysis that was designated to be understood by 

a lay person, were made available to the public and deposited at the administrative office and on the public notice 

website; and 

WHEREAS, on January 29, 2019, the Standard Examiner published notice on the date, time and place of 

the first public hearing to consider the Impact Fee Ordinance; and  

WHEREAS, on January 29, 2019, the City posted notice of the date, time and place of the first public 

hearing to consider the Impact Fee Analysis in three public places and on the public notices website; and 



WHEREAS, on February 12, 2019, the Council held a public hearing regarding the Impact Fee Analysis and 

the Impact Fee Ordinance; and 

WHEREAS, after careful consideration and review of the comments at the public hearing, the Council has 

determined that it is in the best interest of the health, safety and welfare of the inhabitants of the City to adopt the 

findings and recommendations of the Impact Fee Facilities Plans and Impact Fee Analysis to address the impacts of 

development upon the Storm Water system, to adopt the Impact Fee Facilities Plans as proposed, to approve the 

Impact Fee Analysis as proposed, to adopt Storm water impact fees, to provide for the calculation and collection of 

such fees, and to provide for an appeal process, and an accounting and reporting method of the same.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Syracuse City Council as follows: 

Section 1. Findings. The Council finds and determines as follows: 

1.1.  All required notices have been given and made and public hearings conducted as 

requested by the Impact Fees Act with respect to the Impact Fee Facilities Plans, the Impact Fee Analysis, and this 

Impact Fee Ordinance (this “Ordinance”). 

1.2.  Growth and development activities in the City will create additional demands on its 

infrastructure. The facility improvement requirements which are analyzed in the Impact Fee Facilities Plans and the 

Impact Fee Analysis are the direct result of the additional facility needs caused by future development activities. The 

persons responsible for growth and development activities should pay a proportionate share of the costs of the 

facilities needed to serve the growth and development activity.  

1.3. Impact fees are necessary to achieve an equitable allocation to the costs borne in the 

past and to be borne in the future, in comparison with the benefits already received and yet to be received. 

1.4. In enacting and approving the Impact Fee Analysis and this Ordinance, the Council has 

taken into consideration, and in certain situations will consider on a case-by-case basis in the future, the future 

capital facilities and needs of the City, the capital financial needs of the City which are the result of the City’s future 

facilities’ needs, the financial contribution of those properties and other properties similarly situated in the City at the 

time of computation of the required fee and prior to the enactment of this Ordinance, all revenue sources available to 

the City, and the impact on future facilities that will be required by growth and new development activities in the City. 

1.5. The provisions of this Ordinance shall be liberally construed in order to carry out the 

purpose and intent of the Council in establishing the impact fee program.  

Section 2. Definitions. 

2.1.  Except as provided below, words and phrases that are defined in the Impact Fees Act 

shall have the same meaning in this Ordinance. 

2.2. “Service Area” shall mean that geographic area designated within the entire incorporated 

area of the City’s boundaries, including future planned annexed areas. 

2.3. “Project Improvement” does not mean system improvement and includes, but is not 

limited to, those projects identified in the plans for the benefit of growth.  



2.4. “Utah State Impact Fees Act” shall mean Title 11, Chapter 36a, Utah Code Annotated or its 

successor state statute if that title and chapter is renumbered, recodified, or amended.  

 Section 3. Adoption. 

 The Council hereby approves and adopts the Impact Fee Analysis attached as Exhibit B and the analysis 

reflected therein. The Impact Fee Facilities Plans (Exhibit A) and the Impact Fee Analysis (Exhibit B) are 

incorporated herein by reference and adopted as though fully set forth herein.  

Section 4. Impact Fee Calculations. 

4.1.  Impact Fees. The impact fees imposed by this Ordinance shall have two components; a 

future facilities impact fee as well as a buy-in fee for excess capacity in existing facilities. The Impact Fees 

shall be calculated as set forth in Exhibit B. 

4.2.  Developer Credits/Developer Reimbursements. A developer, including a school district or 

charter school, may be allowed a credit against or proportionate reimbursement of impact fees if the 

developer dedicates land for a system improvement, builds and dedicates some or all of a system 

improvement, or dedicates a public facility that the City and the developer agree will reduce the need for a 

system improvement. A credit against impact fees shall be granted for any dedication of land for, 

improvement to, or new construction of, any system improvements provided by the developer if the facilities 

are system improvements to the respective utilities, or are dedicated to the public and offset the need for an 

identified future improvement.  

4.3.  Adjustment of Fees. The Council may adjust either up (but not above the maximum 

allowable fee) or down the standard impact fees at the time the fee is charged in order to respond to an 

unusual circumstance in specific cases and to ensure that the fees are imposed fairly. The Council may 

adjust the amount of the fees to be imposed if the fee payer submits studies and data clearly showing that 

the payment of an adjusted impact fee is more consistent with the true impact being placed on the system. 

4.4. Impact Fee Accounting. The City shall establish a separate interest-bearing ledger 

account for the cash impact fees collected pursuant to this Ordinance. Interest earned on such account shall 

be allocated to that account. 

 (a) Reporting. At the end of each fiscal year, the City shall prepare a report generally 

showing the source and amount of all monies collected, earned and received by the fund or account and of 

each expenditure from the fund or account. The report shall also identify impact fee funds by the year in 

which they were received, the project from which the funds were collected, the capital projects from which 

the funds were budgeted, and the projected schedule for expenditure and be provided to the State Auditor 

on the appropriate form found on the State Auditor’s Website. 

 (b) Impact Fee Expenditures. Funds collected pursuant to the impact fees shall be 

deposited in such account and only be used by the City to construct and upgrade the respective facilities to 

adequately service development activity or used as otherwise approved by law. 

 (c) Time of Expenditure. Cash impact fees collected pursuant to this Ordinance are to be 

expended, dedicated, or encumbered for a permissible use within six (6) years of receipt by the City, unless 



the Council directs otherwise.  For purposes of this calculation, the first funds received shall be deemed to 

be the first funds expended.   

 (d) Extension of Time.  The City may hold previously dedicated or unencumbered fees for 

longer that six (6) years if it identifies in writing, before the expiration of the six year period, (i) an 

extraordinary and compelling reason why the fees should be held longer than six (6) years; and (ii) an 

absolute date by which the fees will be expended.  

4.5. Refunds. The City shall refund any impact fee paid when: 

(a) the fee payer has not proceeded with the development activity and has filed a written 

request with the Council for a refund within one year after the impact fee was paid; 

   (b) the fees have not been spent of encumbered within six years of the payment date; and 

   (c) no impact has resulted. 

4.6.  Additional Fees and Costs.  The impact fees authorized hereby are separate from and in 

addition to developer fees and charges lawfully imposed by the City, such as engineering and inspection 

fees, building permit fees, review fees, and other fees and costs that may not be included as itemized 

component parts of the impact fee.  However, developer fees and charges must be based on the actual cost 

of providing such service or regulation. 

4.7.  Fees Effective at Time of Payment. Unless the City is otherwise bound by the terms of a 

prior, separate, contractual requirement, the impact fee shall be determined from the impact fee schedule in 

effect at the time of payment in accordance with the provisions of Section 5 below. 

 Section 5.  Impact Fee Imposed. 

 Impact fees are hereby imposed as a condition of the issuance of a building permit by the City for any 

development activity which creates additional demand and need for public facilities or makes demands on the Storm 

Water facilities in the City.  The fees imposed are outlined and attached in Exhibit B. 

 Section 6.  Fee Exceptions and Adjustments. 

6.1.  Waiver for “Public Purpose”.  The Council may, on a project by project basis, authorize 

exceptions or adjustments to the then impact fee rate structure for those projects the Council determines to 

be of such benefit to the community as a whole to justify the exception or the adjustment.   

6.2.  Adjustments.  The Council may adjust impact fees imposed pursuant to this Ordinance as 

necessary in order to respond to unusual circumstances in specific areas, ensure that impact fees are 

imposed fairly, permit the adjustments of the amount of the impact fees based upon studies and data 

submitted by an applicant in order to ensure that the impact fee represents the proportionate share of the 

cost of providing such public facilities which are reasonably related to and necessary in order to provide the 

services in question to anticipate future growth and development activities.  The Council may also adjust 

impact fees to respond to a request for a prompt and individualized impact fee review for the development 

activity of an agency of the State of Utah, a school district, or charter school. 



Section 7. Appeal. 

5.1.  Any person required to pay an impact fee who believes the fee does not meet the 

requirements of the law may file a written request for information with the City Council.  

5.2.  Within two weeks of the receipt of the request for information the City shall provide the 

person or entity with a copy of the reports and with any other relevant information relating to the impact fee. 

5.3.  Any person or entity required to pay an impact fee imposed under this article, who 

believes the fee does not meet the requirements of law may request and be granted a full administrative 

appeal of that grievance. An appeal shall be made to the Council within thirty (30) calendar days of the date 

of the action complained of, or the date when the complaining person reasonably should have become 

aware of the action. 

5.4  The notice of the administrative appeal to the Council shall be filed and shall contain the 

following information: 

 1. The person’s name, mailing address, and daytime telephone number; 

 2. A copy of the written request for information and a brief summary of the grounds for 

appeal; 

 3. The relief sought. 

5.5  The City shall schedule the appeal before the Council no sooner than five (5) days and no 

later than fifteen (15) days from the date of the filing of the appeal. The written decision of the Council shall 

be made no later than thirty (30) days after the date the challenge to the fee is filed with the City and shall, 

when necessary, be forwarded to the appropriate officials for action. 

Section 8. Severability. 

 If any section, part or provision of this Ordinance is held invalid or unenforceable, such invalidity or 

unenforceability shall not affect any other portion of this Ordinance, and all sections, parts and provisions of this 

Ordinance shall be severable. 

Section 9. Effective Date. 

 This Ordinance shall be effective on May 13, 2019 or 90 days after the adoption of the Ordinance as 

required by Utah Code Ann. 11-36a-401(2). 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF SYRACUSE CITY, STATE OF UTAH, 

THIS 12th DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2019. 

 

 

 



SYRACUSE CITY 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ By:____________________________________ 

Cassie Z. Brown, City Recorder       Terry Palmer, Mayor 

 

 

Voting by the City Council: 

 

       “AYE”   “NAY” 

Councilmember Anderson    ______ ______ 

Councilmember Buldoc    ______ ______ 

Councilmember Gailey    ______ ______ 

Councilmember Maughan    ______ ______ 

Councilmember Savage    ______ ______ 

 

 



 

 



 

 

Syracuse City Storm Drain Master Plan Update 

 

August 2018 (Draft) 

 

 
 

Prepared By:  

 

466 N Kays Drive  

Kaysville, UT 84037 

(801) 547-0393



 

 

SYRACUSE CITY 

STORM DRAIN MASTER PLAN 2018 

IMPACT FEE FACILITIES PLAN (IFFP) CERTIFICATION 

 

In accordance with 11-36a-306., Certification of impact fee analysis,  

“I certify that the attached impact fee facilities plan: 

1. includes only the costs of public facilities that are: 

             a. allowed under the Impact Fees Act; and 

            b. actually incurred; or 

            c. projected to be incurred or encumbered within six years after the day on which 

each impact fee is paid; 

2. does not include: 

            a. costs of operation and maintenance of public facilities; 

            b. costs for qualifying public facilities that will raise the level of service for the 

facilities, through impact fees, above the level of service that is supported by existing 

residents; or 

c. an expense for overhead, unless the expense is calculated pursuant to a 

methodology that is consistent with generally accepted cost accounting practices and the 

methodological standards set forth by the federal Office of Management and Budget for 

federal grant reimbursement; and 

3. complies in each and every relevant respect with the Impact Fees Act.”   

 

With the following conditions: 

1.  All of the recommendations for implementations of the IFFP made in the IFFP 

documents or in the Impact Fee Analysis documents are followed by City Staff and 

elected officials. 

2.  If all or a portion of the IFFP or Impact Fee Analysis are modified or amended, this 

certification is no longer valid. 

3.  All information provided to J-U-B is assumed to be correct, complete, and accurate. 

This includes information provided by the City as well as outside sources. 

4.  Clinton City has agreed that the work performed in preparation of the Impact Fee 

Facilities Plan meets the industry Standard of Care for such plans. 

 

Signed: 

 

_________________________________ _________________________________ 

Nathan Smith, P.E.,                 Date 

J-U-B Engineers, Inc. 



TABLE OF CONTENTS    

 

Syracuse City Storm Drain Master Plan Update 

i 

 

1.0 Introduction .............................................................................................................................. 1 

1.1 Growth and Projections ............................................................................................................ 1 

2.0 Storm Water Master Plan Update ............................................................................................ 2 

2.1 Existing System Evaluation ....................................................................................................... 2 

2.2 Existing Inventory ...................................................................................................................... 3 

2.3 Calculation of Excess Capacity .................................................................................................. 3 

2.4 “At Capacity” Condition/Future System Evaluation ................................................................. 3 

3.0 Computer Model Information .................................................................................................. 3 

3.1 Hydrologic Information ............................................................................................................. 4 

3.2 Level of Service ......................................................................................................................... 4 

3.3 Hydraulic Information ............................................................................................................... 4 

4.0 Capital Facilities Projects .......................................................................................................... 5 

4.1 10-Year Projections ................................................................................................................... 6 

4.2 Cost Estimates ........................................................................................................................... 7 

5.0 Conclusions and Recommendations ......................................................................................... 7 

Appendix A – Figures ...................................................................................................................... A 

Appendix B - Cost Estimates ........................................................................................................... B 

Appendix C - Data ........................................................................................................................... C 



FIGURES AND TABLES    

 

Syracuse City Storm Drain Master Plan Update 

ii 

Figures 
 

Figure 1 – Syracuse City Population ................................................. Error! Bookmark not defined. 

Figure 2 – Table 2.1 Curve Number and Soil Types ........................................................................ 2 

Figure 3 – Table 2.3 Storm Drain System Inventory ........................ Error! Bookmark not defined. 

Figure 4 – Table 4.0 Cost Summary ................................................. Error! Bookmark not defined. 



STORM WATER MASTER PLAN UPDATE    

 

Syracuse City Storm Drain Master Plan Update 

1 

1.0 Introduction 
The last update to the Syracuse City Storm Water Master 

Plan was in 2007.  Syracuse City has commissioned that 

this Storm Water Master Plan update or Impact Fee 

Facilities Plan (IFFP) and subsequent Impact Fee 

Assessment (IFA) be done.   J-U-B is doing the Master 

Plan or IFFP. Syracuse City has commissioned Zions 

Bank to complete the IFA. Several components are 

needed for the IFFA, namely: IFFA certification, included 

at the beginning of this report; certain determination as 

discussed in the Impact Fee Facilities Plan section, and 

Cost Estimates.  These documents form the basis for 

Impact Fees that can be used for future development 

projects. 

1.1 Growth and Projections 
 The 2014 population in Syracuse City, according to the 

U.S. Census Bureau, was 26,639 (U.S. Census Bureau, 2014).  

The growth rate from 2010 to 2014 was 9.3 percent (U.S. Census Bureau), which was a 2.3 

percent annual rate of change.  The growth rate from 2000 to 2010 was 149.73 percent, which 

was nearly a 15 

percent annual rate 

of change.  The 

future growth rate 

is anticipated to 

range from 4.7 

percent in the early 

years to 2.1 percent 

as the City 

approaches build-

out (Syracuse, 

2014).  The 

residential 

population versus 

year is shown in 

Figure 1.1.  

 

 -

 10,000

 20,000

 30,000

 40,000

 50,000

 60,000

2010 2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040

C
it

y
 P

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n

Year

Figure 1.1 - Syracuse City Population



STORM WATER MASTER PLAN UPDATE    

 

Syracuse City Storm Drain Master Plan Update 

2 

2.0 Storm Water Master Plan Update 
The capital facilities plan list was updated as part of the storm water masterplan and is intended 

to comply with the latest IFFP requirements of the State Impact fee laws, as stated in the 

Certification. There are several areas that need to be covered in this study for this purpose. These 

include Service Area Boundary; Demand Definition; Level of Service; Computation of Excess 

Capacity; and Future Capital Facilities. 

2.1 Existing System 

Evaluation 
The Service Area for this study and 

subsequent impact fee calculation is 

that of the current City limits. Land 

use for the service area was obtained 

from the current City zone map.  The 

land use is broken into seven 

categories as shown in table 2.1.  Soil 

data was downloaded from the USDA 

website and was used to define soil 

types throughout the service area.  

The SCS curve number data is a 

function of soil type and landuse. SCS curve numbers were taken from “Hydrologic Analysis 

and Design”, 3rd Edition, McCuen, etal, 2005.  The SCS curve numbers used in the model are 

shown in table 2.1. 

Table 2.1 Curve Number and Soil Types 

 

Soil Types 

  

Soil Type School Industrial Commercial A-1 P.O. R-1 R-2, 3

B 85 88 92 67 88 72 75

C 90 91 94 76 91 81 83

D 92 93 95 80 93 86 87

Curve Numbers

Detention Pond – 1475 W 2150 S 

 



STORM WATER MASTER PLAN UPDATE    

 

Syracuse City Storm Drain Master Plan Update 

3 

2.2 Existing Inventory 
An inventory of the Storm Drain system is given in Table 

2.2. This is given as information only for the size of the 

system. This table shows 258,452 feet of pipe or 48.9 miles 

within the City. The value of the system is based upon the 

City’s financial documents for costs, which are a part of 

the Impact Fee Analysis. 

2.3 Calculation of Excess Capacity 
The existing scenario was used to calculate the excess 

capacity in the existing storm drain system.  The model 

was used to calculate the maximum flow for each pipe 

using Manning’s equation.  The model compared this flow 

to the actual peak flow through the pipe and output a 

reserve capacity value.  These values are reported in 

Appendix C. Some of the pipes in this report show the 

existing peak flowrate to be “0 cfs”.  This typically means 

that flows generated from the model are entering the 

modeled pipe system downstream of the reporting pipe.  

The model is not setup to determine the inflow at each 

storm drain inlet.     

2.4 “At Capacity” Condition/Future System Evaluation 
The condition at which the development is complete and all land is improved with either 

buildings, asphalt or landscaping is considered the “At Capacity” condition. This also means the 

greatest flow possible from those developments would be received in the pipes and basins. No 

attempt has been made in this study to determine a particular year for this condition, as the rates 

would slow when land becomes more scarce, pushing back the date of any estimate.  

3.0 Computer Model Information 
InfoSWMM software was used to evaluate the storm drain system. This software is produced by 

Innovyze and is the standard in the industry for storm water modeling. An asset of this software 

is its ability to interface with ESRI GIS software for quick and easy transition from a Global 

Information Database to a network model.   

 

Table 2.2 Storm Drain System 

Inventory 



STORM WATER MASTER PLAN UPDATE    

 

Syracuse City Storm Drain Master Plan Update 

4 

3.1 Hydrologic 

Information 
Hydrology is the study of the movement 

and flow of water through its natural 

circulation from rainfall to runoff. 

Rainfall is recorded over time with rain 

gages.  Computer models are used to 

simulate rainfall events. The City has 

historically required the evaluation of 

the 1-inch of rainfall over a time step of 

1 hour distributed according to the 

Farmer-Fletcher Distribution. A copy of 

the Farmer-Fletcher information is 

included in Appendix C, Table C-1.   

In the Impact Fee Law, there is a 

differentiation between “project” and 

“system improvements”. “Projects” are 

paid for and installed by the developer 

as part of the subdivision development.  

System improvements are needed to 

accommodate future development to the 

cities storm drain infrastructure. For this 

report, “project” improvements are required to detain their flows and discharge to only 0.2 

cfs/acre to the Syracuse City storm drain system.   In accordance to an agreement with Davis 

County, areas north of 700 South may only release at a rate of 0.15 cfs/acre of development. 

These project improvements are not considered part of the impact fee, but the responsibility of 

the developer/owner.  

3.2 Level of Service 
Syracuse city has defined the level of service for the storm drain system as the ability to convey 

the 1 inch in 1 hour design storm within the storm drain piping, detention ponds, and roadways. 

3.3 Hydraulic Information  
Pipe information, over land slopes, soil types and land use information are interwoven to define 

the hydraulic network. Hydrology information is then applied to the hydraulic network and the 

system is evaluated.   



STORM WATER MASTER PLAN UPDATE    

 

Syracuse City Storm Drain Master Plan Update 

5 

The system is broken down into sub basins that use GIS information to determine the way that 

rain water will flow off of the site. This information is unique to each sub basin. 

In Appendix A, Figure I shows the existing pipe system used in the InfoSWMM computer 

model.  Figure 2 shows the existing modeled system. 

4.0 Capital Facilities Projects 
Appendix B includes the cost estimates for future projects that have been identified through 

modeling. Figure 3 and Figure 4 show the locations of the projects. Table 4.0 shows the 

summary of the costs. A 30% contingency has been added to the project to account for items 

such as inflation rates and other unknowns that occur at this level of design.  There is also a 10% 

amount added to each cost estimate for Engineering.  

Table 4.0 Project Costs 

Notes:  "New Development" indicates system improvements that are included in the impact fee calculation.  "Developer Base 

Cost" indicates projects improvements that may need oversizing for future development outside of the existing development.  

Some assumptions have been made on minimum pipe sizing; however, the developer must take care of their development in 

spite of these assumptions.  "Existing Deficiency" indicates System Improvements that are currently deficient, independent of 

any new growth. 

 



STORM WATER MASTER PLAN UPDATE    

 

Syracuse City Storm Drain Master Plan Update 

6 

Table 4.0 breaks the costs into three categories: Existing Deficiencies, New Development; and 

Developer Base Cost. The Existing Deficiencies are projects that are problems today regardless 

of any additional growth. These should be paid by the existing residents through means other 

than impact fees. New Development projects are those that would not be required if not for 

growth. The Developer Base Cost is the cost for the minimum size of pipe and improvement 

needed for a particular development.  Since a minimum pipe size is 15” per city standards, this 

would include the 15” pipe in a new development and the equivalent percentage of a project with 

larger pipes that exceed the need of the development.  

4.1 10-Year Projections 
A review has been made of the priority of the projects in order to determine the needs within the 

next 0-5 years, 5-10 years, and beyond 10 years. This analysis is included in table 4.1.  

Table 4.1 Project Schedule

 

Project Number Project Location
0-5 Years 

(2018-2023)

5-10 Years 

(2024-2029)

Beyond 10 

Years

SD-01 1700 S Bluff Rd 2,848,000$  

SD-02 3000 W 1325 S 125,000$      

SD-03 650 S 3500 W 447,000$      

SD-04 600 S 3175 W 750,000$      

SD-05 435 S 3000 W 639,187$      

SD-06 2500 W 435 S 900,553$      

SD-07 700 S 2750 W 782,000$      

SD-08 Bluff Rd 1550 W 589,000$      

SD-09 2500 S 2675 W 1,215,379$     

SD-10 2700 S 3000 W 2,011,000$     

SD-11 3000 S 2400 W 6,120,000$     

SD-12 3000 W 3500 S 1,548,000$     

SD-13 2000 W 3200 S 673,000$         

SD-14 1900 W 3300 S 1,030,947$     

SD-15 2700 S 3720 W 1,012,000$     

SD-16 2700 S 3230 W 1,825,241$     

SD-17 3000 W 1000 S 930,706$        

SD-18 1700 S 4300 W 2,423,000$     

SD-19 2200 S 3720 W 1,954,037$     

SD-20 3700 S 1425 W 1,784,000$     

SD-21 700 W Bluff Rd. 1,914,602$     

SD-22 700 S 3600 W 605,000$        

TOTAL 7,080,740$  15,435,566$   9,611,346$     



STORM WATER MASTER PLAN UPDATE    

 

Syracuse City Storm Drain Master Plan Update 

7 

4.2 Project Cost Estimates 
Efforts have been made to obtain as much information about the future project and yet keep the 

estimates simple and understandable. Assumptions have been made on slopes, depth and utility 

corridor availability. Additional assumptions are shown in project cost estimates located in 

Appendix B. 

5.0 Conclusions and Recommendations 
It is recommended that the City do the following: 

1. This study and the Associated IFA must be adopted by the City along with specified 

public hearings in accordance with the Law prior to adoption. 

2. As stated in the IFFP certification, it is imperative that the City know and understand the 

information in both this IFFP and the IFA accompanying this study. 

3. The City needs to continue to collect storm water utility fees in order to adequately 

operate, maintain, and manage the existing storm water system.   

4. Along with Existing Deficiencies, it is recommended that the City evaluate other 

depreciation issues in an effort to keep the infrastructure current.  This would include, but 

not be limited to deteriorating concrete pipes, rusted corrugated metal pipes, and old 

pipes that have exceeded the expected useful life.   

5. Continue to collect survey grade elevation data for manhole locations, rim and invert 

elevations, and pipe size in and out of the manholes.  This data needs to be updated in the 

cities GIS database and the InfoSwmm Model. 

6. This study should be reevaluated in no more than 10 years to keep well within the 10 year 

planning window for capital improvements allowed by the impact fee law. 

7. Figure 5 is included in Appendix A to show the peak flows that have been calculated in 

the system.  These values do not represent the absolute maximum flowrate that may 

occur through the piping system.   

 



APPENDIX    

 

Syracuse City Storm Drain Master Plan Update 

A 

Appendix A – Figures 

  



APPENDIX    

 

Syracuse City Storm Drain Master Plan Update 

B 

Appendix B - Cost Estimates 

  



APPENDIX    

 

Syracuse City Storm Drain Master Plan Update 

C 

Appendix C - Data 



 

Syracuse City  

Storm Water 

 Impact Fee Analysis 
  

  

 

December 6, 2018 

  

 



 

 

Syracuse City | Storm Water Impact Fee Analysis  

Zions Public Finance, Inc. | December 2018 

 

Table of Contents 

Table of Contents .......................................................................................................................................... 2 

Summary of Impact Fee Analysis .................................................................................................................. 3 

Background Information ........................................................................................................................... 3 

Impact on Consumption of Existing Capacity ........................................................................................... 3 

Impact on System Improvements by Anticipated New Development ..................................................... 3 

Proportionate Share Analysis and Impact Fee Calculation ....................................................................... 4 

Manner of Financing for Public Facilities .................................................................................................. 4 

Utah Code Legal Requirements .................................................................................................................... 5 

Notice of Intent to Prepare Impact Fee Analysis ...................................................................................... 5 

Preparation of Impact Fee Analysis .......................................................................................................... 5 

Calculating Impact Fees ............................................................................................................................ 6 

Certification of Impact Fee Analysis.......................................................................................................... 6 

Impact Fee Enactment .............................................................................................................................. 6 

Consumption of Existing Capacity, Impact on System Improvements and How Impacts are Related to 

Anticipated Development Activity ................................................................................................................ 6 

Growth in Demand .................................................................................................................................... 6 

Consumption of Existing Capacity by Anticipated New Development ..................................................... 7 

Impact on System Improvements by Anticipated New Development ..................................................... 7 

Relation of Anticipated Development Activity to Impacts on Existing Capacity and System 

Improvements ........................................................................................................................................... 9 

Proportionate Share Analysis ........................................................................................................................ 9 

Costs for Existing Capacity .................................................................................................................... 9 

The City has elected not to include any buy-in costs for existing, excess capacity.  This serves to 

reduce the impact fee. .......................................................................................................................... 9 

Costs of System Improvements Related to New Development Activity ............................................... 9 

Impact Fee Calculation ........................................................................................................................ 10 

Manner of Financing, Credits, Etc. .............................................................................................................. 11 

Certification................................................................................................................................................. 11 

 



 

 

Syracuse City | Storm Water Impact Fee Analysis  

Zions Public Finance, Inc. | December 2018 

 

Summary of Impact Fee Analysis 

 

 
Background Information 

Syracuse City (the “City”) retained J-U-B Engineers, Inc. to prepare an Impact Fee Facilities Plan (IFFP) for 
storm water, and retained Zions Public Finance, Inc. to prepare this Impact Fee Analysis (IFA) for the 
calculation of appropriate storm water impact fees.  This IFA relies on the information provided in the IFFP 
regarding current system capacity and future storm water capital facility needs, cost and timing. 
 
Service Areas. There is one service area in Syracuse for the purpose of calculating storm water impact 
fees. 
 
Level of Service. The IFFP identifies the level of service as follows:1 
 

Syracuse City has defined the level of service for the storm drain system as the ability to convey 
the 1 inch in 1-hour design storm within the storm drain piping, detention ponds and roadways. 

 
Growth Projections.  Over the next 10 years (2018-2028), Syracuse is expected to experience development 
on 1,240 acres. 
 
TABLE 1:  GROWTH PROJECTIONS 

Development Acres 

 Developed Acres – 2018 3,579  

 Projected Developed Acres - 2028                              4,819  

 Growth in Developed Acres, 2018-2028                             1,240  

Source:  Davis County Assessor’s Office; ZPFI 

 
 

Impact on Consumption of Existing Capacity 

Utah Code 11-36a-304(1)(a) 
 
The Master Plan and IFFP prepared by J-U-B Engineers, Inc., models existing, excess capacity in the system, 
but does not identify excess capacity that will be consumed by new development over the next 10 years.  
Therefore, no buy-in costs of excess capacity have been included in the calculation of impact fees.  This 
results in a lower, more conservative impact fee. 
 

 
Impact on System Improvements by Anticipated New Development 

Utah Code 11-36a-304(1)(b) 
 
The City has determined that, to maintain its current level of storm water service, additional storm water 
improvements will be required at a total cost of $21,219,121. The new improvements necessitated by 
new development within the next 10 years that are eligible for impact fees are projected to cost 
$11,782,537.  J-U-B has identified $4,445,400 of projects, over the next 10 years, that are necessary to 

                                                           
1J-U-B Engineers, Inc., August 2018, Storm Drain Master Plan and IFFP, p. 4. 



 

 

Syracuse City | Storm Water Impact Fee Analysis  

Zions Public Finance, Inc. | December 2018 

 

serve existing development.  A credit for these projects has been made against the total impact fees so 
that new development will only pay for its fair share of new improvements.    
 
 

Proportionate Share Analysis and Impact Fee Calculation 

Utah Code 11-36a-304(1)(d)landl(e) and (2)(a)landl(b) 
 
The cost of new storm water facilities, along with allowable consultant costs, is summarized in the table 
below: 
 
TABLE 2:  PER ACRE IMPACT FEE CALCULATION 

Summary New Development Cost per Acre 

New Construction $9,502.05 

Consultant Cost $34.35 

Impact Fee Fund Balance Credit ($1,153.09) 

TOTAL GROSS FEE per Acre $8,383.31 

 
A credit is then made for the new capital projects that will benefit existing development.  The total amount 
of these projects is $4,445,400, or an average of $444,540 per year for the next ten years.  The cost of 
these improvements is divided over the total acres in the City, with a credit per acre made against the 
total impact fee of $8,383.31. 
 
TABLE 3:  PER ACRE IMPACT FEE CREDITS 

Year 
Developed 

Acres 

Existing 
Development- 
Average Cost 

per Year 

Existing 
Development 

- Cost per 
Acre 

NPV* of 
Credits 

Cost per 
Acre 

2018                    3,579  $444,540 $124.21 $984.46  $7,398.85 

2019                    3,703  $444,540 $120.05 $894.66  $7,488.65 

2020                    3,827  $444,540 $116.16 $805.60  $7,577.71 

2021                    3,951  $444,540 $112.51 $717.02  $7,666.29 

2022                    4,075  $444,540 $109.09 $628.69  $7,754.62 

2023                    4,199  $444,540 $105.87 $540.38  $7,842.93 

2024                    4,323  $444,540 $102.83 $451.89  $7,931.42 

2025                    4,447  $444,540 $99.96 $363.02  $8,020.29 

2026                    4,571  $444,540 $97.25 $273.58  $8,109.73 

2027                    4,695  $444,540 $94.68 $183.38  $8,199.93 

2028                    4,819  $444,540 $92.25 $92.25  $8,291.06 

*NPV = net present value at a discount rate of 4 percent 

 
 

Manner of Financing for Public Facilities 

The City has no bonds outstanding for storm water facilities and therefore no credits are required for 
outstanding bonds.  No bonds are anticipated in order to pay for storm water facilities within the next 10 
years and, therefore, no credits are necessary at this time for future bonds. 



 

 

Syracuse City | Storm Water Impact Fee Analysis  

Zions Public Finance, Inc. | December 2018 

 

 

Utah Code Legal Requirements 

Utah law requires that communities prepare an Impact Fee Analysis (IFA) based on the information 
presented in the Impact Fee Facilities Plan (IFFP) before enacting an impact fee. Utah law also requires 
that communities give notice of their intent to prepare and adopt an IFA. This IFA follows all legal 
requirements as outlined below.   The City has retained Zions Finance Inc. (ZPFI) to prepare this Impact 
Fee Analysis in accordance with legal requirements. 
 

Notice of Intent to Prepare Impact Fee Analysis  

A local political subdivision must provide written notice of its intent to prepare an IFA before preparing 
the Analysis (Utah Code 11-36a-503(1)).  This notice must be posted on the Utah Public Notice website.  
The City has complied with this noticing requirement for the IFA by posting notice. 
 

Preparation of Impact Fee Analysis  

Utah Code requires that “each local political subdivision… intending to impose an impact fee shall prepare 
a written analysis of each impact fee” (Utah Code 11-36a-303).   
 
Section 11-36a-304 of the Utah Code outlines the requirements of an impact fee analysis which is required 
to identify the following: 
 

(a) identify the anticipated impact on or consumption of any existing capacity of a public 
facility by the anticipated development activity; 

(b) identify the anticipated impact on system improvements required by the anticipated 
development activity to maintain the established level of service for each public facility; 

(c) demonstrate how anticipated impacts are reasonably related to the anticipated 
development activity; 

(d)    estimate the proportionate share of: 
(i)  The costs for existing capacity that will be recouped; and 
(ii) The costs of impacts on system improvement that are reasonably related 

to the new development activity; and 
(e) based on the requirements of this chapter, identify how the impact fee was calculated. 

 
Further, in analyzing whether or not the proportionate share of the costs of public facilities are reasonably 
related to the new development activity, the local political subdivision or private entity, as the case may 
be, shall identify, if applicable: 
 

(a) the cost of each existing public facility that has excess capacity to serve the anticipated 
development resulting from the new development activity; 

(b) the cost of system improvements for each public facility; 
(c)   other than impact fees, the manner of financing for each public facility such as user 

charges, special assessments, bonded indebtedness, general taxes, or federal grants; 
(d) the relative extent to which development activity will contribute to financing the excess 

capacity of and system improvements for each existing public facility, by means such as 
user charges, special assessments, or payment from the proceeds of general taxes; 

(e) the relative extent to which development activity will contribute to the cost of existing 
public facilities and system improvements in the future; 



 

 

Syracuse City | Storm Water Impact Fee Analysis  

Zions Public Finance, Inc. | December 2018 

 

(f) the extent to which the development activity is entitled to a credit against impact fees 
because the development activity will dedicate system improvements or public facilities 
that will offset the demand for system improvements, inside or outside the proposed 
development;  

(g) extraordinary costs, if any in servicing the newly developed properties; and 
(h) the time-price differential inherent in fair comparisons of amounts paid at different times. 

 

Calculating Impact Fees  

Utah Code states that for purposes of calculating an impact fee, a local political subdivision or private 
entity may include: 
 

(a) the construction contract price; 
(b) the cost of acquiring land, improvements, materials, and fixtures; 
(c) the cost for planning, surveying, and engineering fees for services provided for and 

directly related to the construction of the system improvements; and 
(d) for political subdivision, debt service charges, if the political subdivision might use impact 

fees as a revenue stream to pay the principal and interest on bonds, notes or other 
obligations issued to finance the costs of the system improvements. 

 
Additionally, the Code states that each political subdivision or private entity shall base impact fee amounts 
on realistic estimates and the assumptions underlying those estimates shall be disclosed in the impact fee 
analysis. 
 

Certification of Impact Fee Analysis  

Utah Code states that an impact fee analysis shall include a written certification from the person or entity 
that prepares the impact fee facilities plan. This certification is included as part of this Impact Fees 
Analysis. 
 

Impact Fee Enactment 

Utah Code states that a local political subdivision or private entity wishing to impose impact fees shall 
pass an impact fee enactment in accordance with Section 11-36a-402.  Additionally, an impact fee 
imposed by an impact fee enactment may not exceed the highest fee justified by the impact fee analysis. 
An impact fee enactment may not take effect until 90 days after the day on which the impact fee 
enactment is approved.  

 
 
Consumption of Existing Capacity, Impact on System Improvements and How 
Impacts are Related to Anticipated Development Activity 

Utah Code 11-36a-304(1)(a),(b)landl(c) 
 

Growth in Demand 

Growth in developed acres will generate demand for storm water facilities. The table below shows the 
projected growth in the City. 
 
 
TABLE 4:  PROJECTED GROWTH  



 

 

Syracuse City | Storm Water Impact Fee Analysis  

Zions Public Finance, Inc. | December 2018 

 

Year  Developed Acres   New Acres Developed per Year  

2018                3,579   

2019                3,703                     124  

2020                3,827                     124  

2021                3,951                     124  

2022                4,075                     124  

2023                4,199                     124  

2024                4,323                     124  

2025                4,447                     124  

2026                4,571                     124  

2027                4,695                     124  

2028                4,819                     124  

Growth in Acres                1,240                 1,240  

Source: Davis County Assessor’s Office; ZPFI 
 

 

Consumption of Existing Capacity by Anticipated New Development 

 
The City’s Storm Water Master Plan and IFFP does not identify any existing, excess capacity in the storm 
water system. 
 

Impact on System Improvements by Anticipated New Development 

 
The City has determined to maintain its current level of storm water service. Therefore, additional storm 
water improvements will be required in order to maintain the established storm water level of service.  
The IFFP identifies the level of service as follows:2 
 

Syracuse City has defined the level of service for the storm drain system as the ability to convey 
the 1 inch in 1-hour design storm within the storm drain piping, detention ponds and roadways. 

 
The following projects have been identified in the IFFP as necessary for existing and new development. 
 
TABLE 5:  NEW SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS NECESSITATED BY EXISTING AND NEW DEVELOPMENT  

Project 
Number 

Project Location Capital Costs Timeframe 
Existing 

Contribution 
10-Year Growth 

Contribution 

Growth 
Beyond 10 

Years 

SD-01 1700 S Bluff RD $2,287,000  0-10 Years  0% 100% 0% 

SD-02 3000 W 1325 S $125,000  0-10 Years  30% 70% 0% 

SD-03 650 S 3500 W $0  0-10 Years  0% 100% 0% 

SD-04 600 S 3175 W $0  0-10 Years  0% 100% 0% 

SD-05 435 S 3000 W $32,620  0-10 Years  0% 100% 0% 

SD-06 3000 S 2400 W $6,120,000  0-10 Years  30% 70% 0% 

SD-07 700 S 2750 W $782,000  0-10 Years  10% 90% 0% 

SD-08 3000 W 3500 S $1,548,000  0-10 Years  30% 70% 0% 

SD-09 2500 S 2675 W $162,808  0-10 Years  0% 100% 0% 

                                                           
2J-U-B Engineers, Inc., August 2018, Storm Drain Master Plan and IFFP, p. 4. 



 

 

Syracuse City | Storm Water Impact Fee Analysis  

Zions Public Finance, Inc. | December 2018 

 

Project 
Number 

Project Location Capital Costs Timeframe 
Existing 

Contribution 
10-Year Growth 

Contribution 

Growth 
Beyond 10 

Years 

SD-10 2700 S 3000 W $2,011,000  0-10 Years  30% 70% 0% 

SD-11 2500 W 435 S $26,384  0-10 Years  0% 100% 0% 

SD-12 Bluff Rd 1550 W $589,000  0-10 Years  50% 50% 0% 

SD-13 2000 W 3200 S $673,000  0-10 Years  90% 10% 0% 

SD-14 1900 W 3300 S $245,979  0-10 Years  0% 100% 0% 

SD-15 2700 S 3720 W  $1,012,000  0-10 Years  40% 25% 35% 

SD-16 2700 S 3230 W $362,346  0-10 Years  0% 100% 0% 

SD-17 700 S 3600 W $605,000  0-10 Years  20% 80% 0% 

SD-18 1700 S 4300 W $2,423,000 
 Beyond 10 

Years  
85% 0% 15% 

SD-19 2200 S 3720 W $526,823 
 Beyond 10 

Years  
30% 0% 70% 

SD-20 3700 S 1425 W $1,393,000 
 Beyond 10 

Years  
0% 0% 100% 

SD-21 700 W Bluff Rd. $219,785 
 Beyond 10 

Years  
0% 0% 100% 

SD-22  3000 W 1000 S $74,378 
 Beyond 10 

Years  
0% 0% 100% 

  TOTAL $21,219,121         

 
 

From this information it is then possible to calculate the cost to new development over the next 10 years, 
as well as the costs attributable to existing development. 
 
TABLE 6:  NEW SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS NECESSITATED BY EXISTING AND NEW DEVELOPMENT  

Project 
Number 

Project Location Capital Costs 
Existing 

Contribution 

10-Yr 
Growth 

Contribution 

Growth 
Beyond 
10 Year 

Cost to New 
Development, 

Years 1-10

Cost to 
Existing 

Development

SD-01 1700 S Bluff RD $2,287,000 0% 100% 0% $2,287,000 $0

SD-02 3000 W 1325 S $125,000 30% 70% 0% $87,500 $37,500

SD-03 650 S 3500 W $0 0% 100% 0% $0 $0

SD-04 600 S 3175 W $0 0% 100% 0% $0 $0

SD-05 435 S 3000 W $32,620 0% 100% 0% $32,620 $0

SD-06 3000 S 2400 W $6,120,000 30% 70% 0% $4,284,000 $1,836,000

SD-07 700 S 2750 W $782,000 10% 90% 0% $703,800 $78,200

SD-08 3000 W 3500 S $1,548,000 30% 70% 0% $1,083,600 $464,400

SD-09 2500 S 2675 W $162,808 0% 100% 0% $162,808 $0

SD-10 2700 S 3000 W $2,011,000 30% 70% 0% $1,407,700 $603,300

SD-11 2500 W 435 S $26,384 0% 100% 0% $26,384 $0

SD-12 Bluff Rd 1550 W $589,000 50% 50% 0% $294,500 $294,500

SD-13 2000 W 3200 S $673,000 90% 10% 0% $67,300 $605,700

SD-14 1900 W 3300 S $245,979 0% 100% 0% $245,979 $0

SD-15 2700 S 3720 W  $1,012,000 40% 25% 35% $253,000 $404,800



 

 

Syracuse City | Storm Water Impact Fee Analysis  

Zions Public Finance, Inc. | December 2018 

 

Project 
Number 

Project Location Capital Costs 
Existing 

Contribution 

10-Yr 
Growth 

Contribution 

Growth 
Beyond 
10 Year 

Cost to New 
Development, 

Years 1-10

Cost to 
Existing 

Development

SD-16 2700 S 3230 W $362,346 0% 100% 0% $362,346 $0

SD-17 700 S 3600 W $605,000 20% 80% 0% $484,000 $121,000

SD-18 1700 S 4300 W $2,423,000 85% 0% 15% $0 $2,059,550

SD-19 2200 S 3720 W $526,823 30% 0% 70% $0 $158,047

SD-20 3700 S 1425 W $1,393,000 0% 0% 100% $0 $0

SD-21 700 W Bluff Rd. $219,785 0% 0% 100% $0 $0

SD-22  3000 W 1000 S $74,378 0% 0% 100% $0 $0

  TOTAL Years 1-10+ $21,219,121       $11,782,537 $6,662,997

 TOTAL Years 1-10     $11,782,537 $4,445,400 

 

 

Relation of Anticipated Development Activity to Impacts on Existing Capacity and System 
Improvements 

The demand placed on existing storm water improvements by new development activity is attributed to 
the increased developed acres related to both residential and nonresidential growth.   
 
Based on information provided in the IFFP, new development’s share of the new improvements, over the 
next 10 years, is $11,782,537. 

 
Proportionate Share Analysis 

Utah Code 11-36a-304(1)(d)(i)landl(ii) 
 
Costs for Existing Capacity  
The City has elected not to include any buy-in costs for existing, excess capacity.  This serves to reduce the 
impact fee. 
 
Costs of System Improvements Related to New Development Activity  
The City intends to maintain its existing level of service for storm water services through adding the new 
improvements described in the Impact Fee Facilities Plan and previously in this Impact Fee Analysis.  In 
addition, engineering and consultant fees are considered a legitimate cost in calculating impact fees.  
These costs are also summarized below.   
 
Total impact-fee eligible costs for new construction, attributable to new development over the next 10 
years, are $11,782,537.  Consultant costs for the IFFP and IFA were $42,600 in order to prepare the 
engineering plans, impact fee facility plans and impact fee analysis that were necessary in order to 
calculate defensible impact fees and meet the requirements of Utah Code 11-36a regarding impact fees. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Syracuse City | Storm Water Impact Fee Analysis  

Zions Public Finance, Inc. | December 2018 

 

TABLE 7:  PER ACRE COST FOR NEW SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS AND CONSULTANT COSTS  

 Amount 

New Construction Costs:  

Impact Fee Eligible System Improvements Due to Development for10 Years $11,782,537 

Acres Served by Construction of New System Improvements Over  Next 10 Years                    1,240  

New Construction Cost per Acre $9,502.05 

Consultant Costs:  

Consultant Costs $42,600 

Acres Served by Consultant Costs                     1,240  

Consultant Costs per Acre $34.35 
 

Impact Fee Calculation  
The maximum impact fee allowable under law includes new system improvement costs of $9,502.05 per 
acre, consultant costs of $34.35 per acre, and an impact fee fund balance credit of $1,153.09 per acre, 
resulting in a total maximum gross impact fee of $8,383.31 per acre. 
 
TABLE 8: PROPORTIONATE SHARE IMPACT FEE CALCULATION  

 Fee 

New Construction $9,502.05 

Consultant Costs $34.35 

Impact Fee Fund Balance ($1,153.09) 

TOTAL Cost per Acre $8,383.31 

 
 
A credit is then made for the new capital projects that will benefit existing development.  The total amount 
of these projects is $4,445,400, or an average of $444,540 per year for the next ten years.  The cost of 
these improvements is divided over the total acres in the City, with a credit per acre made against the 
total impact fee of $8,383.31. 
 
TABLE 9:  PER ACRE IMPACT FEE CREDITS 

Year Developed Acres 
Deficiencies - 

Average Cost per 
Year 

Cost per Acre NPV of Credits Cost per Acre 

2018                    3,579  $444,540 $124.21 $984.46  $7,398.85 

2019                    3,703  $444,540 $120.05 $894.66  $7,488.65 

2020                    3,827  $444,540 $116.16 $805.60  $7,577.71 

2021                    3,951  $444,540 $112.51 $717.02  $7,666.29 

2022                    4,075  $444,540 $109.09 $628.69  $7,754.62 

2023                    4,199  $444,540 $105.87 $540.38  $7,842.93 

2024                    4,323  $444,540 $102.83 $451.89  $7,931.42 

2025                    4,447  $444,540 $99.96 $363.02  $8,020.29 

2026                    4,571  $444,540 $97.25 $273.58  $8,109.73 

2027                    4,695  $444,540 $94.68 $183.38  $8,199.93 

2028                    4,819  $444,540 $92.25 $92.25  $8,291.06 

 
 



 

 

Syracuse City | Storm Water Impact Fee Analysis  

Zions Public Finance, Inc. | December 2018 

 

Manner of Financing, Credits, Etc. 

Utah Code 11-36a-304(2)(c),(d),(e),(f),(g), landl(h) 
 
The City has no bonds outstanding for storm drain facilities and therefore no credits are required for 
outstanding bonds.  No bonds are anticipated in order to pay for storm drain facilities within the next 10 
years and, therefore, no credits are necessary at this time for future bonds. 
 
 

Certification 

Zions Bank Public Finance certifies that the attached impact fee analysis: 
 
1. Includes only the costs of public facilities that are: 

a.  allowed under the Impact Fees Act; and 
b.  actually incurred; or 
c.  projected to be incurred or encumbered within six years after the day on which each 

impact fee is paid. 
 

2. Does not include: 
a.  costs of operation and maintenance of public facilities; 
b.  costs for qualifying public facilities that will raise the level of service for the facilities, 

through impact fees, above the level of service that is supported by existing residents; 
c.  an expense for overhead, unless the expense is calculated pursuant to a methodology 

that is consistent with generally accepted cost accounting practices and the 
methodological standards set forth by the federal Office of Management and Budget for 
federal grant reimbursement. 

 
3. Offsets costs with grants or other alternate sources of payment; and 
 
4. Complies in each and every relevant respect with the Impact Fees Act. 
  
 
 



 

 

  
 

Agenda Item #8 Public Hearing – Proposed Resolution  

R19-04 amending the Syracuse City Consolidated Fee 

Schedule by making adjustments throughout. 

 

 
Factual Summation  

• Any question regarding this agenda item may be directed at Administrative Services 

Director Stephen Marshall or Fire Chief Aaron Byington, or Public Works Director 

Robert Whiteley.  See the attached consolidate fee schedule.   

 

• Below is a list of proposed changes to the consolidated fee schedule. Further down is a 

detailed explanation of the fire fee changes: 

 

o Effective 2/12/2019: 

▪ Changes to Fire Fees – see fee schedule and explanation below. 

▪ Change in description for sex offender / child abuse registration.  This 

minor modification is based on a new registry, created by statute, for 

felony child abusers. 

 

o Effective 5/13/2019: 

▪ Changes to Storm Water impact fees.  Increase to $7,488.65 or .172 per 

square foot.  See details on storm water impact fee agenda item. 

 

 

Consolidated Fee Schedule Narrative (Fire Department) 
 

The following fee schedule updates are based upon discussion from the budget retreat.  All fees 

have been compared with surrounding cities and evaluated by Brody Bovero, Aaron Byington 

and Stephen Marshall.      

 
EMT or Firefighter with basic equipment (no ambulance)  
Four Firefighter Engine Company 
Two Firefighter Brush Truck  

• For use when asked to provide stand-by services for private events (i.e. triathlons, fireworks, 
controlled burns, etc.)  

 

Fireworks Sales Permit (in addition to business license) 

• For use during times when businesses set up for fireworks sales.  This fee includes the initial 
inspection and one follow up inspection.   

COUNCIL AGENDA 
February 12, 2019 



 

 

 

Miscellaneous Inspections 

• For use when businesses require an inspection not covered under fees charged through the 
business license or building permit process (i.e. commercial fire hood testing, high pile 
storage inspection, hazardous materials storage inspection, etc.) 

• For use when private events require review and inspection (i.e. fireworks, fire dancers, large 
gathering, temporary structures, etc.)  

 

Additional Inspections (after first follow-up / no show)  

• For use when businesses fail to remedy fire and life safety insufficiencies after their first 
follow up inspection. 

• For use when businesses make an appointment for a fire inspection and fail to show without 
cause.   

 

Fire Sprinkler and Alarm System Reviews 

• For use when utilizing outside consultants to evaluate plans reviews, currently $85.00 to 
$95.00 per hour. 

• For use when utilizing the fire marshal to evaluate plans reviews in-house. These reviews are 
less complex than those requiring outside consulting.    

 

False Alarm Fees Commercial 

• For use when businesses fail to remedy the cause of false alarms which has resulted in 
multiple responses from the fire department and mutual aid companies.   

 
 

 

 

 

Action Item for Agenda 

• Consider adopting proposed resolution amending the Syracuse City Consolidated Fee 

Schedule by making the recommended changes throughout. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



RESOLUTION NO. R19-04   

 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE SYRACUSE CITY COUNCIL UPDATING AND 

AMENDING THE SYRACUSE CITY CONSOLIDATED FEE SCHEDULE 

BY MAKING ADJUSTMENTS THROUGHOUT. 

 

WHEREAS, Syracuse City Staff has reviewed and analyzed the fees charged by the City 

for various services, permits and procedures and has recommended various changes to such fees 

as more particularly provided in the attached consolidated Syracuse City Fee Schedule; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to adopt the revised Syracuse City Fee Schedule as 

recommended by Staff and as more particularly provided herein; and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF SYRACUSE 

CITY, STATE OF UTAH, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Amendment. The Syracuse City Fee Schedule is hereby updated and 

amended to read in its entirety as set forth in Exhibit "A," attached hereto and incorporated 

herein by this reference. 

 

Section 2. Severability.  If any section, part or provision of this Resolution is held 

invalid or unenforceable, such invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect any other portion of this 

Resolution, and all sections, parts and provisions of this Resolution shall be severable. 

Section 3. Effective Date.  The effective date of all these changes shall become effective 

immediately upon issuance of this resolution except for the storm water impact fee which shall 

become effective 90 days from the adoption of this resolution or on May 13, 2019. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF SYRACUSE CITY, STATE 

OF UTAH, THIS 12th DAY OF FEBRUARY 2019. 

SYRACUSE CITY 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ By:____________________________________ 

Cassie Z. Brown, City Recorder       Mike Gailey, Mayor 

 



Building All Fees Are Effective July 1, 2018 Except As Noted (All fees paid with credit card are subject to 1% fee)

Fee Description

Proposed 

Base Fee

Proposed 

Additional Fee

Base Fee 

Increase Additional Fee Increase

Bond Fees

Performance Bond $100.00 per Permit NA NA

Plan Check Fees

Residential All Permitted Structures 40% Permit Fee NA NA

Residential - Duplicate multi-family structure 50% of original plan check fee

NOTE:  Applicable within 1 year of first permit issuance and within the same ICC code period

Commercial All Permitted Structures 65% Permit Fee NA NA

Building Investigation Fee All Permitted Structures 100% % Permit Fee NA NA 

Fire Sprinkler/Safety Plans All Permitted Structures $75.00 Per Hour NA NA 

Additional Plan Review Due to Revisions $60.00 Per Hour (1/2 hr min.) NA NA

General Building Valuation

Building Value from $1-1,000.00 $60.00 ea. Unit NA NA

Building Value from $1,001-2,000 $60.00 ea. Unit $2.70 ea. addl. $100 or fraction therof

Building Value from $2,001-25,000  $87.00 ea. Unit $16.80 ea. addl. $1000 or fraction therof

Building Value from $25,001-50,000 $473.00 ea. Unit $12.11 ea. addl. $1000 or fraction therof

Building Value from $50,001-100,000 $776.00 ea. Unit $8.40 ea. addl. $1000 or fraction therof

Building Value from $100,001-500,000 $1,196.00 ea. Unit $6.72 ea. addl. $1000 or fraction therof

Building Value from $501,000-1,000,000 $3,884.00 ea. Unit $5.70 ea. addl. $1000 or fraction therof

Building Value from $1,000,000.00+ $6,734.00 ea. Unit $4.65 ea. addl. $1000 or fraction therof

Pools, Tubs & Spas

Public Pool Bid Price ea. Unit NA NA

Private Pool - In Ground Bid Price ea. Unit NA NA

Private Pool - Above Ground Temporary $60.00 ea. Unit

Private Pool - Above Ground Permenant Bid Price ea. Unit NA NA

Accessory Structures Construction Value ea. Unit NA NA

State Fee (Surcharge) 1% of Permit Fee NA NA

Expired Permit

Less Than to 180 days 65% Building Value NA NA

Greater than 180 Days but Lesss Than 1 Year 65% of Original Permit Cost NA NA

Greater Than 1 Year 100% of Original Permit Cost NA NA

Impact Fees

Parks, Trails, and Recreation $2,393.56 Per Household

Residential Transportation Single Family Residence $743.00 Per Unit NA NA

Residential Transportation Multi Family  <= 4 units $488.00 Per Unit NA NA

Residential Transportation Apartment > 4 units $379.00 Per Unit

Residential Transportation Mobile Home, RV Park $437.00 Per Unit

Commercial Transportation

General Commercial $2,703.00 Per 1,000 sf of GFA NA NA

Office/Institutional $1,085.00 Per 1,000 sf of GFA NA NA

Assisted Living $255.00 Per Bed NA NA

Hotel $444.00 Per Room NA NA

Industrial $612.00 Per 1,000 sf of GFA NA NA

Institutional Church $685.00 Per 1,000 sf of GFA NA NA

Culinary Water

 ¾” Line $805.00 ea. Unit NA NA

1” Line $1,342.00 ea. Unit NA NA

1½” Line $2,684.00 ea. Unit NA NA

2” Line $4,295.00 ea. Unit NA NA

3” Line $8,590.00 ea. Unit NA NA

4” Line $13,422.00 ea. Unit NA NA

6” Line $26,843.00 ea. Unit NA NA

8” Line $42,949.00 ea. Unit NA NA

Secondary Water - Residential

4,000-7,000sf lot $1,011.00 ea. Unit NA NA

7,001-8,000sf lot $1,470.00 ea. Unit NA NA

8,001-9,000sf lot $1,707.00 ea. Unit NA NA

9,001-10,000sf lot $1,949.00 ea. Unit NA NA

10,001-11,000sf lot $2,196.00 ea. Unit NA NA

11,001-13,000sf lot $2,572.00 ea. Unit NA NA

13,001-15,000sf lot $3,085.00 ea. Unit NA NA

Current Base Fee  Additional Fee

Approved 2-12-2019 1 of 15



Building All Fees Are Effective July 1, 2018 Except As Noted (All fees paid with credit card are subject to 1% fee)

Fee Description

Proposed 

Base Fee

Proposed 

Additional Fee

Base Fee 

Increase Additional Fee IncreaseCurrent Base Fee  Additional Fee

15,001-17,000sf lot $3,609.00 ea. Unit NA NA

17,001-19,000sf lot $4,143.00 ea. Unit NA NA

19,001-21,000sf lot $4,686.00 ea. Unit NA NA

21,001-23,000sf lot $5,236.00 ea. Unit NA NA

23,001-25,000sf lot $5,794.00 ea. Unit NA NA

25,001-27,000sf lot $6,358.00 ea. Unit NA NA

27,001-30,000sf lot $7,072.00 ea. Unit NA NA

30,001-33,000sf lot $7,939.00 ea. Unit NA NA

33,001-36,000sf lot $8,818.00 ea. Unit NA NA

36,001-39,000sf lot $9,707.00 ea. Unit NA NA

39,001-42,000sf lot $10,606.00 ea. Unit NA NA

42,001-45,000sf lot $11,512.00 ea. Unit NA NA

45,001-48,000sf lot $12,429.00 ea. Unit NA NA

48,001-51,000sf lot $13,350.00 ea. Unit NA NA

51,001-54,000sf lot $14,281.00 ea. Unit NA NA

54,001-57,000sf lot $15,216.00 ea. Unit NA NA

57,001-60,000sf lot $16,161.00 ea. Unit NA NA

Secondary Water - Open Land in a Commercial Subdivision $0.33 sf of pervious area NA NA

Sewer - North Davis Sewer District (Fee) $3,256.00 per Connection NA NA

Sewer - Storm (ENR Construction Index)  Storm Water - Residential & Commercial $7,488.65 per acre or 0.172 per sf

R1 $4,748.00 per acre or 0.109 sf NA NA

R2 $5,053.00 per acre or 0.116 sf NA NA

R3 $5,532.00 per acre or 0.127 sf NA NA

R4 $6,316.00 per acre or 0.145 sf NA NA

PRD $6,011.00 per acre or 0.138 sf NA NA

GC $11,369.00 per acre or 0.261 sf NA NA

C2 $10,716.00 per acre or 0.246 sf NA NA

I1 $11,369.00 per acre or 0.261 sf NA NA

A1 $3,006.00 per acre or 0.069 sf NA NA

PO $11,369.00 per acre or 0.261 sf NA NA

Public Safety

Residential $245.00 per application NA NA

Commercial $0.17 Per sf of building NA NA

Connection Fees

Culinary Water

 3/4” Meter $485.00 ea. Unit NA NA

 1” Meter $645.00 ea. Unit NA NA

 1 ½” Meter $840.00 ea. Unit NA NA

 2” Meter $1,143.00 ea. Unit NA NA

 3” Meter $1,860.00 ea. Unit NA NA

 4” Meter $3,165.00 ea. Unit NA NA

 6” Meter $4,942.00 ea. Unit NA NA

 8” Meter $7,303.00 ea. Unit NA NA

Secondary Water

¾” Line $300.00 ea. Unit NA NA

1” Line $400.00 ea. Unit NA NA

1½” Line $600.00 ea. Unit NA NA

2” Line $800.00 ea. Unit NA NA

3” Line $1,200.00 ea. Unit NA NA

4” Line $1,600.00 ea. Unit NA NA

6” Line $2,000.00 ea. Unit NA NA

8” Line $2,400.00 ea. Unit NA NA

Sewer - North Davis Sewer District (Connection) $240.00 per Connection NA NA

Sewer - City Connection $300.00 ea. Unit NA NA

Review for 8" Main Line $250.00

Inspection Fees  

Outside of normal business hours $114.00 Per Inspection NA NA

Re-Inspections $60.00 Per Inspection NA NA

Plan Changes 2 x Plan Fee NA NA

Inspection with no fee indicated $60.00 Per Inspection NA NA

Additional Plan Reviews Due to Revisions $60.00 Per Inspection

Approved 2-12-2019 2 of 15



Building All Fees Are Effective July 1, 2018 Except As Noted (All fees paid with credit card are subject to 1% fee)

Fee Description

Proposed 

Base Fee

Proposed 

Additional Fee

Base Fee 

Increase Additional Fee IncreaseCurrent Base Fee  Additional Fee

Miscellaneous/Requested Inspections $60.00 Per Inspection NA NA

Final Off-Site Inspection $350.00 Per Lot NA NA

Warranty Inspections

First Final Warranty $50.00 per Project NA NA

Final Warranty Re-inspection (if punch list is complete) $50.00 per Project NA NA

Third Final Warranty $75.00 per Project NA NA

Fourth Final Warranty $100.00 per Project NA NA

3rd Party Project or Plan Review Fee Variable Fee assessed to the project applicant

Sign Permit Fees

Sign - Building Permit $318.00 Per Permit NA NA

Approved 2-12-2019 3 of 15



Community Development All Fees Are Effective July 1, 2018 Except As Noted (All fees paid with credit card are subject to 1% fee)

Fee Description

Proposed 

Base Fee

Proposed 

Additional 

Fee

Base Fee 

Increase

Additional Fee 

Increase

Development Application Fees

Site Plan*

0-5 Acres $575.00 per Plan set $55.00 per Acre

5.01-10 acres $1,585.00 per Plan set $173.00 per Acre

10.01-15 acres $2,450.00 per Plan set $144.00 per Acre

15.1-20 acres $3,170.00 per Plan set $115.00 per Acre

> 20.1 acres $3,745.00 per Plan set $100.00 per Acre

Each Revised Plan* $250.00 per Plan set $50.00 per Lot

Site Plan Amendment (minor) $100.00 per Plan set NA NA

Site Plan Including Conditional use $650.00 per Plan set $55.00 per acre

Residential Development Plat*

Concept Plan Review $225.00 per Plan set

Revised Concept Plan $75.00 per Plan set

Preliminary Plan $575.00 per Plan set $50.00 per Lot

Each Revised Preliminary Plan $150.00 per Plan set $15.00 per Lot

Final Plan $575.00 per Plan set $75.00 per Lot

Each Revised Final Plan $250.00 per Plan set $50.00 per Lot

* Site Plan Review includes one (1) additional corrections review after first submittal

Staff Review Fees

Amended Subdivision $550.00 per Plan set $50.00 per Lot

Residential Multi-Family $750.00 per Plan set 1.00% Bond Amount

All Addtitional Reviews Required by Plan Changes $60.00 per Hour (1/2 hour min.) $0.00 NA

Geologic Hazards Report Review Bid Price Per Hour

Administrative Fees

Appeal to Board of Adjustments $350.00 per appeal NA NA

Plat Recording Fee (Per County Recorders Fee Schedule) $37.00 per Plat  $1/lot + $1/signature over 2 + $1/each common space

Payback or Reimbursement Agreement $500.00 per agreement NA NA

Zoning Verification / Rebuild Letter $50.00 Per Letter

Application Fees

General Plan Amendment  $450.00 per Application NA NA

Re-Zone $425.00 per Application NA NA

Text Amendment to Land Use Ordinance $200.00 per Application NA NA

Conditional Use (Major) $100.00 per Application 

Conditional Use (Minor) $100.00 per Application 

Conditional Use Extension or Modification (Major) $50.00 per Application NA NA

Agricultural Protection Area Designation $250.00 per Application $25.00 NA

Annexation Petition and Review

0-2 acres $230.00 per Application $173.00 per Acre

2.1-5 acres $575.00 per Application $144.00 per Acre

5.1-10 acres $1,007.00 per Application $115.00 per Acre

> 10 acres $1,582.00 per Application $87.00 per Acre

Easement Vacation Fee $200.00 Per Application NA NA

Car Restoration Permit $25.00 per car $15.00 renewal

Public Noticing Fees

Public Notice Signs $20.00 Per Sign

Planning & Zoning Noticing Fees $100.00 Per Application

Major Conditional Use Noticing Fees $50.00 Per Application

Business License Fees

Business License Amendment $5.00 per Amendment NA NA

Duplicate Business License $5.00 per Application NA NA

Business License Directory $5.00 per printed copy NA NA

Home Occupation $100.00 per Application NA NA

Reduced Impact Business License $25.00 per Application

Reciprocal Food Truck License $25.00 per Application

Temporary Commercial Business (6 months Max.) $50.00 per Application NA NA

Commercial Retail Business

< 5,000 sf $100.00 per Application NA NA

5,001-10,000 sf $150.00 per Application NA NA

> 10,001 sf $350.00 per Application NA NA

Commercial Professional Services $100.00 per Application NA NA

Solicitor Business License $100.00 per Application NA NA

Sexually Oriented Business (SOB)

Current Base  Fee Additional Fee

Approved 2-12-2019 4 of 15



Community Development All Fees Are Effective July 1, 2018 Except As Noted (All fees paid with credit card are subject to 1% fee)

Fee Description

Proposed 

Base Fee

Proposed 

Additional 

Fee

Base Fee 

Increase

Additional Fee 

IncreaseCurrent Base  Fee Additional Fee

Sexually Oriented Business (SOB) $950.00 per Application NA NA

 Escort Services $950.00 per Application NA NA

 Nude Entertainment Business $950.00 per Application NA NA

 Nude Entertainment Employee $250.00 per Application NA NA

 Semi-Nude Entertainment Business $950.00 per Application NA NA

 Semi-nude Entertainment Employee $250.00 per Application NA NA

$250.00 per Application NA NA

 Nude Dancing Agency $950.00 per Application NA NA

 Semi-Nude Dancing Agency $950.00 per Application NA NA

 Outcall Agency $950.00 per Application NA NA

 Outcall Agency Employee (Off-site services) $250.00 per Application NA NA

 Disclosure Application investigation $50.00 per Application NA NA

 Outcall Agency Employee (Off-site services) $252.00 per Application NA NA

Application for 2+ Licenses at one time $20.00 per Application  Higher of applicable fees

Outcall Agency Employee (Off-site services) $254.00 per Application NA NA

Alcoholic Beverages

Class "A" $200.00 per Application NA NA

Class "B" $300.00 per Application NA NA

Pawn Shops $450.00 per Application NA NA

Late Payment Fees

Paid after Jan 31 50.00% of renewal fee

Paid after Feb. 28 75.00% of renewal fee

Paid after Mar 31 100.00% of renewal fee

Fines

Operating a Business Without a Certificate of Occupancy $1,000.00 Per Day

Occupying a Residential Unit Without a Certificate of Occupancy $250.00 Per Day

Utility Excavation without a Permit $250.00 per Incident NA NA

Storm Water Pollution - Illicit Discharge $200.00 Per Incident

Storm Water  - Post contsruction BMP removal $100.00 Per BMP

Construction Activity Without a Permit when required $100.00 per Incident NA NA

Operating without a business license $150.00 per incident Certified mailing costs

Late Payment Fees $20.00 per month

Sign Reclamation fee (Illegal sign) $10.00 per Sign NA NA

Sign Reclamation fee (Repeat offenses) $40.00 per Sign NA NA

Weed Mowing (Code Enforcement)

Class B - A parcel of 1/4 acre or less with weeds and/or a heavy amount of trash (i.e. tires, building materials, stumps, etc.) $170.00

Class C - A parcel greater than 1/4 acre, but less than 1/2 acre with weeds and/or a small amount of trash $180.00

Class D - A parcel greater than 1/4 acre, but less than 1/2 acre with weeds and/or a heavy amount of trash (i.e. tires, building materials, stumps, etc.) $205.00

Class E - A parcel greater than 1/2 acre, but less than 3/4 acre with weeds and/or a small amount of trash $225.00

Class F - A parcel greater than 1/2 acre, but less than 3/4 acre with weeds and/or a heavy amount of trash (i.e. tires, building materials, stumps, etc.) $255.00

Class G - A parcel greater than 3/4 acre, but less than 1 acre with weeds and/or a small amount of trash $262.50

Class H - A parcel greater than 3/4 acre, but less than 1 acre with weeds and or a heavy amount of trash (i.e. tires, building materials, stumps, etc.) $352.50

Class I - A parcel greater than 1 acre, but less than 2 acres with weeds and/or a small amount of trash $375.00

Class J - A parcel greater than 1 acre, but less than 2 acres with weeds and/or a heavy amount of trash (i.e. tires, building materials, stumps, etc.) $412.50

Class K - A parcel greater than 2 acres, but less than 3 acres with weeds and/or a small amount of trash $457.50

Class L - A parcel greater than 2 acres, but less than 3 acres with weeds and/or a heavy amount of trash (i.e. tires, building materials, stumps, etc.) $615.00

Special Class - Special nuisances not easily classified requiring hourly fees for drivers, trucks, tractors, and hand work.  bids will be obtained from contractors.

1/4 acre = 10,890 square feet

1/2 acre = 21,780 square feet

3/4 acre = 32,674 square feet

1 acre = 43,560 square feet

**All rates include dump fees

Administration Fee for each subsequent weed mowing incident $50.00 per incident NA NA

Hourly Rates

Weedeater $33.00

Edger $33.00

Leaf Blower $33.00

Push Mower $36.00

Small Riding Mower $43.50

Large Riding Mower $52.50

Tractor $75.00

Truck/Trailer $82.50

 Nude Entertainment Employee (Outcall, on-site and non-performing 

nude entertainment/dancing agency employees)

Approved 2-12-2019 5 of 15



Community Development All Fees Are Effective July 1, 2018 Except As Noted (All fees paid with credit card are subject to 1% fee)

Fee Description

Proposed 

Base Fee

Proposed 

Additional 

Fee

Base Fee 

Increase

Additional Fee 

IncreaseCurrent Base  Fee Additional Fee

Tractor/Mower $78.00

**Hourly rates include operator, equipment, and all incidentals required to complete the work.

Excavation Permit Fees

NOTE: Trench Repair Fees for Excavations bebtween October 15th and May 15th are double fee shown

Administrative Fee $47.00 per applciation

Curb & Gutter Repair Inspection $2.50 per LF NA NA

Sidewalk Repair Inspection $2.50 per LF NA NA

Gas/Phone/Power/Cable Trench Repair Fee for Perpendicular Cuts

26'-0" Wide Road (50' ROW)

1'-0" to 13'-0" Cut $46.14 per Application NA NA

14'-0" to 26'-0" Cut $92.40 per Application NA NA

32'-0"' Wide Road (50'-60' ROW)

1'-0" to 16'-0" Cut $56.88 per Application NA NA

Cut 17'-0" to 32'-0" Cut $132.64 per Application NA NA

36-0"' Wide Road (60' ROW)

1'-0" to 18'-0" Cut $63.96 per Application NA NA

19'-0" to 36'-0" Cut $127.92 per Application NA NA

42'-0" Wide Road (66' ROW)

1'-0" to 21'-0" Cut $78.12 per Application NA NA

22'-0" to 42'-0" Cut $156.42 per Application NA NA

56'-0" Wide Road (80' ROW)

1'-0" to 21'-0" Cut $78.12 per Application NA NA

22'-0" to 35'-0" Cut $127.92 per Application NA NA

36'-0" to 56'-0" Cut $198.80 per Application NA NA

Water Line Trench Repair Fee for Perpendicular Cuts

26'-0" Wide Road (50' ROW)

1'-0" to 13'-0" Cut $53.83 per Application NA NA

14'-0" to 26'-0" Cut $107.66 per Application NA NA

32'-0"' Wide Road (50'-60' ROW)

1'-0" to 16'-0" Cut $66.36 per Application NA NA

Cut 17'-0" to 32'-0" Cut $132.72 per Application NA NA

36-0"' Wide Road (60' ROW)

1'-0" to 18'-0" Cut $74.62 per Application NA NA

19'-0" to 36'-0" Cut $149.24 per Application NA NA

42'-0" Wide Road (66' ROW)

1'-0" to 21'-0" Cut $87.08 per Application NA NA

22'-0" to 42'-0" Cut $174.16 per Application NA NA

56'-0" Wide Road (80' ROW)

1'-0" to 21'-0" Cut $87.08 per Application NA NA

22'-0" to 35'-0" Cut $145.46 per Application NA NA

36'-0" to 56'-0" Cut $232.12 per Application NA NA

Storm Drain Lines Trench Repair Fee for Perpendicular Cuts

26'-0" Wide Road (50' ROW)

1'-0" to 13'-0" Cut $61.52 per Application NA NA

14'-0" to 26'-0" Cut $123.04 per Application NA NA

32'-0"' Wide Road (50'-60' ROW)

1'-0" to 16'-0" Cut $75.84 per Application NA NA

Cut 17'-0" to 32'-0" Cut $151.68 per Application NA NA

36-0"' Wide Road (60' ROW)

1'-0" to 18'-0" Cut $85.25 per Application NA NA

19'-0" to 36'-0" Cut $170.56 per Application NA NA

42'-0" Wide Road (66' ROW)

1'-0" to 21'-0" Cut $99.52 per Application NA NA

22'-0" to 42'-0" Cut $199.04 per Application NA NA

56'-0" Wide Road (80' ROW)

1'-0" to 21'-0" Cut $99.52 per Application NA NA

22'-0" to 35'-0" Cut $166.24 per Application NA NA

36'-0" to 56'-0" Cut $265.28 per Application NA NA

Sanitary Sewer Lines Trench Repair Fee for Perpendicular Cuts

26'-0" Wide Road (50' ROW)

1'-0" to 13'-0" Cut $69.21 per Application NA NA

14'-0" to 26'-0" Cut $138.24 per Application NA NA

32'-0"' Wide Road (50'-60' ROW)

Approved 2-12-2019 6 of 15



Community Development All Fees Are Effective July 1, 2018 Except As Noted (All fees paid with credit card are subject to 1% fee)

Fee Description

Proposed 

Base Fee

Proposed 

Additional 

Fee

Base Fee 

Increase

Additional Fee 

IncreaseCurrent Base  Fee Additional Fee

1'-0" to 16'-0" Cut $85.32 per Application NA NA

Cut 17'-0" to 32'-0" Cut $170.64 per Application NA NA

36-0"' Wide Road (60' ROW)

1'-0" to 18'-0" Cut $99.40 per Application NA NA

19'-0" to 36'-0" Cut $191.88 per Application NA NA

42'-0" Wide Road (66' ROW)

1'-0" to 21'-0" Cut $111.96 per Application NA NA

22'-0" to 42'-0" Cut $223.92 per Application NA NA

56'-0" Wide Road (80' ROW)

1'-0" to 21'-0" Cut $111.96 per Application NA NA

22'-0" to 35'-0" Cut $187.02 per Application NA NA

36'-0" to 56'-0" Cut $298.44 per Application NA NA

Combined Trench Repair Fee for Perpendicular Cuts

26'-0" Wide Road (50' ROW)

1'-0" to 13'-0" Cut $76.80 per Application NA NA

14'-0" to 26'-0" Cut $153.60 per Application NA NA

32'-0"' Wide Road (50'-60' ROW)

1'-0" to 16'-0" Cut $94.80 per Application NA NA

Cut 17'-0" to 32'-0" Cut $189.60 per Application NA NA

36-0"' Wide Road (60' ROW)

1'-0" to 18'-0" Cut $106.60 per Application NA NA

19'-0" to 36'-0" Cut $213.20 per Application NA NA

42'-0" Wide Road (66' ROW)

1'-0" to 21'-0" Cut $124.40 per Application NA NA

22'-0" to 42'-0" Cut $248.80 per Application NA NA

56'-0" Wide Road (80' ROW)

1'-0" to 21'-0" Cut $124.40 per Application NA NA

22'-0" to 35'-0" Cut $207.80 per Application NA NA

36'-0" to 56'-0" Cut $331.60 per Application NA NA

Trench Repair Fee for Parallel Cuts

26'-0" Wide Road (50' ROW)

1'-0" to 13'-0" Cut $3.85 per foot of resurface NA NA

14'-0" to 26'-0" Cut $7.70 per foot of resurface NA NA

32'-0"' Wide Road (50'-60' ROW)

1'-0" to 16'-0" Cut $4.74 per foot of resurface NA NA

Cut 17'-0" to 32'-0" Cut $9.47 per foot of resurface NA NA

36-0"' Wide Road (60' ROW)

1'-0" to 18'-0" Cut $5.33 per foot of resurface NA NA

19'-0" to 36'-0" Cut $10.66 per foot of resurface NA NA

42'-0" Wide Road (66' ROW)

1'-0" to 21'-0" Cut $6.22 per foot of resurface NA NA

22'-0" to 42'-0" Cut $12.44 per foot of resurface NA NA

56'-0" Wide Road (80' ROW)

1'-0" to 21'-0" Cut $6.22 per foot of resurface NA NA

22'-0" to 35'-0" Cut $10.36 per foot of resurface NA NA

36'-0" to 56'-0" Cut $16.58 per foot of resurface NA NA

Storm Water Activity Permit Fees

Storm Water Permit Fees $50.00 Per Lot

Deposit - Storm Water Activity Permit $1,000.00 Per application

Utility Bill Advertising Fees

NOTE: See Resolution R11- for policies governing advertising on the Utility Bill

Per Issue Rate

Full page color ad (8.5" x 11") $1,200.00 per ad

Full page black and white ad (8.5" x 11") $600.00 per ad

Half page color ad $600.00 per ad

Half page black and white ad $300.00 per ad

Approved 2-12-2019 7 of 15



Utilities All Fees Are Effective July 1, 2018 Except As Noted (All fees paid with credit card are subject to 1% fee)

Fee Description

Proposed 

Base Fee

Proposed 

Additional 

Fee

Base Fee 

Increase

Additional Fee 

Increase

Utility Rates

Garbage Service

Service $9.76 per month N/A NA

New Garbage Can Set-up $100.00 ea. Unit NA NA

Extra Garbage Can (Limit 3) $7.28 ea. Unit NA NA

Green Waste Can $7.50 ea. Unit N/A N/A

Replacement Cost $90.00 per can NA NA

Early Return of Extra Can(s) - less than six (6) months $35.00 per can NA NA

Street Lighting (Effective May 1st, 2009)

Street Ligting Power Fee $1.00 per month NA NA

Purchase of New Street Lights $0.32 per month NA NA

Parks Maintenance Fee $3.35 per month NA NA

Temporary Meter (New Construction) $30.00 per application NA NA

New Service (Does not include impact fee) $25.00 per application NA NA

Utility Account Transfer (within City limits) $15.00 per request NA NA

Late Fee on Delinquent Accounts $20.00 per incident NA NA

Request for Re-establishment of Service after Delinquency

First Occurrence $35.00 per request NA NA

Subsequent Occurrences (Same Year) $50.00 per request NA NA

After Hours Re-connection of Service $35.00 per request NA NA

Deposit for Water Service

Residential $100.00 per application NA NA

Commercial/Industrial/Multi-Family $100.00 per application NA NA

Culinary Water Service

Private Pool >12,000 gallons $3.24 per 1,000 gallons

Commercial Service

< 10,000 Gallons $18.60 per month

10,001-30,000 gallons $18.60 per month $2.00 per 1,000 gallons

30,001-40,000 gallons $58.60 per month $2.40 per 1,000 gallons

> 40,000 gallons $82.60 per month $3.00 per 1,000 gallons

Residential Service (with secondary water)

< 4,000 Gallons $18.60 per month N/A N/A

4,001 - 8,000 gallons $19.64 per month N/A N/A

8,001 -12,000 gallons $19.64 per month $3.24 per 1,000 gallons

12,001 -16,000 gallons $32.60 per month $3.40 per 1,000 gallons

16,001 -20,000 gallons $46.20 per month $3.59 per 1,000 gallons

> 20,000 gallons $60.56 per month $4.19 per 1,000 gallons

Residential Service (without secondary water)

< 4,000 Gallons $18.60 per month N/A N/A

4,001 - 8,000 gallons $19.64 per month N/A N/A

8,001 -12,000 gallons $19.64 per month $3.56 per 1,000 gallons

12,001 -16,000 gallons $33.88 per month $3.74 per 1,000 gallons

16,001 -20,000 gallons $48.84 per month $3.95 per 1,000 gallons

> 20,000 gallons $64.64 per month $4.61 per 1,000 gallons

All Non-Residential Service

< 4,000 Gallons $24.60 per month N/A N/A

4,001 - 8,000 gallons $25.64 per month N/A N/A

8,001 -12,000 gallons $25.64 per month $3.89 per 1,000 gallons

12,001 -16,000 gallons $41.20 per month $4.08 per 1,000 gallons

16,001 -20,000 gallons $57.52 per month $4.31 per 1,000 gallons

> 20,000 gallons $74.76 per month $5.03 per 1,000 gallons

Current Base Fee  Additional Fee

Approved 2-12-2019 8 of 15



Utilities All Fees Are Effective July 1, 2018 Except As Noted (All fees paid with credit card are subject to 1% fee)

Fee Description

Proposed 

Base Fee

Proposed 

Additional 

Fee

Base Fee 

Increase

Additional Fee 

IncreaseCurrent Base Fee  Additional Fee

Secondary Water Service (rate based on 3/4" line size flow for any service larger than 1")

3/4" line $15.71 per month NA NA

1" line $21.71 per month NA NA

1 1/2" line $58.21 per month NA NA

2" line $103.32 per month NA NA

3" line $184.71 per month NA NA

4" line $414.65 per month NA NA

6" line $928.21 per month NA NA

8" line $1,649.99 per month NA NA

Hydrant Meter

Meter Deposit $1,200.00 per application NA NA

Administrative Fee $30.00 per application NA NA

Hydrant Rental

Short Term (up to 3 days) $8.00 per application $2.00 per 1,000 gallons

Long Term (Monthly) $30.00 per month $2.00 per 1,000 gallons

General Use Fee $2.20 per 1,000 gallons NA NA

Hydrant Flushing $250.00 per Flushing $2.18 per 1,000 gallons

North Davis Sewer District - Sewer Disposal Service (Waste)

Residential $21.50 per month NA NA

Commercial $21.50 per month $2.15 Per 1000 gallons over 5,500 gallons of water

Syracuse City - Sewer Maintenance Service (Waste)

Residential $7.25 per month NA NA

Commercial $7.25 per month NA NA

Sewer Service (Storm)

Residential $5.85 per month NA NA

Commercial

0 - 1 acre $8.16 per month NA NA

1.1 - 2 acres $16.39 per month NA NA

2.1 - 2 acres $24.56 per month NA NA

3.1 - 4 acres $32.72 per month NA NA

4.1 - 5 acres $40.89 per month NA NA

5.1 - 6 acres $49.11 per month NA NA

6.1 - 7 acres $57.28 per month NA NA

7.1 - 8 acres $65.44 per month NA NA

8.1 - 9 acres $73.61 per month NA NA

Each additional acre $8.16 per month NA NA

Secondary Water - Open Land in a Residential Subdivision $0.19 sf of pervious area NA NA

Public Works

Sidewalk & Driveway Approach Replacement $45.00 per inspection NA NA

Street Sweeping (Contractor failure to clean) $515.00 per incident Time & Material for City Personnel

Fines

Fines - Water Meter Tampering $100.00 1st incident $500.00 2nd incident

Cross Connection of Culinary & Secondary Lines $100.00 per incident reimbursement of city costs to remediate

 (No water contamination of city water supply)

Approved 2-12-2019 9 of 15



Parks & Recreation All Fees Are Effective July 1, 2018 Except As Noted (All fees paid with credit card are subject to 1% fee)

Fee Description

Proposed 

Base Fee

Proposed 

Additional 

Fee

Base Fee 

Increase Additional Fee Increase

Community Center Fees

Rental - after hours fee for all activities $15.00 per hour per staff member

Rental - Gymnasium

Resident $125.00 per hour per gym $900.00 per 8 hours per gym

Non-resident $200.00 per hour per gym $1,500.00 per 8 hours per gym

Rental - Classroom/Craft Room

Resident $30.00 per hour per room $200.00 per 8 hours per room

Non-resident $45.00 per hour per room $300.00 per 8 hours per room

Memberships

Children (Ages 5-13)

Resident $1.00 per day $9.00 per month or $50 per year

Non-Resident $1.00 per day $11.00 per month or $76 per year

Youth (Ages 14-17)

Resident $2.00 per day $18.00 per month or $110 per year

Non-Resident $2.00 per day $27.00 per month or $193 per year

Adults (Ages 18-59)

Resident $2.00 per day $18.00 per month or $110 per year

Non-Resident $2.00 per day $27.00 per month or $193 per year

Seniors (Ages 60+)

Resident $0.50 per day $7.00 per month or $42 per year

Non-Resident $0.50 per day $11.00 per month or $76 per year

Seniors Couples

Resident n/a per day $11.00 per month or $70 per year

Non-Resident n/a per day $20.00 per month or $130 per year

Adult Couples

Resident n/a per day $30.00 per month or $187 per year

Non-Resident n/a per day $49.00 per month or $312 per year

Familes

Resident n/a per day $54.00 per month or $259 per year

Non-Resident n/a per day $78.00 per month or $405 per year

Park Rental Fees

Park Land Rental (Concessionaire) $250.00 per month NA NA

Athletic Fields

Non-Recreational Play

Resident $15.00 per field per hour NA NA

Non-Resident $25.00 per field per hour NA NA

Recreational Play Multi-day Fee negotiated per Contract NA NA

Field Lighting $15.00 per hour per field NA NA

Boweries (except for Jensen and Legacy Parks)

Parties of 150 or Less

Resident $25.00 per (4) hour period $5.00 per hour for 5+ hours

Non-Resident $50.00 per (4) hour period $10.00 per hour for 5+ hours

Parties of 150 or More (Special Event)

Resident $75.00 per (4) hour period $10.00 per hour for 5+ hours

Non-Resident $125.00 per (4) hour period $20.00 per hour for 5+ hours

Ice Rink Rental (Skate Rentals not included) $50.00 per 2 hour session

Ice Skate Rentals

Adults (ages 13 and up) $4.00 per hour NA NA

Children $3.00 per hour NA NA

Jensen Nature Park (Bowery)

Resident $50.00 per (4) hour period NA NA

Non-Resident $75.00 per (4) hour period NA NA

Jensen Park Nature Center

Resident - 1/2 Day $150.00 per rental NA NA

Resident - Whole Day $275.00 per rental NA NA

Non-resident - 1/2 Day $200.00 per rental NA NA

Non-resident - Whole Day $375.00 per rental NA NA

Current Base Fee  Additional Fee

Approved 2-12-2019 10 of 15



Parks & Recreation All Fees Are Effective July 1, 2018 Except As Noted (All fees paid with credit card are subject to 1% fee)

Fee Description

Proposed 

Base Fee

Proposed 

Additional 

Fee

Base Fee 

Increase Additional Fee IncreaseCurrent Base Fee  Additional Fee

Legacy Park

Resident $50.00 per (4) hour period NA NA

Non-Resident $75.00 per (4) hour period NA NA

Cancellation Fee $5.00 per cancellation 50% within 7 days, no refund under 3 days

Heritage Days

10 x 10 Booth $80.00 per booth NA NA

10 x 20 Booth $160.00 per booth NA NA

Power for Booth $12.00 per booth NA NA

Roving Vendor Permit

Without a booth rental $50.00 per permit NA NA

With a booth rental $25.00 per permit NA NA

Parade Entry $15.00 per vehicle

Late Fee $20.00 per application NA NA

Farmers Market Fees

Prepared Food / Retail Sales $15 Per Week or $150 per Season

Cottage Food $10 Per Week or $100 per Season

Produce $5 Per Week or $50 per Season

Power Rental $10 Per Week or $50 per Season

Recreation Programs

Late Sign-up Fee $5.00 per person NA NA

Merit Badge Classes Actual cost of materials (varies based on merit badge)

Camp Syracuse $35.00 per person

Golf $56.00 per person NA NA

Tennis $31.00 per person NA NA

Football (Tackle) $130.00 per person NA NA

Football (Flag) $55.00 per person

Adult Basketball $351.00 per team NA NA

Soccer (Fall/Spring)

Resident $46.00 per person NA NA

Non-Resident $61.00 per person NA NA

Baseball/Softball

T-ball / Coach Pitch

Resident $40.00 per person NA NA

Non-Resident $55.00 per person NA NA

Machine Pitch

Resident $45.00 per person NA NA

Non-Resident $60.00 per person NA NA

Minor League/Major League

Resident $50.00 per person NA NA

Non-Resident $65.00 per person NA NA

Junior High School

Resident $55.00 per person NA NA

Non-Resident $70.00 per person NA NA

Basketball

1st-6th grades (Jr Jazz)

Resident $52.00 per person NA NA

Non-Resident $67.00 per person NA NA

7th-12th grades (Jr Jazz)

Resident $57.00 per person NA NA

Non-Resident $72.00 per person NA NA

Itty Bitty

Resident $40.00 per person NA NA

Non-Resident $55.00 per person NA NA

Equipment Rental

Performance Stage $900.00 per day

Approved 2-12-2019 11 of 15



Cemetery All Fees Are Effective July 1, 2018 Except As Noted (All fees paid with credit card are subject to 1% fee)

Fee Description

Proposed 

Base Fee

Proposed 

Additional 

Fee

Base Fee 

Increase

Additional Fee 

Increase

Basic Fees

Plot Purchase

Resident $500.00

Non-Resident $1,000.00

Plot Purchase - half/infant/urn

Resident $250.00

Non-Resident $500.00

Interment - Adult

Resident $300.00

Non-Resident $700.00

Interment - Child

Resident $175.00

Non-Resident $400.00

Interment - Urn or Infant

Resident $100.00

Non-Resident $200.00

Interment - Weekend or Holiday

Resident $200.00

Non-Resident $200.00

Disinterment

Resident $400.00

Non-Resident $400.00

Monument Move (Flat Monument)

Resident $50.00

Non-Resident $50.00

Monument Move (Upright Monument)

Resident $250.00

Non-Resident $250.00

Position Transfer Fee

Resident $35.00

Non-Resident $35.00

After Hours fee (3:00 p.m.)

Resident $100.00

Non-Resident $100.00

Cemetery Certificate Replacement $10.00 Per Additional Certificate

Current Base Fee  Additional Fee

Approved 2-12-2019 12 of 15



Public Safety & Public Works All Fees Are Effective July 1, 2018 Except As Noted (All fees paid with credit card are subject to 1% fee)

Fee Description

Proposed Base 

Fee

Proposed 

Additional Fee

Base Fee 

Increase Additional Fee Increase

Fire Department

Two EMT Ambulance Stand-By Fee (for-profit special events) $100.00 per hour plus cost of materials

EMT or Firefighter with basic equipment (no ambulance) $50.00 per hour plus cost of materials

Four Firefighter Engine Company $250.00 per hour plus cost of materials

Two Firefighter Brush Truck $150.00 per hour plus cost of materials

$200.00 per class

Equipment issued during CERT Class $45.00

Fireor EMS Report $10.00 $15.00 per hour of research (31+ minutes)

Fire or EMS Report with pictures $50.00 $15.00 per hour of research (31+ minutes)

CPR/ First Aid Course

Resident $30.00

Non-Resident $40.00

$200.00 per class plus cost of cards

Children's Bike Helmets $10.00

Fireworks Sales Permit (in addition to business license) $300.00

Miscellaneous Inspections $75.00

Additional Inspections (after first follup-up / no show $75.00

False Alarm Fees - Commercial

3rd false alarm per quarter $250.00

4th false alarm per quarter $350.00

5th false alarm per quarter $450.00 $100.00 per occurance after 5th 

Police Department

Fingerprinting

Resident $10.00 per card

Non-Resident $15.00 per card

Criminal History Background Check $10.00 per background check

Police contract services (i.e. special events, interagency, etc)

Admin Fee - staffing costs $20.00 per event

Each officer $55.00 per hour

Parking Violation Penalty Fee **

Paid within 14 days of issuance $30.00 per ticket

Paid within 15 to 30 days of issuance $50.00 per ticket

Paid after 30 days of issuance $70.00 per ticket plus cost of collections, if applicable

Parking Violation Appeal Hearing Fee $25.00 per appeal

$10.00 per report $15.00 per hour of research (31+ minutes)

Police Report with any pictures or video on CD or DVD $50.00 per report $15.00 per hour of research (31+ minutes)

Good Conduct Letter Request $5.00 per letter

Annual sex offender / child abuse registration fee $25.00 Per Registration

Emergency Services

Base Fee and Mileage  Rate As per State approved Utah Health Department Rates

Surcharges (Emergency, night service, off-road)

Special Provisions (wait time, non-transport)

Medical Supplies

Hardship Waivers for Emergency Services As per City Council Resolution R14-39

Public Works Department

Public Works contract services (i.e. staffing, capital projects, interagency, etc)

Staffing costs $75.00 minimum up to 1st hour $75.00 per hour after 1st hour

Heavy equipment  costs $100.00 minimum up to 1st hour $100.00 per hour after 1st hour

**Rate billed by the City includes time for mobilization and demobilization.

Street Light Installation Charge - Charged to new development

Traffic Evaluation Request * $300.00 Per application

*Reimbursement may be provided if the specified area is found to be in need of correction.

**1st time offense is eligible for a $20.00 reduction in fee with a mandatory appearance at city hall and receipt of parking information.

Current Base Fee  Additional Fee

CERT Special Class fee for additional classes requested by 

organizations outslide of regulary scheduled classes

Off-site CPR, First Aid, or AED Training course

Actual cost of installation

Police GRAMA requests

Police Report

Approved 2-12-2019 13 of 15



Miscellaneous All Fees Are Effective July 1, 2018 Except As Noted (All fees paid with credit card are subject to 1% fee)

Fee Description

Proposed 

Base Fee

Proposed Additional 

Fee

Base Fee 

Increase

Additional Fee 

Increase

Faxes

Local $2.00 per call NA NA

Long Distance $1.00 per page $0.10 NA

Copies

8 1/2 " x 11" - single sheet B&W $0.25 per sheet NA NA

8 1/2 " x 11" - single sheet Color $0.50 per sheet NA NA

11 " x 17" - single sheet B&W $0.50

11 " x 17" - single sheet Color $1.00

24" x 36" $2.00 per sheet NA NA

Off-site Printing Actual Cost NA NA

Post Office Supplies

Stamps, Packages, Boxes, etc. As per approved USPS prices

Bubble Wrap $3.29

Packing Tape Dispensers $3.49

Mailing Carton 12" x 10" x 8" $2.19

Mailing Carton 15"x12"x10" $3.49

Mlg Ctn 9.0625" x 5.625" x 1.25" (DVD/Video) $2.59

Mailing Carton 8" x 8" x 8" $1.99

Mailing Carton 5.75" x 5.25" x 1" (CD Mailer) $2.19

Photo/Doc Mlr 9.75" x 12.25" (Chipboard) $1.59

Cushion Mailer 6" x 10" $1.19

Cushion Mailer 8.5" x 12" $1.59

Cushion Mailer 10.5" x 16" $1.89

Photo/Doc Mailer 6" x 10" (Chipboard) $1.49

Photo/Doc Mlr 6.5" x 9.5" Corr-Ins peel adh $1.69

Photo/Doc Mlr 9.5" x 12.5" Corr-Ins peel adh $2.19

Bubble Mailer 6" x 10" $1.49

Bubble Mailer 10.5" x 16" $2.19

Bubble Mailer 8.5" x 12" $1.79

Bubble Mailer 12.5" x 19" $2.59

Envelope 6" x 9" $0.49

Utility Mailer 10.5" x 16" $1.19

Administrative Reports, Documents, and Fees

Financial Report

First Copy No Charge per report NA NA

Additional $5.00 per report NA NA

Budget Document

First Copy No Charge per report NA NA

Additional $5.00 per report NA NA

Audio Recordings on CD $10.00 per CD NA NA

Certification of Copies $2.00 per copy NA NA

Administration Processing Fee $50.00 Per hour

GRAMA Records Request

Records Request $0.25 per page

Research, compilation, editing, redaction, etc. $0.00 per minute (first 30 min) $15.00 per hour (31+ minutes)

Passport Photos $10.00 per photo NA NA

Passport Acceptance Fee $35.00 per application NA NA

Passport Expedited Shipping Fee $25.00 per application NA NA

Notarization $5.00 per stamp NA NA

Subdivision Ordinance Book

Entire Book $15.00 per book NA NA

Per Chapter $1.50 per chapter NA NA

General Plan Book $15.00 per book NA NA

Maps (includes Zoning, General Plan, Garbage Pick-up, Master Transportation etc.)

8 1/2 " x 11" Size A $3.00 per map NA NA

11" x 17" Size B $5.00 per map NA NA

22" x 34" Size D $15.00 per map NA NA

Map Research & Compilation $50.00 per hour

Maps on disk $10.00 per disk NA NA

Current Base Fee  Additional Fee

Approved 2-12-2019 14 of 15



Miscellaneous All Fees Are Effective July 1, 2018 Except As Noted (All fees paid with credit card are subject to 1% fee)

Fee Description

Proposed 

Base Fee

Proposed Additional 

Fee

Base Fee 

Increase

Additional Fee 

IncreaseCurrent Base Fee  Additional Fee

Collections

Returned Check Fee $20.00 per check NA NA

Warrant Collection Fee 2.75% of outstanding warrant balance

Outside Collection Agency Fee 25.00% of balance owed to City

Candidate Filing Fee for Public Office $25.00 per application NA NA

City Hall Lobby Rental *

Small Events (< 25 persons - no food present)

Resident $100.00 per rental * $35.00 per hour for staffing

Non-resident $150.00 per rental * $40.00 per hour for staffing

Small Events (< 25 persons - with food present)

Resident $200.00 per rental * $40.00 per hour for staffing

Non-resident $300.00 per rental * $45.00 per hour for staffing

Large Events (> 25 persons - no food present)

Resident $600.00 per rental * $45.00 per hour for staffing

Non-resident $900.00 per rental * $50.00 per hour for staffing

Large Events (> 25 persons - with food present)

Resident $600.00 per rental * $50.00 per hour for staffing

Non-resident $900.00 per rental * $55.00 per hour for staffing

City Hall Chambers Rental  *

Small Events (< 25 persons - no food present)

Resident $200.00 per rental * $35.00 per hour for staffing

Non-resident $300.00 per rental * $40.00 per hour for staffing

Large Events (< 25 persons - no food present)

Resident $600.00 per rental * $40.00 per hour for staffing

Non-resident $900.00 per rental * $45.00 per hour for staffing

City Hall Lobby and Chambers Rental *

Small Events (< 25 persons - no food present)

Resident $300.00 per rental * $35.00 per hour for staffing

Non-resident $400.00 per rental * $40.00 per hour for staffing

Small Events (< 25 persons - with food present)

Resident $400.00 per rental * $40.00 per hour for staffing

Non-resident $500.00 per rental * $45.00 per hour for staffing

Large Events (> 25 persons - no food present)

Resident $700.00 per rental * $50.00 per hour for staffing

Non-resident $800.00 per rental * $55.00 per hour for staffing

Large Events (> 25 persons - with food present)

Resident $900.00 per rental * $55.00 per hour for staffing

Non-resident $1,000.00 per rental * $60.00 per hour for staffing

Miscellaneous

Sale of Mulch $25.00 per cubic yard

Sale of Dirt

Resident $20.00 per cubic yard $30.00 Delivery Fee

Non-resident $25.00 per cubic yard $40.00 Delivery Fee

* 50% of rental fee will be refunded upon satisfactory cleanup of facility and no damages.

Approved 2-12-2019 15 of 15



  
 

Agenda Item #9 Proposed Resolution R19-05 Executing an 

extension to the garbage hauling contract with 

Robinson Waste. 

 

Factual Summation  
• Any questions about this agenda item may be directed at Admin Services 

Director Stephen Marshall or City Manager Brody Bovero.    
 

• Our garbage hauling contract is due to expire on March 31, 2019.  The 
council reviewed and discussed the current contract and decided to approve a 

contract extension for garbage hauling services with Robinson Waste.   
 

• The proposed extension would be for a 3-year term with the following rate 
structure: 
o Year 1 – rate hold 
o Year 2 – increase by CPI*  
o Year 3 – increase by CPI* 

 

• * We propose to use the CPI index rate from the bureau of labor statistics -
https://www.bls.gov/cpi/.  We would use the 12 month – not seasonally adjusted – 

rate for all items. 
 

 

 

 

  

  

  

Action Item for Agenda  
Consider approval of resolution R19-05 approving the contract extension for garbage 
hauling services to Robinson Waste. 

 

COUNCIL AGENDA 
February 12, 2019 

https://www.bls.gov/cpi/


 

RESOLUTION R19-05 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AN 

EXTENTION TO THE ROBINSON WASTE GARBAGE HAULING 

CONTRACT. 

 

            WHEREAS, the City Council of Syracuse City wishes to provide a garbage waste 

program for its citizens; and  

 

            WHEREAS, Syracuse City has contracted with Robinson Waste for garbage hauling 

services; 

  

             WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed the proposed contract extension for garbage 

hauling services and feel it is in the City’s best interest to extend the contract with the terms 

specified, 

 

            NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED AND ORDAINED BY THE CITY 

COUNCIL OF SYRACUSE DAVIS COUNTY, STATE OF UTAH, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

SECTION 1. Amendment. The garbage hauling contract is hereby extended for a 

period of 3 additional years with the terms as set forth in Exhibit "A," attached hereto and 

incorporated herein by this reference. 

 

SECTION 2. Severability.  If any section, part or provision of this Resolution is held 

invalid or unenforceable, such invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect any other portion of 

this Resolution, and all sections, parts and provisions of this Resolution shall be severable. 

SECTION 3. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall become effective upon issuance. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF SYRACUSE CITY, 

STATE OF UTAH, THIS 12th DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2019. 

 

SYRACUSE CITY 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ By:____________________________________ 

Cassie Z. Brown, City Recorder       Mike Gailey, Mayor 

 

 

 



Page 1 of 2 

 

Syracuse City 

1979 West 1900 South 

Syracuse, UT 84075 

(801) 825-1477 

 

 

THREE-YEAR EXTENSION AND  

SECOND AMENDMENT TO GARBAGE COLLECTION AGREEMENT 

Syracuse City 

 

THIS AMENDMENT is entered into by and between the Syracuse City ("City"), a Utah 

municipal corporation, and Robinson Waste ("Collector"), on the date affixed below, related to 

the Garbage Collection Agreement (the “Agreement”), entered between the parties on March 31, 

2014, and previously amended in 2017.  

 

Contract Extension 

The Parties agree to a three (3) year extension of the Agreement, for which the term was set to 

expire on March 31, 2019. 

 

Amendments 

City and Contractor agree to insert Section 7.AB. and Section 7.AC. into the Agreement, 

immediately following Section 7.AA.: 

 

AB. Beginning April 1, 2019, the following service rates are hereby established for services 

provided from April 1, 2019 through March 31, 2020: 

 

First Garbage Container:   $3.96 per month per residence 

  

Each Additional Garbage Container:  $1.33 per month per residence 

 

 Green Waste Container:   $4.50 per month per residence 

 

AC. For the annual term of April 1, 2020 through March 31, 2021, and for the annual term of 

April 1, 2021 through March 31, 2022, the Contractor may adjust the fees identified in 

this Section, with thirty (30) days’ written notice, by increasing them based upon the 

percentage of the previous year’s total consumer price index (CPI) – not seasonally 

adjusted – established by the United States Bureau of Labor Statistics for the period 

ending December of the previous year.  If CPI is negative, then fees shall remain 

unchanged.  The CPI number is found on the website: https://www.bls.gov/cpi/. 

 

- Signatures Appear on Next Page - 

 



Page 2 of 2 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Amendment this         day of 

____________________, 2019. 

 

City:       Collector: 

 

______________________________  ____________________________________ 

Terry Palmer, Mayor     Signature 

 

 

ATTEST:      ____________________________________ 

       Print Name & Title 

_______________________________   

Cassie Z. Brown, City Recorder    

 

           

Approved as to form: 

 

________________________________ 

Paul Roberts, City Attorney 


	02-12-19 business meeting agenda.pdf
	3.0 memo Excellence Award
	3.1 CC Memo Excellence Award 2019
	4.0 deputy fire chief award
	5.0 memo minutes
	5a 12-11-18 draft bus
	5b 12-11-18 draft ws
	5c 01-08-19 draft business
	5d 01-08-19 draft ws
	6a.0 memo
	6a.1 R19-03, 2018 Councilmember assignments
	6b.0 2019 - Appointment Procedure Revisions - Staff Report 2-12
	6b.1 2019 - Appointment Procedure Revisions - 2 votes to advance - Ordinance
	7.0 Factual Summation storm water impact fee master plan
	7.1 Storm Water Impact Fee Enactment Ordinance
	7.2 Exhibit A - Syracuse City Draft Storm Water IFFP
	7.3 Exhibit B - Syracuse Storm IFA 120618
	8.0 Factual Summation for proposed consolidated fee schedule
	8.2 Resolution adopting the FY 2018-2019 fee schedule
	8.3 Proposed Consolidated Fee Schedule - Effective 2-12-2019
	9.0 Factual Summation for garbage hauling contract extension
	9.1 Resolution Adopting amendment to Robinson Waste contract
	9.2 2019 Robinson Waste Amendment - Rate change & 3 Year Extension

